
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Cathy Murillo 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Randy Rowse 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Ariel Pierre Calonne 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Gregg Hart 
Frank Hotchkiss  
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

APRIL 8, 2014 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 
AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through April 30, 2014. 
  

2. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April 2014 As Fair Housing Month (120.04) 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of March 18, 2014. 
  

4. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Municipal Code Title 17 Amendments 
Related To Waterfront Parking (550.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the Municipal Code by 
Amending Chapter 17.36 of Title 17 Pertaining to Parking in the Waterfront 
Parking Lots. 
  



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Municipal Code Amendments Regarding Fences, 
Screens, Walls And Hedges (640.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Amending Sections 28.87.170 and 28.90.050 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Relating to Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges; 
and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara to Approve Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges 
Guidelines Consistent with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 
28.87.170. 

 
6. Subject:  Authorization For The Allocation Of Transportation Development 

Act Funds (670.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Filing of a Claim with the 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments for Allocation of $69,742 in 
Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 2015. 
  

7. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2014 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014. 
  

8. Subject:  Contracts For Design For On-Call Engineering Services For 
Groundwater Well Development (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 

Services contract with Pueblo Water Resources, Inc., in the amount of 
$250,000 for on-call hydrogeologic engineering design services for various 
groundwater well development projects, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to approve expenditures of up to $25,000 for extra services that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Kear Groundwater in the amount of $250,000 for 
on-call hydrogeologic engineering design services for various groundwater 
well development projects, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $25,000 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work. 



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
9. Subject:  Approval Of License Agreement With Santa Barbara Certified 

Farmers Market, Inc. (180.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute a new License Agreement with the Santa Barbara Certified Farmers 
Market, Inc., for the operation of the Downtown Farmers Market located in the 
Cota Commuter Parking Lot at 119 East Cota Street, the Old Town Farmers 
Market located in the 500-600 Blocks of State Street, and the Coast Village Road 
Farmers Market located in the 1100-1200 Blocks of Coast Village Road. 
  

10. Subject:  Execution Of A License Agreement For Parking Purposes At The 
Granada Garage (550.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
License Agreement with the Trustees of the Lesley J. Alexander Trust for use of 
three parking spaces within the Granada Garage for five years. 
  

11. Subject:  Rejection Of The Safe Routes To School Cleveland Project Bids 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council reject all bids for construction of the Safe 
Routes to School Cleveland Project and direct staff to re-bid the Project. 
  

12. Subject:  Police Department Explorer Program Funds (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
in the Police Department Explorer Program by $5,666. 
  

13. Subject:  Sole Source Purchase Order For Versaterm, Inc., Computer Aided 
Dispatch Paging Module Software (520.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council find it in the City's best interest to waive the 
formal bid procedure as authorized by Municipal Code Section 4.52.070(k), and 
authorize the General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to Versaterm, 
Inc., for a Versadex CAD 7.3 Paging module in an amount not to exceed 
$35,000. 
  



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

14. Subject:  Bulletproof Vest Partnership Award (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept $17,731 from the U.S. Department of Justice's 2013 Bulletproof 

Vest Partnership grant; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $17,731 in the Police 

Miscellaneous Grants Fund for the purchase of forty-six (46) bulletproof 
vests. 

 
 
15. Subject:  Proposed Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Arts 

Collaborative For Community Arts Workshop At 631 Garden Street (180.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the 
Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative for the development and use of City-owned 
property at 631 Garden Street as a Community Arts Workshop. 
  

NOTICES 

16. The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 3, 2014, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 

17. Recruitment For City Advisory Groups 
A. The City Clerk's Office will accept applications through Monday, May 5, 

2014, at 5:30 p.m. to fill scheduled vacancies on various City Advisory 
Groups and the unscheduled vacancies resulting from resignations 
received in the City Clerk's Office through Wednesday, April 16, 2014; 

B. The City Council will conduct interviews of applicants for vacancies on 
various City Advisory Groups on Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 4:00 p.m. 
(Estimated Time), Tuesday, June 3, 2014, at 4:00 p.m. (Estimated Time), 
and Tuesday, June 10, 2014, at 6:00 p.m.; and 

C. The City Council will make appointments to fill vacancies on various City 
Advisory Groups on Tuesday, June 24, 2014. 

18. Receipt of communications advising of vacancies created on the Community 
Development and Human Services Committee with the resignations of Rocky 
Jacobson and Michael Just, the Community Events and Festivals Committee 
with the resignation of Rebekah Altman, and the Harbor Commission with the 
resignation of Frank Kelly. The vacancies will be part of the current City Advisory 
Groups Semiannual Recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

19. Subject:  Urban Forest Management Plan (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Adopting the Urban Forest Management 
Plan. 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

20. Subject:  Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For 
Development Near Highway 101 (630.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 

of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Title 22 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code by Adding Chapter 22.65 Establishing Air Quality 
Design Standards for New Development Near Highway 101 to Implement 
Policy ER7 of the 2011 General Plan; and 

B. Repeal City Council Resolution No. 12-013 upon the effective date of the 
Ordinance Adopting Chapter 22.65 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT'D) 
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

21. Subject:  Appointment Of Council Members To The New Zoning Ordinance 
(NZO) Joint  Council And Planning Commission Committee (640.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the appointment of two members to the 
New Zoning Ordinance Joint Council and Planning Commission Committee. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CLOSED SESSIONS 

22. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Government 
Code and take appropriate action as needed. Pending litigation considered is a 
workers' compensation claim:  Guy Robles v. City of Santa Barbara, WCAB 
case number ADJ7188245. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

23. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Potential Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider potential 
litigation pursuant to section 54956.9 (d)(2) and (e)(2) of the Government Code 
arising out of a contract dispute with Continental Casualty, and take appropriate 
action as needed.  
 Scheduling:  Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

24. Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiators (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8 to consider a possible long-term lease to the Montecito 
Water District of a portion of the Charles Meyer Desalination Plant owned by the 
City of Santa Barbara and located on real property owned by the City of Santa 
Barbara. 
Real Property:  A portion of the Charles Meyer Desalination Plant located at 525 
East Yanonali Street (Assessor's Parcel No.: 017-540-007) in the City of Santa 
Barbara. 
City Negotiators:  James Armstrong, City Administrator; Joshua Haggmark, 
Acting Water Resources Manager; Ariel Calonne, City Attorney; Sarah Knecht, 
Assistant City Attorney. 
Negotiating Parties:  Montecito Water District, Darlene Bierig, Board President. 
Under Negotiation:  Instructions to negotiators concerning the price and terms 
of payment of a possible ground lease of a portion of the Charles Meyer 
Desalination Plant by the Montecito Water District. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime  
 Report:  None anticipated 
  



 

4/8/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

CLOSED SESSIONS (CONT’D) 

25. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Acting Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly Bargaining Unit, Police 
Management Association, and Firefighters Association, and regarding salaries 
and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and confidential 
employees. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



Agenda Item No.  1 

File Code No.  410.01 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service through 
April 30, 2014. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1980, the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City 
Service.  Service award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service.  
Those employees achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins in 
front of the City Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
April 30, 2014. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: April 2014 Service Awards 
 
PREPARED BY: Myndi Hegeman, Administrative Specialist 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
 

 
 
 
 

APRIL 2014 SERVICE AWARDS 
April 8, 2014 Council Meeting 

 
 
 
5 YEARS 
 
Luke Pico, Wastewater Collection Systems Operator I, Public Works Department 
Benjamin Spencer, Water Treatment Plant Operator, Public Works Department 
 
 
10 YEARS 
 
Paul Lopez, Streets Maintenance Worker I, Public Works Department 
 
 
15 YEARS 
 
Kathleen Goo, Commission Secretary, Community Development Department 
Melinda Jackson, Administrative Specialist, Public Works Department 
Kimberly Thaler-Strange, Administrative Specialist, Public Works Department 
Jill Zachary, Assistant Parks & Recreation Director, Parks & Recreation Department 
 
 
30 YEARS  
 
Alex Altavilla, Police Captain, Police Department 



PROCLAMATION

Fair Housing Month
April 2014

WHEREAS, 2014 marks the 5ftyear of California ‘sfair housing laws, the
46th year of the federal Fair Housing Act, and the 3]S! year of the City of
Santa Barbara ‘s Housing Discrimination Ordinance, and

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara ‘s Housing Discrimination
Ordinance was enacted to ensure that a fair choice of rental housing was
available to all individuals regardless of race, color, religion, sex, age,
marital status, national origin, familial status, mental or physical disability,
sexual orientation, or ancestiy; and

WHEREAS, despite the local, state and federal laws on the books, reports
ofdiscrimination in housing continues; and

WHEREAS, during the month of April, interested parties from both the
private and public sectors willparticipate in a national effort to promotefair
housing; and

WHEREAS, as part of the City’s participation in Fair Housing Month,
notices will placed on the City News page directing residents to information
about the City’s Fair Housing and Rental Housing Mediation Task Force
programs and an announcement will be placed in the City Newsletter.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, HELENE SCHNEIDER, by virtue of the
authority vested in me as Mayor of the City ofSanta Barbara, California, do
hereby proclaim April as FAIR HOUSING MONTH and urge all citizens
to understand and exercise their right to equal housing opportunity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Santa Barbara,
California. to be ixed this 8Sh day ofApril 2014.

*7
/ HELENE SCHNEIDER

Mayor



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 
APR 08 2014 #3 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 18, 2014 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. (The Finance 
Committee and Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not meet 
on this date). 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Gregg Hart, Frank Hotchkiss, Cathy Murillo, 
Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Ariel Pierre 
Calonne, Deputy City Clerk Sarah Fox. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Sandra Nash; Steve Reynalds; Clint Orr, The California County Dance 
Foundation; Brandon Morse; Phil Walker; Bill Martin; Donald Cobb. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 6) 
 
The titles of the resolution and ordinance related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Rowse/White to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive further reading and approve the minutes 
of the regular meeting of March 4, 2014, and the special meeting of March 6, 
2014. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

2. Subject:  Joint Use Field Scheduling And Monitoring Agreement (570.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
enter into an agreement with the Santa Barbara Unified School District (SBUSD) 
for Field Scheduling and Monitoring. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,739 (March 18, 2014, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 
 

3. Subject:  Initiate Local Coastal Program (LCP) Update  (650.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 

the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Initiating a Local Coastal Program 
Update;  

B. Increase appropriations and revenues by $123,000 in the Miscellaneous 
Grants Fund for the California Coastal Commission LCP Planning Grant 
Award to partially fund the LCP Update; and 

C. Authorize the Community Development Director to execute a City 
Professional Services Agreement with Bolton Strategic Planning, in an 
amount not to exceed $65,000, for planning consultant services to 
supplement staff to complete the project. 

 
Documents: 

- March 18, 2014, report from the Acting Community Development Director. 
- Proposed Resolution. 
- Affidavit of Publication. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- April 2, 2012, letter from Nancy Boeseke Brock. 
- May 11, 2012, letter from Nancy Brock. 
- March 11, 2014, letter from Rafael Franco. 
- March 12, 2014, letter from Joanna Morgan and Stan Krome. 
- March 17, 2014, letter from Gregory M. Smith. 
- March 18, 2014, letter from Bruce Peterson. 
- March 18, 2014, letter from the League of Women Voters of Santa 

Barbara. 
 

 (Cont’d) 



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

3. (Cont’d) 
 
Public comment was opened and closed at 2:18 p.m.  No one wished to speak. 

  
 Action:  Approved the recommendations; Resolution No. 14-012; Agreement No. 

24,740. 
 
4. Subject:  Increase In Appraisal Services For The Cabrillo Boulevard Bridge 

Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize an increase in the extra services 
amount with Schott & Company for real estate appraisal services for the Cabrillo 
Boulevard Bridge Replacement Project, Contract No. 388237, in the amount of 
$10,000, for a total project expenditure authority of $50,000. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 18, 2014, report from the Public 
Works Director). 

5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For A Lease Agreement With Shoreline 
Beach Café (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Ten-Year Lease Agreement 
with Two Five-Year Options Dated as of March 18, 2014, with Kevin Boss, Steve 
Marsh, and Beachrok, Inc, a California Corporation, Doing Business As Shoreline 
Beach Café, at an Average Initial Base Rent of $14,342.06 Per Month, Allocated 
Seasonally, for the 5,095 Square Foot Restaurant Located at 801 Shoreline 
Drive, Effective April 17, 2014. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5648; Agreement No. 
24,741. 

NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 13, 2014, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

7. Subject: Mission Canyon Community Plan (650.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Mission Canyon 
Community Plan for the Unincorporated Mission Canyon Area, Repealing 
Council Resolution No. 84-159 Regarding the Mission Canyon Specific Plan, and 
Making Environmental Findings Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality 
Act. 
 
Documents: 

- March 18, 2014, report from the City Planner/Acting Community 
Development Director. 

- Proposed Resolution. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 
- November 2013 Mission Canyon Community Plan Final Environmental 

Impact Report. 
- December 2013 Mission Canyon Community Plan. 

 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Zoning Supervisor Renee Brooke, City Planner/Acting Community 
Development Director Bettie Weiss. 

- Members of the Public:  Rosie Dyste, Santa Barbara County Planning 
Department; Lisa Burns, Upper East Association. 

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Hotchkiss to approve the recommendation; 

Resolution No. 14-013. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 

 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

8. Subject:  Police Department Update (520.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police 
Chief regarding the Santa Barbara Police Department. 
  
Documents: 

- March 18, 2014, report from the Police Chief. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
(Cont’d)



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

8. (Cont’d) 
 
Speakers: 

- Staff:  Police Chief Camerino Sanchez, Deputy Police Chief Frank Mannix, 
City Attorney Ariel Pierre Calonne. 

- Members of the Public:  Brandon Morse; Kathy Swift, People Organizing 
for the Defense and Equal Rights of Santa Barbara Youth; Keith Terry, 
YStrive; J.P. Herrada.  

 
 Discussion: 
 The Police Chief and Deputy Chief provided updates on the City’s crime 

trends and the Police Activities League/Explorers program.  They also 
discussed the collaboration between the Police Department’s Beat 
Coordinators and the Community Action Commission and local 
elementary schools.  Finally, Staff highlighted the new look of the 
Compstat report system and the recent Employee Recognition Service 
Awards.  Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Stage I Drought Update (540.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an update on the status of the current 
drought. 

Documents: 
- March 18, 2014, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  Acting Water Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark, Water 
Resources Supervisor Alison Jordan. 

- Member of the Public:  Phil Walker. 
 
Councilmember Francisco left the meeting at 4:22 p.m. and returned at 4:32 p.m.   
 
 Discussion: 

 The Acting Water Resources Manager provided updates about the current 
drought situation and outlook, the City’s water purchase options, and 
drought response capital projects, including a recycled water system, 
groundwater support services and projects, desalination plant project and 
the Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board (COMB) Pumping 
Project.  Staff is preparing for Stage II Drought declaration and is working 
on updating the Water Conservation Model as well as continuing drought-
focused outreach to the public.  Councilmembers’ questions were 
answered.



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

RECESS 
 

4:52 p.m. – 5:01 p.m. 
  

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT (CONT’D) 

10. Subject:  Contract For Modeling Services For Drought Water Rates (540.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Contract for Modeling 

Services for Drought Water Rates in the amount of $36,798 to Raftelis 
Financial Consultants, Inc. (RFC); and  

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to 
$10,000 to cover cost increases that may result from necessary change 
orders for additional unforeseen modeling work by Raftelis Financial 
Consultants, Inc. 

 
Documents: 

- March 18, 2014, report from the Public Works Director. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
 Speakers: 

 Staff:  Water System Manager Catherine Taylor, City Administrator James 
Armstrong, Water Resources Supervisor Alison Jordan, Acting Water 
Resources Manager Joshua Haggmark. 

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Hart to approve the recommendations; Contract 

No. 24,742. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous voice vote. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 

- Councilmember Murillo reported on her attendance at the Special Olympics 
basketball tournament, More Mesa Preservation Group symposium and the 
Mesa Village meeting, where they discussed traffic issues. 

- Councilmember Rowse reported on the recent Downtown Parking Committee 
meeting, where they discussed various parking fees and presented their budget 
with reports that their operations are making a profit and some reserves are 
being used for Capital Improvement Projects.   

- Mayor Schneider, as part of her role on the Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments as Vice Chair of the Coastal Rail Coordinating Council, reported 
that she would be traveling to Sacramento to attend the first State Senate Rail 
Committee Hearing.



3/18/2014 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

RECESS 
 
The Mayor recessed the meeting at 5:21 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Agenda Item No. 11, and she stated that no reportable action is 
anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

11. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, 
Acting Administrative Services Director, regarding negotiations with the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly Bargaining Unit, Police 
Management Association, and Firefighters Association, and regarding salaries 
and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and confidential 
employees. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 
 

 Documents: 
  March 18, 2014, report from the Acting Administrative Services Director. 
 
 Time: 
  5:21 p.m. – 5:48 p.m.  All Councilmembers were present. 
 
 No report made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 5:48 p.m.  
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SARAH FOX 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 



 1 APR 08 2014 #4 
550.08 

ORDINANCE NO._______ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE 
BY AMENDING CHAPTER 17.36 OF TITLE 17 
PERTAINING TO PARKING IN THE WATERFRONT 
PARKING LOTS. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  Section 17.36.010 of Chapter 17.36 of Title 17 

of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as 

follows:   

17.36.010 Parking in Waterfront Parking Lots. 

A. WATERFRONT PARKING LOTS.  Waterfront Parking Lots shall 

mean all parking lots managed and maintained by the Waterfront 

Department, including Leadbetter Parking Lot, Harbor West 

Parking Lot, Harbor Parking Lot, Garden Street Parking Lot, Palm 

Park Parking Lot, Cabrillo West Parking Lot, Cabrillo East 

Parking Lot and Stearns Wharf. 

B. HARBOR PARKING LOT.  The Harbor Parking Lot shall mean the 

Waterfront Parking Lot bounded on the east by West Beach, on the 

West by Harbor Way, on the north by Shoreline Drive and Cabrillo 

Boulevard and on the south by Marinas 2, 3, 4 and the small-boat 

launch ramp. 



  
 

 

2 
 

C. PARKING FEES AND PERMITS.  No person shall park a vehicle 

in the Waterfront Parking Lots without having paid or paying the 

required parking fee. Parking fees and the permit system for 

Waterfront Parking Lots shall be established by resolution of 

the City Council. 

D. PAY AND DISPLAY PARKING MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS.  

When entering Waterfront Parking Lots operated by a Pay and 

Display Parking Management System, the owner or operator of a 

vehicle entering the lot must purchase a receipt from a Pay and 

Display Parking Management System machine in accordance with 

instructions and requirements posted on the machine.  Such 

receipt shall be prominently displayed on the driver’s side 

dashboard in such a manner that the date and expiration time of 

the receipt are readily visible from the exterior of the 

vehicle. Any owner or operator of a vehicle who fails to 

purchase or properly display a valid receipt purchased from a 

Pay and Display Parking Management System machine shall pay a 

fee as described by City Council Resolution. 

SECTION 2.  Section 17.36.040 of Chapter 17.36 of Title 17 

of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as 

follows: 



  
 

 

3 
 

Section 17.36.040 72-Hour Vehicle Parking Limit in Parking 

Lots. 

A. 72-HOUR VEHICLE PARKING LIMIT IN WATERFRONT PARKING LOTS. 

Except as provided in Subsection B, no person who owns, or has 

possession, custody or control of any vehicle shall park, stop 

or leave the vehicle in the same parking space in any of the 

Waterfront Parking Lots in excess of a period of seventy-two 

(72) consecutive hours. 

B. 72-HOUR VEHICLE PARKING LIMIT IN HARBOR PARKING LOT. 

No person who owns, or has possession, custody or control of any 

vehicle shall park, stop or leave the vehicle in the  Harbor 

Parking Lot in excess of a period of seventy-two (72) 

consecutive hours, except persons with valid permits or prepaid 

permits as established by City Council Resolution, under the 

following circumstances: 

  1. Vehicles owned by harbor slip holders who have also been 

issued a valid Waterfront slip-holder's parking permit will be 

allowed unlimited parking in the Harbor Parking Lot, providing 

that such vehicles are currently registered with the California 

Department of Motor Vehicles and are fully operational. 

  2. Any person wishing to park a vehicle in the Harbor 

Parking Lot over the seventy-two (72) hour limit may be allowed 



  
 

 

4 
 

to do so if the vehicle owner registers with the Waterfront 

Parking office prior to leaving the vehicle in the Harbor 

Parking Lot. 

 SECTION 3.  Section 17.36.050 of Chapter 17.36 of Title 17 

of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as 

follows: 

17.36.050 Penalties for Vehicle Parking Over 72 Hours in Parking 

Lots. 

A. PENALTIES FOR VEHICLE PARKING OVER 72 HOURS IN WATERFRONT 

PARKING LOTS. 

In the event a vehicle is parked, stopped or left standing in  

any of the Waterfront Parking Lots, except the Harbor Parking 

Lot pursuant to the provisions of Section 17.36.040B, in excess 

of a period of seventy-two (72) consecutive hours, the vehicle 

may be cited and the vehicle may be removed from the Waterfront 

Parking Lots by any member of the Police Department authorized 

by the Chief of Police in the manner and consistent with the 

requirements of the California Vehicle Code. 

 



  
 

 

5 
 

B. PENALTIES FOR VEHICLE PARKING OVER 72 HOURS IN HARBOR 

PARKING LOT. 

In the event a vehicle is parked, stopped or left standing in 

the Harbor Parking Lot in excess of a period of seventy-two (72) 

consecutive hours, does not have a valid slip holder parking 

permit, and has not been registered with the Waterfront parking 

office in advance, the vehicle may be cited and removed from the 

Harbor Parking Lot by any member of the Police Department 

authorized by the Chief of Police may in the manner and 

consistent with the requirements of the California Vehicle Code. 

 



COUNCIL ADOPTION DRAFT 4/8/14 
 

 1 APR 08 2014 #5 
 640.02 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SECTIONS 28.87.170 
AND 28.90.050 OF THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO FENCES, 
SCREENS, WALLS AND HEDGES. 

 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 28.87.170 of Chapter 28.87 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is deleted 
in its entirety and readopted to read as follows: 
 
28.87.170 Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges. 
 
 A.  DEFINITIONS.  As used in this Section 28.87.170, the following terms and phrases shall 
have the indicated meanings: 
   1.   Arbor.  An open structure typically constructed of latticework or metal that often provides 
partial shade or support for climbing plants, sometimes referred to as a trellis or pergola. An arbor 
is not considered an accessory building. 
  2.   Fence.  An upright structure serving as an enclosure, barrier, or boundary or that 
visually divides or conceals a parcel, usually made of posts, boards, wire, or rails. 
   3.   Hedge.  A row of closely planted shrubs, bushes, or any other kind of plant material that 
forms a boundary or substantially continuous visual barrier. 
   4.  Parkway.  An area between the curb and sidewalk in a fully improved right of way, 
typically landscaped. 
   5.   Screen.  Vegetation, including but not limited to trees, shrubs, bushes, and other plantings, 
that visually divides or conceals a parcel. 
   6.   Wall.  An upright structure of masonry, wood, plaster, or other building material serving 
to enclose, divide, or protect an area. 
 B.  GENERAL RULES.  The following guidelines and standards apply in any zone within the 
City: 
   1.   Guidelines. The Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, as adopted by resolution 
of the City Council, shall provide direction and guidance to decision makers and City staff in 
connection with applications reviewed pursuant to this Section.  
   2.   Required Reduction for Safety.  If the height of any fence, screen, wall or hedge 
obstructs the sightlines required for the safe operation of motor vehicles, the Public Works Director 
(or Director’s designee) may declare the fence, screen, wall or hedge to be a public nuisance and 
require the reduction of the height of the fence, screen, wall or hedge in order to provide for the safe 
operation of motor vehicles. 
   3.   Height Measurement.  The height of a fence, screen, wall or hedge shall be measured in 
a vertical line from the lowest point of contact with the ground directly adjacent to either side of the 
fence, screen, wall or hedge to the highest point of the fence, screen, wall or hedge along said 
vertical line. 
   4.   Separation.  Unless there is a horizontal separation of at least five feet (5') between a 
fence, screen, wall or hedge, the combined height of a fence, screen, wall or hedge and any adjacent 



2 
 

fence, screen, wall or hedge shall be measured from the lowest point of the lowest such fence, 
screen, wall or hedge to the highest point of other fences, screens, walls or hedges. 
   5.   Schools.  A chain link or open mesh type fence of any height necessary to enclose an 
elementary or high school site may be located and maintained in any required yard. 
   6.   Barbed Wire, Concertina Wire, Sharp Wire or Points.  No barbed wire or concertina 
wire shall be used or maintained in or about the construction of a fence, screen, wall or hedge along 
the front or interior lot lines of any lot, or within three feet (3') of said lot lines.  No sharp wire or 
points shall project at the top of any fence or wall less than six feet (6') in height. 
 C. RULES APPLICABLE TO FENCES AND WALLS ON RESIDENTIALLY ZONED 
PARCELS.  On parcels zoned A-1, A-2, A-3, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4, the following 
standards apply to fences and walls: 
   1.   Required Setbacks.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no fence or wall 
located in the required setbacks shall exceed a height of eight feet (8’).  
   2.   Front Lot Lines.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no fence or wall located 
within ten feet (10') of a front lot line shall exceed a height of three and one-half feet (3-1/2').  
   3.   Driveways.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no fence or wall exceeding a 
height of three and one-half feet (3-1/2') shall be located within a triangular area on either side of a 
driveway as follows: 
    a.   When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street improved with a sidewalk and a 
parkway, the triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of ten feet (10') from the side of a 
driveway and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. 
    b.   When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street without a sidewalk or parkway, the 
triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of twenty feet (20') from the side of a driveway and 
ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. 
   4.   Corner Lots.  Within the required “Intersection Sight Distance”, as depicted in the 
Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, no fence or wall may obstruct the sightlines 
required for the safe operation of motor vehicles.  This paragraph does not apply to parcels located 
adjacent to intersections controlled by an all-way stop.   
   5.   Guardrails.  A guardrail may extend above the maximum height limit for a fence or wall 
without requiring an exception or modification, only to the minimum extent required for safety by 
the California Building Code, and only if the guardrail is predominately transparent. 
   6.   Decorative Elements.  Notwithstanding the above provisions, decorative elements not 
wider than nine inches (9”) by nine inches (9”), such as pilaster caps, finials, posts, lighting 
fixtures, or similar decorative features as determined by the Community Development Director (or 
the Director’s designee), may exceed the maximum height of any fence or wall by not more than 
twelve inches (12”), provided such features are spaced not less than six feet (6’) apart, measured 
on-center.  
   7.  Entryway Arbors.  Notwithstanding the above provisions, one entryway arbor, 
substantially open (no solid walls or roof) and not exceeding a maximum of eighteen (18) square 
feet in area and eight feet (8’) in height, is permitted in any front yard. The square footage of the 
arbor shall be determined by the area located within the rectangle formed around the posts of the 
arbor or the roof portion of the arbor, whichever dimension is larger. This exception shall only 
apply to an entryway arbor used in combination with and attached to a fence or wall. No arbor shall 
be located on a street corner in conflict with the provisions of Section 28.87.170.C.4. 



3 
 

 D. RULES APPLICABLE TO SCREENS AND HEDGES ON RESIDENTIALLY ZONED 
PARCELS.  On parcels zoned A-1, A-2, A-3, E-1, E-2, E-3, R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4, the following 
standards apply to screens and hedges: 
   1. Required Setbacks.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no screen or hedge 
located in the required setbacks shall exceed a height of eight feet (8’).  
   2. Front Lot Lines.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no screen or hedge 
located within ten feet (10') of a front lot line shall exceed a height of eight feet (8').   
   3. Driveways.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no screen or hedge exceeding a 
height of three and one-half feet (3-1/2') shall be located within a triangular area on either side of a 
driveway as follows: 
    a. When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street improved with a sidewalk and a 
parkway, the triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of ten feet (10') from the side of a 
driveway and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. 
    b. When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street without a sidewalk or parkway, the 
triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of twenty feet (20') from the side of a driveway and 
ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. 
   4. Corner Lots.  Within the required “Intersection Sight Distance”, as depicted in the 
Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, no screen or hedge may obstruct the sightlines 
required for the safe operation of motor vehicles.  This paragraph does not apply to parcels located 
adjacent to intersections controlled by an all-way stop.   
 E. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINOR EXCEPTIONS. 
   1. Exceptions to the Fence and Wall Standards by the Community Development 
Director.  The Community Development Director (or the Director’s designee) may grant minor 
exceptions, as specified in the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, to Paragraphs C.1, 
C.2, C.5, C.6, and C.7 above, if the Community Development Director finds that: 
    a.   If the subject fence or wall is located on, or within the required setback of, an interior 
property line, the adjacent property owner(s) that share a common property line nearest to the fence 
or wall have agreed to the requested exception; 
    b.   The granting of such exception will not create or exacerbate an encroachment into the 
necessary sightlines for safe operation of motor vehicles; 
    c.   As applicable, the subject fence or wall will be compatible with other similarly situated 
and approved structures in the neighborhood; and 
    d.   The granting of such exception will not be detrimental to the use and enjoyment of other 
properties in the neighborhood. 
   2. Exceptions to the Screen and Hedge Standards by the Community Development 
Director.  The Community Development Director (or the Director’s designee) may grant minor 
exceptions, as specified in the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, to Paragraphs D.1 
and D.2 above, if the Community Development Director finds that: 
    a. If the subject screen or hedge is located on, or within the required setback of, an interior 
property line, the adjacent property owner(s) that share a common property line nearest to the 
screen or hedge have agreed to the requested exception; 
    b. The granting of such exception will not create or exacerbate an encroachment into the 
necessary sightlines for safe operation of motor vehicles; 
    c. The screen or hedge will be compatible with the character of the neighborhood (the 
Community Development Director may seek advice from the appropriate design review body when 
considering this finding);  



4 
 

    d. The proposed height of the screen or hedge will respect the height limitation applicable 
to structures for the protection of solar access as specified in Section 28.11.020 of this Code; and 
    e. The granting of such exception will not be detrimental to the use and enjoyment of other 
properties in the neighborhood. 
   3. Exceptions to Corner Lot and Driveway Sightline Standards by the Public Works 
Director.  The Public Works Director (or the Director’s designee) may grant minor exceptions, as 
specified in the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, to Paragraphs C.3, C. 4, D.3 and 
D.4 above, if the Public Works Director finds that: 
    a. The granting of such exception will not create or exacerbate an encroachment into the 
necessary sightlines for safe operation of motor vehicles; and 
    b. The granting of such exception will not be detrimental to the use and enjoyment of the 
other properties in the neighborhood. 
 F.  NONCONFORMING.  Any fence, screen, wall or hedge which is nonconforming to the 
provisions of this section and which existed lawfully on January 10, 1957 (the effective date of the 
ordinance adopting the provisions of this section) may be continued and maintained, provided there 
is no physical change other than necessary maintenance and repair in such fence or wall, except as 
permitted in other sections of this title.  A hedge shall be determined to be nonconforming by the 
Community Development Director upon receipt of sufficient evidence indicating that the hedge 
existed in its present location on January 10, 1957.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no more than 
ten percent (10%) of the length of a nonconforming fence or wall may be replaced within any 
twelve-month period, unless: 1) such fence or wall is a significant structure or feature associated 
with a designated City Landmark or Structure of Merit and the extent of repair or maintenance 
occurs pursuant to Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 22.22.070; or 2) such fence or wall is 
necessary to retain or support soil in a vertical or near vertical slope of earth.  If a nonconforming 
fence, screen, wall or hedge has been determined to be a safety hazard by the Public Works 
Director, the Public Works Director (or Director’s designee) may declare the fence, screen, wall or 
hedge to be a public nuisance and require the reduction of the height of the fence, screen, wall or 
hedge in order to provide for the safe operation of motor vehicles. 
 G.  RELATIONSHIP WITH THE VIEW DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS. The fact that a 
hedge or screen does not violate the standards set forth in this Section 28.87.170 or the fact that a 
property owner has received an administrative exception or modification from the standards set 
forth in this Section for a hedge or  screen shall not preclude another property owner from alleging 
an unreasonable obstruction of a view and availing himself or herself of the protections and 
procedures of the City’s View Dispute Resolution Process found in Chapter 22.76 of this Code.   
 
SECTION 2.  Section 28.90.050 of Chapter 28.90 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
amended to read as follows: 
 
28.90.050 Landscaping and Lighting.   
 
 1. GENERAL.  In an effort to encourage the development of more attractive parking lots in 
commercial, industrial, and multiple-family use areas, to provide for attractive and durable 
screening between such parking lots and adjoining areas, and to lessen the effect of commercial and 
industrial uses upon adjoining residential uses, the following requirements shall be met.  Landscape 
plans shall be prepared by an architect or landscape architect registered in the State of California, 
unless said requirement is waived by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks 



5 
 

Commission if the property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another 
landmark district or if the structure is a designated City Landmark, in projects containing fewer than 
twenty (20) parking spaces.  The landscaping standards set forth below are required for all parking 
areas, parking lots, automobile service stations and automobile service stations/mini-markets except 
for one- or two-family dwellings. 
 2. FENCES AND WALLS.  Where any parking area is for commercial, multiple-family 
residential, or industrial use and the parking area or driveway abuts property used for residential 
purposes, it shall be separated therefrom by an approved wall or fence at least six (6) feet in height, 
except no fence or wall shall exceed a height of three and one-half feet (3-1/2') within a triangular 
area on either side of a driveway as follows: 
    a. When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street improved with a sidewalk and a 
parkway, the triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of ten feet (10') from the side of a 
driveway and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. 
   b. When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street without a sidewalk or parkway, 
the triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of twenty feet (20') from the side of a driveway 
and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line.  The design of the wall or fence shall be subject to 
approval by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the 
property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the 
structure is a designated City Landmark, said walls or fences may be lowered or eliminated in 
proportion to the degree of screening provided by differences in elevation, mounding, existing 
planting, and other similar factors. 
 3. PERIMETER PLANTERS.  Where such parking areas and/or driveways abut a street, a 
planting area at least five (5) feet in depth shall be provided and an ornamental wall or fence three-
and-one-half (3-1/2) feet in height shall be provided, except if the planting area is eight (8) feet or 
greater in depth and suitable screen planting is provided, the ornamental fence or wall may be 
omitted.  Where parking areas or driveways abut a neighboring building or a property line not 
adjoining a street, a planting area at least five (5) feet in depth shall be provided.  The Architectural 
Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located within El 
Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the structure is a designated City 
Landmark, may reduce or waive the requirement regarding the five (5) foot planting area where 
alternative landscaping and designs are presented that result in landscaping and designs that are 
equally effective. 
 4. INTERIOR PLANTERS.  In addition to the perimeter planters, there shall be planting areas 
to relieve the expanse of paving.  Said interior planters shall be at least four (4) feet in width, and 
shall be located in such a way that there will be not more than eight (8) parking spaces without an 
intervening planter.  Said planters shall have trees and either shrubs or ground cover.  The 
Architectural Board of Review, or Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located within 
El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the structure is a designated 
City Landmark, may reduce or waive the requirement regarding the four (4) foot interior planter 
where alternative landscaping and designs are presented that result in landscaping and designs that 
are equally effective. 
 5. GRADING.  Grading should be utilized as much as possible to screen parking lots, by 
lowering or raising the parking area or by providing earth mounds or berms.  If approved by the 
Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the property is located 
within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the structure is a 
designated City Landmark, mounding or berms may be substituted for an ornamental wall or fence. 



6 
 

 6. ORNAMENTAL WALLS OR FENCES.  Ornamental walls or fences shall be subject to 
approval by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the 
property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the 
structure is a designated City Landmark, and shall be constructed of materials compatible with 
adjacent buildings and surroundings. 
 7. PLANTING.  Planting shall consist of trees, shrubs and ground cover.  The use of drought 
tolerant plants is encouraged, as is the use of flowering vines on fences and walls.  Trees shall be 
planted on a minimum ratio of one (1) tree per five (5) parking spaces, with at least two-thirds of 
the trees fifteen (15) gallon size or larger, and the balance not less than five (5) gallon. 
 8. CURB PROTECTION.  Planters adjoining vehicular traffic areas shall be protected by 
concrete curbs or the equivalent, as approved by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic 
Landmarks Commission if the property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or 
another landmark district or if the structure is a designated City Landmark.  The minimum 
dimensions listed herein may include the protecting curb. 
 9. RETAINING WALLS.  Retaining walls shall be set back at least three (3) feet from parking 
areas and driveways and the footing design shall allow for appropriate planting in such intervening 
spaces. 
 10. PARKING LOT LIGHTING.  Parking lot light fixtures placement shall be subject to 
approval by the Architectural Board of Review, or the Historic Landmarks Commission if the 
property is located within El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or another landmark district or if the 
structure is a designated City Landmark. Excessive glare shall not be permitted and the lights shall 
be arranged to reflect light away from adjoining residential property and streets. 
 11.  IRRIGATION PLAN.  A sprinkler system or drip irrigation system designed to provide 
complete coverage of all planted areas is required. 



 1 APR 08 2014 #5 
640.02 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA TO APPROVE FENCES, 
SCREENS, WALLS AND HEDGES GUIDELINES 
CONSISTENT WITH SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL 
CODE SECTION 28.87.170 

 
 
WHEREAS, on April 8, 2014, the City of Santa Barbara adopted Municipal Code 
Ordinance Amendments related to the allowed location and height of fences, screens, 
walls and hedges on private property;  
 
WHEREAS, maintaining fair and consistent application of regulations within the City is 
an important goal; 
 
WHEREAS, one of the key tenets to adopting the amended regulations related to 
fences, screens, walls and hedges is to provide clarity and flexibility in their application; 
 
WHEREAS, the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines clarify certain aspects 
of the regulations best explained in layperson’s terms, diagrams and pictures; 
 
WHEREAS, the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines describe and depict 
how regulations are applied in unique circumstances and provide parameters for which 
exceptions to the standards may be considered by staff; 
 
WHEREAS, under the provisions of Article 19, Section 15305 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; the adoption of guidelines for the 
implementation of regulations related to fences, screens, walls and hedges has been 
determined by staff to qualify for a Categorical Exemption. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT: 
 
The Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines, attached hereto as an Exhibit, are 
hereby adopted.    

 
 



 

City of Santa Barbara 

Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 2014 

EXHIBIT 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 1 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 

Purpose of the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines 

The Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines have been developed to assist in the 
implementation of Santa Barbara Municipal Code Section 28.87.170. These guidelines explain, 
in user-friendly terms and diagrams, the application of the standards in various situations and 
provide criteria for circumstances that may qualify for Administrative approval of exceptions 
to the standards. 
 
Relationship to Other Documents 

• Relationship to the Zoning Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance (Title 28 of the 
Municipal Code) contains standards to which development must comply. In the event 
of a conflict between these Guidelines and the Municipal Code, the Code 
requirements prevail. These Guidelines are intended to augment the Municipal Code 
by providing additional detail and some examples of methods available to comply with 
the Code. 

• Relationship to Other Guidelines. Many other City Guidelines provide direction 
regarding physical development, architectural style, site design and landscaping. The 
Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines are compatible with, and are not meant 
to contradict or take the place of, other applicable Guidelines. For example, the 
Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines primarily address the allowed location 
and height of fences, screens, walls and hedges. The exact material, color, width and 
style of any of those elements may be subject to other guidelines (e.g., Single Family 
Design Board General Design Guidelines and Meeting Procedures), as applicable. 

 
  



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 2 
 

GUIDELINES 

Measuring Height  

Per SBMC §28.87.170.B.3, the height of a fence, 
screen, wall or hedge shall be measured in a 
vertical line from the lowest point of contact 
with the ground directly adjacent to either side 
of the fence, screen, wall or hedge to the highest 
point of the fence, screen, wall or hedge along 
said vertical line. [Figure 1] 

Horizontal Separation 
Per SBMC §28.87.170.B.4, if there is a horizontal 
separation of at least five feet (5’) between 
fences, screens, walls or hedges, the height shall 
be measured separately for each fence, screen, 
wall or hedge. The horizontal separation shall be 
measured from the “back” face of the lower 
fence, screen, wall or hedge to the “front” face of 
the higher fence, screen, wall or hedge. [Figure 2] 

Also per SBMC§28.87.170.B.4, if there is a horizontal separation less than five feet (5’) 
between fences, screens, walls or hedges, the height shall be measured as the cumulative 
vertical distance from the lowest point of the lowest fence, screen, wall or hedge to the 
highest point of other fences, screens, walls or hedges. The horizontal separation shall be 
measured from the “back” face of the lower fence, screen, wall or hedge to the “front” face of 
the higher fence, screen, wall or hedge. [Figures 3 through 5]  
 
  

Figure 1 

Height = B 
 
 

   
 
 

 

Figure 3 Figure 2 

Height = H 
 
 

Height = A 
 
 

≥ 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Retaining Walls 
Where fences, screens, walls or hedges are located on retaining walls, the portion of the 
retaining wall above finished grade shall be considered as part of the overall height of the 
fence, screen, wall or hedge. 

Guardrails 

Per SBMC §28.87.170.C.5, a guardrail may extend above the maximum height of a fence or 
wall, but only to the minimum extent required for safety by the California Building Code 
(CBC Section 1013.2). To qualify for this exception to the height limit, safety guardrails 
themselves must be predominantly transparent. Some examples of guardrails that meet the 
intent of “predominantly transparent” are shown in Figures 6 through 8, below.  

 

   
 
 

 

Figure 4 Figure 5 

Figure 6 Figure 7 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 4 
 

Guardrails or similar features proposed voluntarily to address an abrupt change in grade or 
perceived safety issue, and not explicitly required by the CBC, may exceed the height limit, 
subject to Administrative review and approval, and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Guardrails that are not predominantly transparent (Figure 9) may exceed the height limit if 
necessary to achieve consistency with the architectural style of the site, subject to 
Administrative review and approval, and will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Driveways 

Per SBMC §28.87.170.C.3 and D.3, no fence, screen, wall or hedge exceeding a height of three 
and one-half feet (3-1/2') shall be located within a triangular area (also referred to as “visibility 
triangle” or “sightline”) on either side of a driveway, as described in the following scenarios. 

When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street improved with a sidewalk and parkway, 
the triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of ten feet (10') from the side of a driveway 
and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line [Figure 10].  
  

  

S
TR

E
E

T 

Figure 8 Figure 9 

Figure 10 

P
ar

kw
ay

 

S
id

ew
al

k 

Fr
on

t L
ot

 L
in

e 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 5 
 

Figure 11 provides an example of how this provision may apply to a driveway not aligned 
perpendicularly to the street, which occurs in many locations throughout the community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

When a driveway directly abuts a portion of a street without a sidewalk or parkway, the 
triangle is measured on two sides by a distance of twenty feet (20') from the side of a driveway 
and ten feet (10') back from the front lot line. [Figure 12] 

 

 

 

  

 

S
TR

E
E

T 

Figure 12 

S
TR

E
E

T 

Figure 11 

Fr
on

t L
ot

 L
in

e 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 6 
 

Corner Lots 

Per SBMC §28.87.170.C.4 and D.4, the height and location of fences, screens, walls, or hedges 
located within the required “Intersection Sight Distance” (see Figure 13) shall be evaluated by 
Public Works Staff on a case-by-case basis. The required sight distance is established based 
on legal vehicle speed and the position of the driver’s eye in relation to the intersection. 
Fences, screens, walls or hedges located adjacent to intersections controlled by an all-way 
stop are not subject to additional height restrictions pursuant to this subsection. Use of this 
template does not preclude the need for additional visibility due to site-specific conditions. 

  

Figure 13 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 7 
 

Entryway Arbor 

An entryway arbor is intended to provide a 
decorative gateway to the property and define 
the pedestrian entrance from the street. To 
meet the provisions of SBMC §28.87.170.C.7, 
an entryway arbor must be used in 
combination with, and attached to, a fence or 
wall. A free-standing arbor or similar element 
is subject to the provisions of SBMC 
§28.87.062 (Setback, Open Yard, Common 
Outdoor Living Space, and Distance Between 
Main Buildings Encroachment). 

The square footage of the arbor shall be 
determined by the area located within the 
rectangle formed around the posts of the 
arbor or the roof portion of the arbor, 
whichever dimension is larger, as shown in 
Figures 14 and 15. The height is measured from the lowest point of contact with the ground 
directly adjacent to the arbor to the highest point of the arbor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consistent with SBMC §28.87.170.C.7, an entryway arbor must be substantially open, with no 
solid walls or roof. Exceptions to this provision may be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, 
subject to Administrative review and approval. 

Gates or doors that meet the location and height limitations of SBMC §28.87.170 may be 
allowed within the frame of an entryway arbor. A gate or door may exceed the height limit, 
subject to Administrative review and approval, as long as the height, width, and visual 
transparency of the gate or door remain consistent with the intent to provide a welcoming 
entry feature to the property and does not obstruct sight lines for motorists, cyclists, or 
pedestrians.  

Figure 15 

Figure 14 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 8 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINOR EXCEPTIONS 

Pursuant to SBMC §28.87.170.E, the following minor exceptions to the subject standards may 
be considered for approval administratively by the Community Development Director or 
Public Works Director (or the Directors’ designee), if the necessary findings are made. If any 
of the required findings cannot be made, the owner/applicant has the option to request a 
Modification of the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges requirements, pursuant to SBMC 
§28.92.110.  

Exceptions to Height Limits 

Due to variations in lot size, configuration, and topography (both on- and off-site), flexibility 
in the height of fences, screens, walls or hedges may be warranted to allow an improvement 
similar to that enjoyed by other properties in the neighborhood. In all cases, the necessary 
sightlines for driveways and street corners must be met. Some examples of where exceptions 
may be considered within interior and front setbacks and along front lot lines, and potential 
conditions for approval, are described below. 

Interior Setbacks 

Within interior setbacks (ranging from 5 to 15 feet in residential zones), fences, screens, walls 
and hedges are limited to eight feet (8’) in height.  Fences and walls, may, upon granting 
Administrative approval, exceed the height limit within interior setbacks by no more than 
four feet (4’). Screens and hedges, may, upon granting Administrative approval, exceed the 
height limit within interior setbacks by no more than six feet (6’).  An owner/applicant who 
desires a fence or wall to extend more than 12 feet in height within an interior setback has the 
option to request a Modification of the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges requirements, 
pursuant to SBMC §28.92.110.  An owner/applicant who desires a screen or hedge to extend 
more than 14 feet in height within an interior setback has the option to request a 
Modification of the Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges requirements, pursuant to SBMC 
§28.92.110. 

Factors that may typically warrant special consideration and a possible exception include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

 An abrupt difference in elevation on either side of the fence, screen, wall or hedge 
 The presence of a retaining wall or series of retaining walls  
 The need to install a code-required security fence or wall around a pool 
 A desire for additional privacy or security, with the agreement of adjacent property 

owner(s)  

Methods to mitigate the actual or apparent height of the improvement, such as the following, 
are desirable and may be required as a condition of Administrative approval: 

 Provide adequate separation between vertical elements (e.g., retaining wall system) to 
allow space for plantings between the walls or fences. Refer to the Single Family 
Residence Design Guidelines for appropriate treatment of retaining walls. 

 Use vines or trellises and other climbing plants to screen the additional height 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 9 
 

 Incorporate visually transparent elements (e.g., wrought iron, forged steel tubing, 
wood pickets) 

 Use color and/or materials that soften the appearance of the fence or wall 
 Undulate or break up the wall or fence into sections, to minimize the overall 

continuous length 

Front Setbacks 

Within front setbacks (ranging from 10 to 35 feet in residential zones), fences, screens, walls and 
hedges are limited to eight feet (8’) in height. A fence, screen, wall or hedge, or combination 
thereof, located at least ten feet back from the front lot line may, upon granting Administrative 
approval, exceed the height limit within front setbacks by no more than four feet (4’). An 
owner/applicant who desires a fence, screen, wall or hedge to extend more than 12 feet in 
height within a front setback has the option to request a Modification of the Fences, Screens, 
Walls and Hedges requirements, pursuant to SBMC §28.92.110. 

Factors that may typically warrant special consideration and a possible exception include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 

 An abrupt difference in elevation on either side of the fence, screen, wall or hedge 
 The presence of a retaining wall or series of retaining walls  
 The need to install a code-required security fence or wall around a pool 
 A desire/need to secure a secondary front yard 
 A desire/need to buffer noise from a busy street 

Methods to mitigate the actual or apparent height of the improvement, as outlined above, are 
desirable and may be required as a condition of Administrative approval. 

Front Lot Lines 

Within ten feet (10’) of a front lot line, fences and walls are limited to three and one-half feet 
(3 ½’) in height, and screens and hedges are limited to eight feet (8’). A fence, screen, wall or 
hedge, or combination thereof, may, upon granting Administrative approval, exceed this 
height limit by no more than four feet (4’). An owner/applicant who desires a fence or wall 
extend more than 7 ½  feet in height, or a screen or hedge to extend more than 12  feet, within 
ten feet of a front lot line has the option to request a Modification of the Fences, Screens, 
Walls and Hedges requirements, pursuant to SBMC §28.92.110. 

Elements along front lot lines are typically much more visible to the public and, therefore, 
require additional scrutiny and consideration beyond approval by staff. This is reinforced by 
the fact that the Municipal Code (SBMC §22.69.020.C.8) requires review and approval by the 
Single Family Design Board for walls, fences or gates greater than 3 ½’ in height within front 
yards. Although the installation of screens or hedges may not in all cases trigger design 
review, as a matter of policy, Staff will refer to the appropriate design review board most 
applications for requests to exceed the height limit within ten feet of a front lot line.  

Factors that may typically warrant special consideration and a possible exception include, but 
are not limited to, the following: 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 10 
 

 An abrupt difference in elevation on either side of the fence, screen, wall or hedge, 
particularly if the elevation of the public right of way is above the elevation of the 
private property (see Figures 16 and 17 for examples). 

 The presence of a retaining wall or series of retaining walls  
 The need to install a code-required security fence or wall around a pool 
 A desire/need to secure a secondary front yard 
 A desire/need to buffer noise from a busy street 

Methods to mitigate the actual or apparent height of the improvement, as outlined above, are 
desirable and may be required as a condition of Administrative approval. 

When evaluating requests to exceed the height limit within ten feet of a front property line, 
the methodology for measuring the maximum height may differ from that stated in SBMC 
§28.87.170.B.3. In situations where no obvious public purpose would be served by measuring 
the height from the lowest point of contact with the ground directly adjacent to the fence, 
screen, wall or hedge, such improvement may instead be measured from the elevation of the 
nearest adjacent sidewalk or curb (Figure 16) or, where no sidewalk or curb exists, the 
elevation of the right-of-way surface nearest to the fence, screen, wall or hedge (Figure 17). 
This will typically apply in situations where the elevation of the street is above the elevation 
of the subject property and the most significant portion of the height is visible primarily to 
the property owner(s), and not the public.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exceptions for Decorative Elements 
Decorative elements (e.g., pilaster caps, finials, posts, lighting fixtures, or similar decorative 
features) in excess of the size and spacing allowed by SBMC §28.87.170.C.6 may, upon 
granting Administrative approval, be allowed if the general amount (in terms of volume) of 
encroachment into the height, over the length of the fence or wall is, on average, relatively 
the same as allowed by the Municipal Code. 

Street 
Street Sidewalk 

Figure 16 Figure 17 

Sidewalk Street 
Street 

Private Property Private Property 



City of Santa Barbara Fences, Screens, Walls and Hedges Guidelines  

 

 11 
 

The Code allows decorative elements not wider than nine inches (9”) by nine inches (9”) to 
exceed the maximum height of any fence or wall by not more than twelve inches (12”), 
provided such features are spaced not less than six feet (6’) apart, measured on-center. Two 
examples of generally equivalent exceptions include, but are not limited, to: 

• Pilasters that are twelve inches (12”) by twelve inches (12”) wide and that exceed the 
height limit by six inches (6”) and are spaced six feet (6’) apart 

• Lighting fixtures that are seven inches (7”) by seven inches (7”) wide and that exceed 
the height limit by fifteen inches (15”) and are spaced five feet (5’) apart 

DESIGN REVIEW 

The Municipal Code currently requires design review of certain applications for fences, walls 
or gates, as outlined below. In cases where an exception request triggers design review, staff 
will rely to a great extent on the appropriate advisory group to provide input on the aesthetics 
of an exception request prior to making a final Administrative decision on height. 

Single Family Design Board 

Pursuant to SBMC §22.69.020.C.7 and 22.69.020.C.8 (excerpts cited below), a building permit 
to construct, alter, or add to the exterior of a single family residential unit or related 
accessory structure (including fences and walls) on any lot shall be referred to the Single 
Family Design Board for design review if the permit involves the following:   

7. The construction, alteration or addition of a retaining wall that is six feet (6’) 
or greater in height, or  

8. The construction, alteration or addition of a wall fence or gate in the front yard 
of the lot that is greater than three and one-half feet (3 ½’) in height. 

Historic Landmarks Commission 

Pursuant to SBMC §22.22.130.A, no structure or real property in El Pueblo Viejo Landmark 
District or Brinkerhoff Avenue Landmark Districts shall be constructed, demolished, moved 
or altered on its exterior without the approval of the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC). 
Further, SBMC §22.22.130.D states that no natural feature (including landscaping) affecting 
the visual qualities of private property located in El Pueblo Viejo Landmark District or 
Brinkerhoff Avenue Landmark Districts shall be placed, altered or removed without the 
approval of the HLC. 

Architectural Board of Review 

Pursuant to SBMC §22.68.020.B, a building permit to construct, alter or add to the exterior of 
a duplex or multi-family residential buildings and related accessory structures (including 
fences and walls) shall be referred to the Architectural Board of Review for design review. 

 



Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No.  670.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Authorization For The Allocation Of Transportation Development Act 

Funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Authorizing the Filing of a Claim with the Santa Barbara County 
Association of Governments for Allocation of $69,742 in Transportation Development 
Act Funds for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Each year, the City is required to adopt a resolution authorizing the Public Works 
Director to file a claim for the City’s share of area-wide Transportation Development Act 
Funds.  The use of these funds is restricted to pedestrian and bicycle projects. 
 
The claim that will be submitted to the Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments for Fiscal Year 2015 includes $69,742 for pedestrian and bicycle facilities.  
The funds are available based on a formula previously agreed to by the County of Santa 
Barbara and the cities within the County.  Staff will use this money for bicycle and 
pedestrian projects, and as matching dollars when competing for state and federal 
bicycle and pedestrian grants. 
 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A 
CLAIM WITH THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY 
ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS FOR ALLOCATION 
OF $69,742 IN TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 
FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Development Act (TDA), as amended (Public Utilities 
Code Section 99220 et. seq.), provides for the allocation of funds from the Local 
Transportation Fund for use by eligible claimants for various transportation purposes; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the TDA, as amended, and pursuant to the 
applicable rules and regulations thereunder (21 Ca. Admin. Code Sections 6600 et. 
seq.), a prospective claimant wishing to receive an allocation from the Local 
Transportation Fund shall file its claim with the Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments (SBCAG). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.    The City’s Transportation Manager is authorized to execute and file an 
appropriate claim with SBCAG pursuant to the terms of the TDA, as amended, and 
pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, together with 
all the necessary supporting documents for an allocation of TDA funds in Fiscal Year 
2015. 
 
SECTION 2.    The authorized claim includes $69,742 for pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities. 
 
SECTION 3. A copy of this Resolution shall be transmitted to SBCAG in conjunction 
with the filing of this Claim. 



Agenda Item No.  7 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements For The Seven 

Months Ended January 31, 2014 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2014 Interim Financial Statements for the Seven 
Months Ended January 31, 2014. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% 
of the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary 
activity in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal 
Service Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Seven Months Ended 

January 31, 2014 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget

GENERAL FUND

Revenue 111,479,118    64,620,281      -                         46,858,837      58.0%
Expenditures 111,961,176    64,115,171      1,489,988          46,356,016      58.6%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (482,058)          505,110           (1,489,988)         

SOLID WASTE FUND

Revenue 19,927,443      12,019,347      -                         7,908,096        60.3%
Expenditures 20,047,668      11,366,130      420,435             8,261,104        58.8%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (120,225)          653,217           (420,435)            

WATER OPERATING FUND

Revenue 36,524,435      23,160,183      -                         13,364,252      63.4%
Expenditures 45,085,726      22,770,889      2,004,256          20,310,581      55.0%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (8,561,291)       389,294           (2,004,256)         

WASTEWATER OPERATING FUND

Revenue 17,907,479      10,686,808      -                         7,220,671        59.7%
Expenditures 19,048,006      9,190,929        1,576,019          8,281,058        56.5%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (1,140,527)       1,495,879        (1,576,019)         

DOWNTOWN PARKING

Revenue 7,420,709        4,628,731        -                         2,791,978        62.4%
Expenditures 8,575,236        4,654,813        384,901             3,535,523        58.8%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (1,154,527)       (26,082)            (384,901)            

AIRPORT OPERATING FUND

Revenue 15,751,093      9,054,924        -                         6,696,169        57.5%
Expenditures 16,571,531      8,874,073        540,573             7,156,885        56.8%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (820,438)          180,850           (540,573)            

GOLF COURSE FUND

Revenue 2,108,459        1,219,913        -                         888,546           57.9%
Expenditures 2,076,923        1,260,558        1,202                 815,162           60.8%
Addition to / (use of) reserves 31,536             (40,646)            (1,202)                

INTRA-CITY SERVICE FUND

Revenue 5,604,962        2,892,535        -                         2,712,427        51.6%
Expenditures 5,911,688        3,201,471        503,319             2,206,897        62.7%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (306,726)          (308,937)          (503,319)            

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Summary by Fund
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Page 1



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Summary by Fund
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

FLEET REPLACEMENT FUND

Revenue 2,758,201        1,568,715        -                         1,189,486        56.9%
Expenditures 5,134,991        831,388           638,926             3,664,676        28.6%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (2,376,790)       737,327           (638,926)            

FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

Revenue 2,576,502        1,524,300        -                         1,052,202        59.2%
Expenditures 2,650,739        1,326,648        133,794             1,190,297        55.1%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (74,237)            197,652           (133,794)            

SELF INSURANCE TRUST FUND

Revenue 5,960,947        3,472,799        -                         2,488,148        58.3%
Expenditures 6,022,747        3,640,919        314,363             2,067,466        65.7%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (61,800)            (168,120)          (314,363)            

INFORMATION SYSTEMS ICS FUND

Revenue 2,514,997        1,467,082        -                         1,047,915        58.3%
Expenditures 2,965,594        1,484,535        107,806             1,373,253        53.7%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (450,597)          (17,454)            (107,806)            

WATERFRONT FUND

Revenue 12,445,067      8,226,913        -                         4,218,154        66.1%
Expenditures 13,558,989      7,697,522        672,903             5,188,564        61.7%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (1,113,922)       529,391           (672,903)            

TOTAL FOR ALL FUNDS

Revenue 242,979,412    144,542,529    -                         98,436,883      59.5%
Expenditures 259,611,014    140,415,046    8,788,486          110,407,482    57.5%
Addition to / (use of) reserves (16,631,602)     4,127,483        (8,788,486)         

are obligations of each fund and must be reported at the beginning of each fiscal year. In addition, a corresponding appropriations entry must be made

in order to accommodate the 'carried-over' encumbrance amount. Most differences between budgeted annual revenues and expenses are 

due to these encumbrance carryovers.

** It is City policy to adopt a balanced budget. In most cases, encumbrance balances exist at year-end. These encumbrance balances are

Page 2



Annual YTD Remaining Percent Previous
Budget Actual Balance Received YTD

TAXES
Sales and Use 21,084,894     11,659,266     9,425,628       55.3% 11,423,589     
Property Taxes 25,475,500     14,042,156     11,433,344     55.1% 13,910,255     
Utility Users Tax 6,975,300       4,133,435       2,841,865       59.3% 4,029,915       
Transient Occupancy Tax 16,202,000     10,449,339     5,752,661       64.5% 9,336,438       
Business License 2,415,000       1,553,650       861,350          64.3% 1,580,585       
Real Property Transfer Tax 537,900          382,573          155,327          71.1% 445,445          

Total 72,690,594     42,220,420     30,470,174     58.1% 40,726,227     

LICENSES & PERMITS
Licenses & Permits 219,180          107,920          111,260          49.2% 115,885          

Total 219,180          107,920          111,260          49.2% 115,885          

FINES & FORFEITURES
Parking Violations 2,628,967       1,614,273       1,014,694       61.4% 1,517,272       
Library Fines 135,000          77,942            57,058            57.7% 75,690            
Municipal Court Fines 120,000          47,569            72,431            39.6% 65,234            
Other Fines & Forfeitures 250,000          208,265          41,735            83.3% 154,717          

Total 3,133,967       1,948,049       1,185,918       62.2% 1,812,913       

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY
Investment Income 676,267          326,937          349,330          48.3% 479,498          
Rents & Concessions 396,322          212,375          183,947          53.6% 235,201          

Total 1,072,589       539,311          533,278          50.3% 714,699          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Grants 706,016          1,047,207       (341,190)         148.3% 614,456          
Vehicle License Fees -                      39,945            (39,945)           100.0% 48,265            
Reimbursements 14,320            6,254              8,066              43.7% 13,932            

Total 720,336          1,093,405       (373,069)         151.8% 676,653          

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES
Finance 926,598          540,528          386,070          58.3% 511,136          
Community Development 4,480,075       2,371,906       2,108,169       52.9% 2,477,024       
Recreation 2,951,818       1,534,185       1,417,633       52.0% 1,423,164       
Public Safety 631,938          286,544          345,394          45.3% 326,287          
Public Works 5,661,288       3,319,034       2,342,254       58.6% 3,206,152       
Library 753,839          712,776          41,063            94.6% 621,452          
Reimbursements 4,293,383       2,514,568       1,778,815       58.6% 2,527,204       

Total 19,698,939     11,279,541     8,419,399       57.3% 11,092,419     

OTHER REVENUES
Miscellaneous 1,624,751       1,014,605       610,146          62.4% 1,736,651       
Franchise Fees 3,660,300       1,982,377       1,677,923       54.2% 1,943,363       
Indirect Allocations 6,292,740       3,670,765       2,621,975       58.3% 3,407,747       
Operating Transfers-In 2,365,721       763,887          1,601,834       32.3% 1,062,551       

Total 13,943,512     7,431,634       6,511,878       53.3% 8,150,312       

TOTAL REVENUES 111,479,118   64,620,281     46,858,837     58.0% 63,289,108     

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA

Interim Statement of Budgeted and Actual Revenues
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

General Fund

Page 3



YTD
Expended

Annual YTD Encum- Remaining and Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Encumbered YTD

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Mayor & City Council
MAYOR 770,723          410,766        29,609          330,348          57.1%

Total 770,723          410,766        29,609          330,348          57.1% 417,738        

City Attorney
CITY ATTORNEY 2,129,254       1,196,329     8,325            924,600          56.6%

Total 2,129,254       1,196,329     8,325            924,600          56.6% 1,191,579     

 Administration
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 1,587,391       927,242        109               660,040          58.4%
CITY TV 535,137          285,151        23,207          226,780          57.6%

Total 2,122,528       1,212,393     23,315          886,820          58.2% 1,083,887     

Administrative Services
CITY CLERK 475,090          271,166        11,241          192,683          59.4%
ADMIN SVCS-ELECTIONS 300,000          200,320        3,200            96,480            67.8%
HUMAN RESOURCES 1,412,691       676,263        14,928          721,500          48.9%
ADMIN SVCS-EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 14,447            2,610            -                   11,837            18.1%

Total 2,202,228       1,150,359     29,369          1,022,500       53.6% 925,471        

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
General Fund

Interim Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Finance
ADMINISTRATION 221,336          151,429        6,735            63,172            71.5%
TREASURY 510,731          238,455        14,600          257,676          49.5%
CASHIERING & COLLECTION 458,460          260,974        -                   197,486          56.9%
LICENSES & PERMITS 469,695          278,467        16,175          175,052          62.7%
BUDGET MANAGEMENT 430,198          241,805        -                   188,393          56.2%
ACCOUNTING 621,961          313,068        22,110          286,783          53.9%
PAYROLL 293,974          163,607        -                   130,367          55.7%
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 226,149          128,560        -                   97,589            56.8%
CITY BILLING & CUSTOMER SERVICE 684,788          306,876        140,822        237,089          65.4%
PURCHASING 639,289          323,956        649               314,684          50.8%
GENTRAL STORES 170,978          96,100          330               74,548            56.4%
MAIL SERVICES 109,740          63,763          330               45,647            58.4%

Total 4,837,299       2,567,061     201,752        2,068,486       57.2% 2,614,736     
 TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 12,062,032     6,536,908     292,369        5,232,755       56.6% 6,233,411     

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
CHIEF'S STAFF 1,035,400       605,569        -                   429,831          58.5%
SUPPORT SERVICES 690,977          379,279        2,288            309,410          55.2%
RECORDS 1,293,046       708,316        15,959          568,771          56.0%
COMMUNITY SVCS 1,035,807       586,508        4,330            444,969          57.0%
PROPERTY ROOM 213,001          110,286        389               102,326          52.0%

Page 4



YTD
Expended

Annual YTD Encum- Remaining and Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Encumbered YTD

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
General Fund

Interim Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
TRAINING/RECRUITMENT 483,113          266,167        6,608            210,338          56.5%
RANGE 1,268,968       741,042        51,438          476,487          62.5%
BEAT COORDINATORS 858,553          528,816        -                   329,737          61.6%
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 1,193,300       682,804        31,636          478,860          59.9%
INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION 4,994,432       3,052,250     -                   1,942,182       61.1%
CRIME LAB 155,092          83,422          -                   71,670            53.8%
PATROL DIVISION 15,795,703     9,184,055     107,621        6,504,028       58.8%
TRAFFIC 1,415,405       814,307        559               600,539          57.6%
SPECIAL EVENTS 831,095          755,270        -                   75,825            90.9%
TACTICAL PATROL FORCE 1,497,838       767,938        -                   729,900          51.3%
STREET SWEEPING ENFORCEMENT 340,916          197,247        -                   143,669          57.9%
NIGHT LIFT ENFORCEMENT 301,944          197,373        -                   104,571          65.4%
PARKING ENFORCEMENT 989,866          560,200        27,800          401,866          59.4%
COMBINED COMMAND CENTER 2,462,970       1,303,266     -                   1,159,704       52.9%
ANIMAL CONTROL 661,248          268,563        -                   392,685          40.6%

Total 37,518,674     21,792,677   248,629        15,477,368     58.7% 20,791,382   

Fire
ADMINISTRATION 816 274 459 994 16 989 339 291 58 4%ADMINISTRATION 816,274         459,994      16,989        339,291        58.4%
EMERGENCY SERVICES AND PUBLIC ED 294,891          170,363        -                   124,528          57.8%
PREVENTION 1,118,386       682,997        -                   435,389          61.1%
WILDLAND FIRE MITIGATION PROGRAM 199,013          102,571        3,947            92,494            53.5%
OPERATIONS 18,064,121     10,838,778   52,359          7,172,984       60.3%
ARFF 1,860,354       999,636        -                   860,718          53.7%

Total 22,353,039     13,254,339   73,295          9,025,405       59.6% 12,929,146   

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 59,871,713     35,047,016   321,924        24,502,772     59.1% 33,720,528   

PUBLIC WORKS
Public Works
ADMINISTRATION 1,049,511       468,344        8,785            572,382          45.5%
ENGINEERING SVCS 4,871,823       2,751,315     2,069            2,118,439       56.5%
PUBLIC RT OF WAY MGMT 1,042,862       592,122        1,406            449,334          56.9%
ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS 507,253          150,002        193,812        163,439          67.8%

Total 7,471,449       3,961,784     206,072        3,303,594       55.8% 3,860,984     

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 7,471,449       3,961,784     206,072        3,303,594       55.8% 3,860,984     

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Parks & Recreation 
PROGRAM MGMT & BUS SVCS 699,131          383,508        3,874            311,748          55.4%
FACILITIES 778,579          433,182        9,724            335,673          56.9%
YOUTH ACTIVITIES 954,403          666,950        8,739            278,714          70.8%
ACTIVE ADULTS 696,667          394,492        2,565            299,610          57.0%

Page 5



YTD
Expended

Annual YTD Encum- Remaining and Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Encumbered YTD

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
General Fund

Interim Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Parks & Recreation 
AQUATICS 1,251,951       771,831        35,380          444,740          64.5%
SPORTS 537,090          316,910        15,980          204,200          62.0%
TENNIS 274,749          166,288        -                   108,461          60.5%
NEIGHBORHOOD & OUTREACH SERV 1,027,181       663,859        -                   363,322          64.6%
ADMINISTRATION 627,767          365,768        1,731            260,268          58.5%
PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM 376,272          171,473        76                 204,723          45.6%
BUSINESS SERVICES 6,082              3,886            -                   2,196              63.9%
PARKS - OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 968,835          589,510        1,619            377,706          61.0%
GROUNDS MANAGEMENT 4,688,543       2,448,801     68,828          2,170,914       53.7%
FORESTRY 1,284,267       581,037        127,510        575,720          55.2%
BEACH MAINTENANCE 157,332          76,123          15,065          66,144            58.0%

Total 14,328,850     8,033,618     291,092        6,004,140       58.1% 7,723,673     

Library
ADMINISTRATION 460,433          259,577        -                   200,856          56.4%
PUBLIC SERVICES 2,607,620       1,402,206     -                   1,205,415       53.8%
SUPPORT SERVICES 1,617,031       955,153        17,786          644,092          60.2%

Total 4,685,084       2,616,936     17,786          2,050,363       56.2% 2,409,705     

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 19,013,934     10,650,553 308,878      8,054,502     57.6% 10,133,378 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Community Development
ADMINISTRATION 551,107          316,599        586               233,922          57.6%
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 48,420            23,694          -                   24,726            48.9%
CITY ARTS ADVISORY PROGRAM 437,260          403,248        -                   34,012            92.2%
RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION 184,566          111,436        -                   73,130            60.4%
HUMAN SERVICES 836,025          456,022        315,174        64,830            92.2%
HOUSING PRESERVATION AND DEV 44,645            12,082          15,724          16,839            62.3%
LONG RANGE PLAN & SPEC STUDY 905,914          485,684        351               419,879          53.7%
DEVEL & ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1,350,777       724,757        7,553            618,467          54.2%
ZONING INFO & ENFORCEMENT 1,264,867       688,602        1,353            574,912          54.5%
DESIGN REV & HIST PRESERVATION 1,100,803       580,167        991               519,645          52.8%
BLDG INSP & CODE ENFORCEMENT 1,147,440       621,169        347               525,924          54.2%
RECORDS ARCHIVES & CLER SVCS 563,562          292,512        8,300            262,750          53.4%
BLDG COUNTER & PLAN REV SVCS 1,302,478       734,678        10,366          557,434          57.2%

Total 9,737,864       5,450,651     360,744        3,926,468       59.7% 5,263,151     

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 9,737,864       5,450,651     360,744        3,926,468       59.7% 5,263,151     

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
Non-Departmental
DUES, MEMBERSHIPS, & LICENSES 22,272            23,940          -                   (1,668)             107.5%
TRANSFERS OUT 43,500            25,375          -                   18,125            58.3%

Page 6



YTD
Expended

Annual YTD Encum- Remaining and Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Encumbered YTD

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
General Fund

Interim Statement of Appropriations, Expenditures and Encumbrances
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
Non-Departmental
DEBT SERVICE TRANSFERS 350,746          307,680        -                   43,066            87.7%
CAPITAL OUTLAY TRANSFER 1,000,000       583,333        -                   416,667          58.3%
APPROP.RESERVE 359,658          -                   -                   359,658          0.0%
NON-DEPT - COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS 2,028,008       1,527,930     -                   500,078          75.3%

 Total  3,804,184       2,468,259     -                   1,335,925       64.9% 2,146,255     
TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 3,804,184       2,468,259     -                   1,335,925       64.9% 2,146,255     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 111,961,176   64,115,171   1,489,988     46,356,016     58.6% 61,357,707   

budget, budgetary compliance has been achieved. The City actively monitors the budget status of each department and takes measures to address

potential over budget situations before they occur.

For Enterprise and Internal Service Funds, the level of budgetary control is at the fund level. The City also monitors and addresses these fund

types for potential over budget situations. 

** The legal level of budgetary control is at the department level for the General Fund. Therefore, as long as the department as a whole is within

Page 7



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of 
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget

TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND

Revenue 506,204           305,505           -                       200,699           60.4%
Expenditures 506,204           344,109           -                       162,095           68.0%

Revenue Less Expenditures -                       (38,604)            -                       38,604             

CREEK RESTORATION/WATER QUALITY IMPRVMT

Revenue 3,367,572        2,144,712        -                       1,222,860        63.7%
Expenditures 5,433,182        3,118,206        388,008           1,926,968        64.5%

Revenue Less Expenditures (2,065,610)       (973,494)          (388,008)          (704,108)          

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

Revenue 1,853,369        354,303           -                       1,499,066        19.1%
Expenditures 2,167,813        228,594           180,990           1,758,228        18.9%

Revenue Less Expenditures (314,444)          125,708           (180,990)          (259,162)          

COUNTY LIBRARY

Revenue 1,962,864        1,223,196        -                       739,668           62.3%
Expenditures 2,159,695        1,179,715        19,610             960,370           55.5%

Revenue Less Expenditures (196,831)          43,481             (19,610)            (220,702)          

STREETS FUND

Revenue 11,270,852      6,767,127        -                       4,503,725        60.0%
Expenditures 15,897,321      6,053,322        1,100,390        8,743,609        45.0%

Revenue Less Expenditures (4,626,469)       713,805           (1,100,390)       (4,239,884)       

MEASURE A

Revenue 3,411,416        1,963,706        -                       1,447,710        57.6%
Expenditures 4,761,898        2,009,029        795,901           1,956,969        58.9%

Revenue Less Expenditures (1,350,482)       (45,323)            (795,901)          (509,259)          

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Special Revenue Funds
For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Page 8



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Service charges 19,210,027     11,573,907     -                    7,636,120       60.2% 10,565,167     
Other Fees & Charges 474,816          224,908          -                    249,908          47.4% 134,237          
Grants 20,000            -                      -                    20,000            0.0% 11,208            
Miscellaneous 222,600          220,532          -                    2,068              99.1% 93,628            

TOTAL REVENUES 19,927,443     12,019,347     -                    7,908,096       60.3% 10,804,240     

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 979,288          459,933          -                    519,355          47.0% 461,373          
Materials, Supplies & Services 18,258,021     10,582,195     418,835         7,256,991       60.3% 9,949,137       
Special Projects 585,988          282,824          1,600             301,564          48.5% 275,130          
Transfers-Out 50,000            29,167            -                    20,833            58.3% 29,167            
Capital Outlay Transfers 17,556            10,241            -                    7,315              58.3% 6,808              
Equipment 13,709            1,770              -                    11,939            12.9% 4,729              
Capitalized Fixed Assets 10,000            -                      -                    10,000            0.0% 641                 
Other 100,000          -                      -                    100,000          0.0% -                      
Appropriated Reserve 33,106            -                      -                    33,106            0.0% -                      

TOTAL EXPENSES 20,047,668     11,366,130     420,435         8,261,104       58.8% 10,726,985     

SOLID WASTE FUND

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

Page 9



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Water Sales- Metered 32,300,000      21,018,169      -                    11,281,831      65.1% 19,302,891      
Service Charges 506,500           385,311           -                    121,189           76.1% 404,553           
Cater JPA Treatment Charges 2,467,510        1,123,203        -                    1,344,307        45.5% 1,209,563        
Investment Income 534,400           317,938           -                    216,462           59.5% 358,152           
Rents & Concessions 22,872             13,342             -                    9,530               58.3% 13,342             
Reimbursements 673,153           252,660           -                    420,493           37.5% 707,837           
Miscellaneous 20,000             49,560             -                    (29,560)            247.8% 49,003             

TOTAL REVENUES 36,524,435      23,160,183      -                    13,364,252      63.4% 22,045,341      

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 8,333,163        4,438,020        -                    3,895,143        53.3% 4,352,421        
Materials, Supplies & Services 10,412,848      4,163,275        1,703,015      4,546,558        56.3% 4,078,441        
Special Projects 1,105,856        240,617           117,894         747,345           32.4% 318,755           
Water Purchases 8,016,230        4,751,024        141,272         3,123,934        61.0% 4,166,184        
Debt Service 5,596,539        2,627,143        -                    2,969,396        46.9% 2,805,959        
Capital Outlay Transfers 11,189,231      6,527,051        -                    4,662,180        58.3% 1,998,879        
Equipment 63,722             5,817               2,560             55,345             13.1% 19,431             
Capitalized Fixed Assets 215,312           16,294             39,515           159,503           25.9% 11,503             
Other 2,825               1,648               -                    1,177               58.3% 28,674             
Appropriated Reserve 150,000           -                       -                    150,000           0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 45,085,726      22,770,889      2,004,256      20,310,581      55.0% 17,780,247      

NOTE-These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

WATER OPERATING FUND

from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 

Page 10



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Service Changes 16,957,000      10,143,423      -                    6,813,577        59.8% 9,584,982        
Fees 732,579           435,487           -                    297,092           59.4% 325,494           
Investment Income 150,900           94,392             -                    56,508             62.6% 101,144           
Rents & Concessions 32,000             12,172             -                    19,828             38.0% 25,750             
Miscellaneous 35,000             1,334               -                    33,666             3.8% 28,593             

TOTAL REVENUES 17,907,479      10,686,808      -                    7,220,671        59.7% 10,065,963      

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 5,722,999        2,965,468        -                    2,757,531        51.8% 3,048,039        
Materials, Supplies & Services 6,760,640        3,423,191        1,536,113      1,801,336        73.4% 3,321,466        
Special Projects 465,500           61,212             -                    404,288           13.1% 4,020               
Debt Service 1,669,213        303,631           -                    1,365,582        18.2% 314,422           
Capital Outlay Transfers 4,154,727        2,423,591        -                    1,731,136        58.3% 1,750,071        
Equipment 97,044             6,128               38,531           52,385             46.0% 32,993             
Capitalized Fixed Assets 26,000             6,609               1,375             18,016             30.7% 5,809               
Other 1,883               1,098               -                    785                  58.3% 1,000               
Appropriated Reserve 150,000           -                       -                    150,000           0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 19,048,006      9,190,929        1,576,019      8,281,058        56.5% 8,477,820        

NOTE-These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

WASTEWATER OPERATING FUND

from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 

Page 11



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Improvement Tax 875,000           658,259           -                    216,741           75.2% 659,707           
Parking Fees 6,313,084        3,818,917        -                    2,494,167        60.5% 3,695,301        
Other Fees & Charges 1,000               2,117               -                    (1,117)              211.7% -                       
Investment Income 98,200             60,761             -                    37,439             61.9% 65,790             
Rents & Concessions 88,925             55,873             -                    33,052             62.8% 23,873             
Miscellaneous 1,000               7,428               -                    (6,428)              742.8% (1,380)              
Operating Transfers-In 43,500             25,375             18,125             58.3% 25,375             

TOTAL REVENUES 7,420,709        4,628,731        -                    2,791,978        62.4% 4,468,666        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 4,049,433        2,268,347        -                    1,781,086        56.0% 2,196,350        
Materials, Supplies & Services 2,108,134        1,084,438        120,105         903,591           57.1% 997,000           
Special Projects 531,852           244,431           260,795         26,626             95.0% 304,721           
Transfer-Out 303,064           176,787           -                    126,277           58.3% 173,321           
Capital Outlay Transfers 1,507,753        879,523           -                    628,230           58.3% 648,635           
Equipment 25,000             1,287               4,000             19,713             21.1% 1,921               
Appropriated Reserve 50,000             -                       -                    50,000             0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,575,236        4,654,813        384,901         3,535,523        58.8% 4,321,948        

NOTE-These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 
from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

DOWNTOWN PARKING FUND

Page 12



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Leases-Commercial/Industrial 4,472,500        2,503,568        -                    1,968,932        56.0% 2,603,594        
Leases-Terminal 5,189,964        2,944,984        -                    2,244,980        56.7% 2,863,153        
Leases-Non-Commercial Aviation 1,895,929        978,732           -                    917,197           51.6% 902,971           
Leases-Commercial Aviation 3,939,000        2,495,883        -                    1,443,117        63.4% 2,282,810        
Investment Income 111,100           71,295             -                    39,805             64.2% 74,341             
Miscellaneous 142,600           60,461             -                    82,139             42.4% 80,536             

TOTAL REVENUES 15,751,093      9,054,924        -                    6,696,169        57.5% 8,807,405        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 5,522,998        2,852,852        -                    2,670,146        51.7% 2,818,195        
Materials, Supplies & Services 7,441,870        3,960,124        539,738         2,942,008        60.5% 3,721,119        
Special Projects 863,000           260,135           -                    602,865           30.1% 337,429           
Transfer-Out 19,728             11,508             -                    8,220               58.3% 10,672             
Debt Service 1,817,106        1,066,778        -                    750,329           58.7% 571,869           
Capital Outlay Transfers 744,632           692,825           -                    51,807             93.0% 1,111,563        
Equipment 66,358             29,504             835                36,018             45.7% 16,816             
Other -                       347                  -                    (347)                 100.0% 1,161               
Appropriated Reserve 95,839             -                       -                    95,839             0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,571,531      8,874,073        540,573         7,156,885        56.8% 8,588,824        

NOTE-These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

AIRPORT OPERATING FUND

from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 

Page 13



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Fees & Card Sales 1,739,239        981,332           -                    757,907           56.4% 841,450           
Investment Income 8,800               5,841               -                    2,959               66.4% 5,893               
Rents & Concessions 332,520           198,763           -                    133,757           59.8% 168,888           
Miscellaneous 27,900             33,977             -                    (6,077)              121.8% 300                  

TOTAL REVENUES 2,108,459        1,219,913        -                    888,546           57.9% 1,016,531        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 1,022,332        590,479           -                    431,853           57.8% 592,584           
Materials, Supplies & Services 562,907           350,716           1,202             210,988           62.5% 331,006           
Debt Service 245,698           165,865           -                    79,833             67.5% 161,887           
Capital Outlay Transfers 242,086           152,633           -                    89,453             63.0% 92,384             
Equipment 3,000               -                       -                    3,000               0.0% 24,422             
Other 900                  864                  -                    36                    96.0% 847                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,076,923        1,260,558        1,202             815,162           60.8% 1,203,130        

NOTE-These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 
from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

GOLF COURSE FUND

Page 14



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Service Charges 2,530,773        1,476,284        -                 1,054,489        58.3% 1,258,084        
Work Orders - Bldg Maint. 2,592,140        1,320,372        -                 1,271,768        50.9% 1,806,989        
Grants 120,449           53,175             -                 67,274             44.1% 128,095           
Miscellaneous 361,600           42,704             -                 318,896           11.8% 64,464             

TOTAL REVENUES 5,604,962        2,892,535        -                 2,712,427        51.6% 3,257,632        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 3,462,955        1,899,945        -                 1,563,010        54.9% 1,864,750        
Materials, Supplies & Services 1,414,823        814,251           81,056        519,516           63.3% 650,287           
Special Projects 940,978           482,791           405,229      52,958             94.4% 586,032           
Equipment 15,000             -                       -                 15,000             0.0% 3,212               
Capitalized Fixed Assets 51,882             4,485               17,034        30,363             41.5% 186,178           
Appropriated Reserve 26,050             -                       -                 26,050             0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,911,688        3,201,471        503,319      2,206,897        62.7% 3,290,459        

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

INTRA-CITY SERVICE FUND

Page 15



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Vehicle Rental Charges 2,228,805        1,300,136        -                    928,669           58.3% 1,251,960        
Investment Income 122,300           73,309             -                    48,991             59.9% 81,930             
Rents & Concessions 233,978           136,487           -                    97,491             58.3% 130,901           
Miscellaneous 173,118           58,783             -                    114,335           34.0% 30,111             

TOTAL REVENUES 2,758,201        1,568,715        -                    1,189,486        56.9% 1,494,902        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 193,629           107,898           -                    85,731             55.7% 107,482           
Materials, Supplies & Services 3,061               2,097               -                    964                  68.5% 1,672               
Special Projects 1,161,400        13,761             11,900           1,135,739        2.2% -                       
Capitalized Fixed Assets 3,776,901        707,632           627,026         2,442,243        35.3% 453,936           

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,134,991        831,388           638,926         3,664,676        28.6% 563,090           

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

FLEET REPLACEMENT FUND

Page 16



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Vehicle Maintenance Charges 2,463,432        1,437,002        -                    1,026,430        58.3% 1,383,619        
Reimbursements 10,000             5,833               -                    4,167               58.3% 5,833               
Miscellaneous 103,070           81,464             -                    21,606             79.0% 44,668             

TOTAL REVENUES 2,576,502        1,524,300        -                    1,052,202        59.2% 1,434,120        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 1,280,067        707,159           -                    572,908           55.2% 708,863           
Materials, Supplies & Services 1,181,623        572,779           94,830           514,014           56.5% 680,759           
Special Projects 64,663             11,268             38,964           14,431             77.7% 13,464             
Debt Service 43,070             25,123             -                    17,947             58.3% -                       
Equipment 15,800             9,990               -                    5,810               63.2% 190                  
Capitalized Fixed Assets 48,623             329                  -                    48,294             0.7% -                       
Appropriated Reserve 16,893             -                       16,893             0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,650,739        1,326,648        133,794         1,190,297        55.1% 1,403,276        

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

Page 17



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Insurance Premiums 2,756,112        1,607,732        -                    1,148,380        58.3% 1,515,514        
Workers' Compensation Premiums 2,950,702        1,721,243        -                    1,229,459        58.3% 1,516,667        
OSH Charges 193,833           113,069           -                    80,764             58.3% -                       
Investment Income 60,300             27,178             -                    33,122             45.1% 40,360             
Miscellaneous -                       3,577               -                    (3,577)              100.0% 1,181               
Accel-Return of Premium -                       -                       -                    -                       100.0% 600,000           

TOTAL REVENUES 5,960,947        3,472,799        -                    2,488,148        58.3% 3,673,722        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 538,662           282,398           -                    256,264           52.4% 282,522           
Materials, Supplies & Services 5,483,919        3,358,454        314,363         1,811,102        67.0% 2,957,121        
Special Projects 100                  -                       -                    100                  0.0% -                       
Transfers-Out -                       -                       -                    -                       100.0% 207,671           
Equipment 66                    66                    -                    -                       100.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,022,747        3,640,919        314,363         2,067,466        65.7% 3,447,314        

**The Self Insurance Trust Fund is an internal service fund of the City, which accounts for the cost of providing workers' compensation, property and
liability insurance as well as unemployment insurance and certain self-insured employee benefits on a city-wide basis. Internal Service Funds charge
other funds for the cost of providing their specific services.

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

SELF INSURANCE TRUST FUND

Page 18



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Service charges 2,514,997        1,467,082        -                    1,047,915        58.3% 1,375,545        
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                    -                       100.0% 1,138               

TOTAL REVENUES 2,514,997        1,467,082        -                    1,047,915        58.3% 1,376,683        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 1,701,218        901,065           -                    800,153           53.0% 923,852           
Materials, Supplies & Services 874,806           316,773           97,784           460,249           47.4% 506,406           
Special Projects 18,500             305                  2,500             15,695             15.2% 3,319               
Transfers-Out -                       -                       -                    -                       100.0% 43,000             
Capital Outlay Transfers 212,000           123,667           -                    88,333             58.3% -                       
Equipment 23,484             21,381             7,521             (5,418)              123.1% 75,025             
Capital Fixed Assets 123,000           121,345           -                    1,655               98.7% -                       
Appropriated Reserve 12,586             -                       -                    12,586             0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,965,594        1,484,535        107,806         1,373,253        53.7% 1,551,602        

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

INFORMATION SYSTEMS ICS FUND

Page 19



Annual YTD Encum- Remaining Percent of Previous
Budget Actual brances Balance Budget YTD

REVENUES

Leases - Commercial 1,373,772        919,802           -                    453,970           67.0% 960,379           
Leases - Food Service 2,641,800        1,825,034        -                    816,766           69.1% 1,748,052        
Slip Rental Fees 4,122,293        2,419,125        -                    1,703,168        58.7% 2,375,248        
Visitors Fees 450,000           267,646           -                    182,354           59.5% 263,808           
Slip Transfer Fees 525,000           346,450           -                    178,550           66.0% 342,750           
Parking Revenue 2,009,800        1,532,774        -                    477,026           76.3% 1,279,957        
Wharf Parking 250,000           156,965           -                    93,035             62.8% 151,021           
Other Fees & Charges 236,435           150,270           -                    86,165             63.6% 142,633           
Investment Income 137,700           75,568             -                    62,132             54.9% 84,828             
Rents & Concessions 306,267           194,642           -                    111,625           63.6% 192,520           
Reimbursements -                       -                       -                    -                       100.0% 10,830             
Miscellaneous 392,000           338,636           -                    53,364             86.4% 154,410           

TOTAL REVENUES 12,445,067      8,226,913        -                    4,218,154        66.1% 7,706,436        

EXPENSES

Salaries & Benefits 5,866,308        3,298,819        -                    2,567,489        56.2% 3,292,025        
Materials, Supplies & Services 3,906,598        2,088,306        655,799         1,162,493        70.2% 1,989,655        
Special Projects 150,438           70,750             -                    79,688             47.0% 86,150             
Debt Service 1,843,880        1,300,999        -                    542,881           70.6% 1,226,865        
Capital Outlay Transfers 1,544,155        900,757           -                    643,398           58.3% 898,904           
Equipment 107,610           13,609             -                    94,000             12.6% 61,770             
Capital Fixed Assets 40,000             22,896             17,104           -                       100.0% -                       
Other -                       1,385               -                    (1,385)              100.0% 1,000               
Appropriated Reserve 100,000           -                       -                    100,000           0.0% -                       

TOTAL EXPENSES 13,558,989      7,697,522        672,903         5,188,564        61.7% 7,556,369        

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Interim Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Seven Months Ended January 31, 2014 (58.3% of Fiscal Year)

WATERFRONT FUND

from the operating fund is shown in the Capital Transfers. 
NOTE - These figures reflect the operating fund only. Though the capital fund is excluded, the current year contribution 

Page 20



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contracts For Design For On-Call Engineering Services For 

Groundwater Well Development  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Pueblo Water Resources, Inc., in the amount of $250,000 for on-
call hydrogeologic engineering design services for various groundwater well 
development projects, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $25,000 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and  

 
B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Kear Groundwater in the amount of $250,000 for on-call 
hydrogeologic engineering design services for various groundwater well 
development projects, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $25,000 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Santa Barbara relies on groundwater as one of the many potable water 
sources meeting the needs of its customers. There are several groundwater wells in the 
City that require rehabilitation or replacement in order to continue providing this 
supplemental water supply. There is increased need for these projects given the current 
drought conditions. The Engineering Division does not currently have the staff or 
expertise to prepare designs for the rehabilitation or relocation of these groundwater 
well projects. Staff proposes to hire two local hydrogeologic engineering firms to provide 
on-call services for two-year contracts to address this temporary workload issue. 
Depending on the severity of drought conditions, workload may exceed the capacity of 



Council Agenda Report 
Contracts For Design For On-Call Engineering Services For Groundwater Well 
Development  
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 

 
 

one contractor so a second contractor is recommended to make sure the City’s design 
services needs are met in a timely manner between both contractors.  
The cost of design services for each well project described below in the project 
description are anticipated to range from $50,000 to $100,000, which could result in 
capital projects with costs totaling $3,000,000 to $5,000,000. By proactively negotiating 
a time and materials contract, staff will be able to reduce overall administration costs 
and better meet water demands during this time of water scarcity.  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The scope of the proposed hydrogeologic engineering services includes evaluating and 
creating work plans or designs for the following: 
 

• Groundwater Supply Evaluation 
• High School Well Project 
• San Roque Park Well Project 
• Los Robles Well Project 
• Hope Well Project 
• Storage Unit  No. 1 Evaluation 
• City Hall Well Project 
• Vera Cruz Well Project 
• Ortega Well Project 
• Gibraltar Silt Wells 
• Well Site Evaluation 

 
 
DESIGN PHASE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute contracts 
with Pueblo Water Resources in the amount of $250,000, with extra services in the 
amount of $25,000; and with Kear Groundwater in the amount of $250,000, with extra 
services in the amount of $25,000, for a total amount of $550,000. Pueblo Water 
Resources and Kear Groundwater were selected as the top two candidates from a 
recent RFP process for similar design services. 
 
FUNDING 
 
There are sufficient appropriations in the Water Fund to cover these costs. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
During times of drought, the City’s groundwater supply plays an important role in 
providing a reliable local source of water to help meet demands.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contracts For Design For On-Call Engineering Services For Groundwater Well 
Development  
April 8, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 

 
 

PREPARED BY: Amanda Flesse, Supervising Civil Engineer/PM/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No.  9 
 

File Code No.  180.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of License Agreement With Santa Barbara Certified 

Farmers Market, Inc. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute a new License 
Agreement with the Santa Barbara Certified Farmers Market, Inc., for the operation of the 
Downtown Farmers Market located in the Cota Commuter Parking Lot at 119 East Cota 
Street, the Old Town Farmers Market located in the 500-600 Blocks of State Street, and 
the Coast Village Road Farmers Market located in the 1100-1200 Blocks of Coast Village 
Road. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Pursuant to various agreements, the Downtown Farmers Market has operated at the City’s 
Cota Street Commuter Lot site since 1978, at the Old Town Farmers Market on State 
Street site since 1989, and at the Coast Village Road Farmers Market site since 1994.   
 
Old Town Farmers Market and Downtown Farmers Market 
 
On January 8, 2009, the City of Santa Barbara’s Planning Commission adopted a 
resolution, which approved a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and established specific 
guidelines relating to both the Old Town Farmers Market on Tuesdays, and the Downtown 
Farmers Market on Saturdays.  
 
Coast Village Road Farmers Market 
 
On July 20, 2006, the Planning Commission adopted a resolution, approving a CUP, a 
Coastal Development Permit (CDP), and establishing specific guidelines relating to the 
periodic operation of the Coast Village Road Farmers Market.  The market at this location 
was allowed to operate on Fridays on a four-zone weekly rotational basis in the public 
street right of way fronting the 1100 and 1200 blocks of Coast Village Road. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License Agreement With Santa Barbara Certified Farmers Market, Inc. 
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

On October 3, 2013, the Planning Commission adopted a resolution (Attachment 1), 
requiring the approval of a new Coastal Development Permit to allow the Santa Barbara 
Certified Farmers Market, Inc. (Farmers Market) to operate on the 1100 and 1200 blocks 
of Coast Village Road.  A CUP was also required to allow continued operations of the 
State Street, Cota Commuter Lot, and Coast Village Road locations as the previous CUP 
expired after five years. Minor revisions to the Conditions of Approval were made by the 
Planning Commission (see Attachment 2).   
 
New License Agreement     
 
As a condition of the 2013 Resolution, a new License Agreement was required and is 
proposed to replace the current License Agreement.  
 
No operational changes are proposed in the new License Agreement. The important 
existing provisions that were retained, and the new conditions proposed in the License 
Agreement per the Resolution, are as follows: 
 
• The operation of the Old Town Farmers Market and the Downtown Farmers Market 

shall pay the City Parking and Business Improvement Area (PBIA) assessment 
related to downtown parking. 

 
• The operation of the Coast Village Road Farmers Market, in addition to any statutory 

sales tax revenue to the City, shall also pay a percentage of its gross sales to the City 
in the same manner and at the same time as the PBIA assessment being paid by the 
Old Town Famers market and the Downtown Famers Market. 

 
• All Farmers Market operations shall be responsible for all traffic and parking controls 

including, but not limited to, detour and parking control signs, flaggers, setup, take 
down, and maintenance of any barricades used. 

 
• The Farmers Market has submitted a Traffic Diversion and Pedestrian Safety Plan 

(Plan) for each site for a Public Works permit. The Plan has been approved by 
Transportation Planning staff, Public Works Engineering Land Development staff, 
and the Supervising Transportation Engineer. The Plan will provide for the Farmers 
Markets to be operated and maintained in a manner that protects the public, market 
patrons, and participants from unsafe traffic or vehicular risks associated with the 
licensed use of the City property to the fullest extent as reasonably possible.  

 
• Additionally, an important provision being proposed in the new License Agreement 

is that the insurance clause is being expanded with greater requirements to conform 
to the higher current standards of insurance required by the City’s Risk Manager. The 
new License Agreement includes all three market operations under one License 
Agreement. 

 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of License Agreement With Santa Barbara Certified Farmers Market, Inc. 
April 8, 2014 
Page 3 

 

The new License Agreement shall remain in force concurrently and indefinitely with the 
Planning Commission Resolution and the allowed permit uses, for all Farmers Market 
operations, as stated above, as long as the licensing conditions are maintained in good 
standing. The City may revoke the License Agreement in whole or part with fifteen days 
written notice to the Farmers Market. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. Planning Commission Resolution No. 013-13. 
 2. Planning Commission Minutes, October 3, 2013. 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/DT/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1

mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text
1



mjackson
Typewritten Text
2



mjackson
Typewritten Text
3



mjackson
Typewritten Text
4



mjackson
Typewritten Text
5



mjackson
Typewritten Text
6



mjackson
Typewritten Text
7



mjackson
Typewritten Text
8



mjackson
Typewritten Text
9



mjackson
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2

mjackson
Typewritten Text
1



mjackson
Typewritten Text

mjackson
Typewritten Text
2



mjackson
Typewritten Text
3



mjackson
Typewritten Text
4



mjackson
Typewritten Text
5



mjackson
Typewritten Text
6



mjackson
Typewritten Text
7



mjackson
Typewritten Text
8



Agenda Item No.  10 

File Code No.  550.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Execution Of A License Agreement For Parking Purposes At The 

Granada Garage 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a License Agreement with 
the Trustees of the Lesley J. Alexander Trust for use of three parking spaces within the 
Granada Garage for five years. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Granada Theater (Theater) is in the process of acquiring the neighboring properties 
necessary to construct the Paseo De Las Granadas Theater Project (Project) in the open 
parking area behind the Granada Garage and the Granada Theater.  The Project will 
include two two-car garages for the residential units on the upper floors of the theater, 
trash facilities, and a parking area for the buses and/or trucks associated with theater 
shows. When the Project is completed, the Theater proposes to transfer and dedicate to 
the City the parcel of real property where the Paseo De Las Granadas (Paseo) is located. 
(See area highlighted in red on the attached Vicinity Map.)  Prior to the dedication the 
Theater will install the necessary improvements to create safe pedestrian access from the 
Paseo at State Street to the Granada Garage. 
 
The Theater has asked the City to assist with a short term parking solution to facilitate 
acquisition of the neighboring private parking lot.  The parking lot is owned in part by the 
Trustees of the Alexander Trust (Alexander Trust).  The Theater needs to acquire the 
Alexander Trust’s interest in the parking lot in order to complete the Project.  The 
acquisition of this property interest and the subsequent dedication of the Paseo will 
ultimately result in the loss of three legal non-conforming parking spaces used by the 
Alexander Trust.  To this end, the Alexander Trust has requested that the City enter into a 
Parking License Agreement (Agreement) whereby the City would issue the Alexander 
Trust three monthly parking permits in the Granada Garage (Garage) for a term of five 
years.  The license agreement will not become effective, and the permits will not be 
issued, until recordation of the final subdivision map for the Paseo De Las Granadas 
Project.  Once the permits are issued, the permit holders will be allowed to park in 



Council Agenda Report 
Execution Of A License Agreement For Parking Purposes At The Granada Garage 
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

unassigned spaces in the basement or upper levels of the Garage on a first come, first 
served basis with the general public.     
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The value of three monthly parking permits in the Garage over a five year term is 
$27,900.  Since the Garage has the capacity to handle issuance of these three 
additional permits, the Downtown Parking Program will not realize an actual loss in 
revenue as a result of granting these permits.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vicinity Map 
 
PREPARED BY:  Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:   City Administrator's Office 



AS[

-J

N

0.

•1)

•0

C

S

£4NAa4
GAR4A

VICINITY MAP

DATE

DRAWN

EID NO

SCALE

SHEET

3/25/14

LY

N/A

1” = SD’

1 OF 1

ATTACHMENT



Agenda Item No.  11 
 

File Code No. 530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Rejection Of The Safe Routes To School Cleveland Project Bids 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council reject all bids for construction of the Safe Routes to School Cleveland 
Project and direct staff to re-bid the Project. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Safe Routes to School Cleveland Project (Project) consists of pedestrian and 
vehicular safety improvements at four intersections within the Eastside Neighborhood, 
including Clifton Street at Oak Street, Clifton Street at Salinas Street, Cacique Street at 
Salinas Street, and Santa Ynez Street at Eucalyptus Hill Road. All four of these 
intersections are on the suggested route to school for Cleveland Elementary School, as 
presented in the City’s Pedestrian Master Plan.  
 
The Project will improve safety at the four intersections in three ways.  First, new 
sidewalk access ramps will be constructed at the intersections of Clifton Street at Oak 
Street and at Santa Ynez Street at Eucalyptus Hill Road. Second, pedestrian safety 
lighting will be installed at the intersection of Clifton Street at Salinas Street. Finally, the 
intersection of Cacique Street at Salinas Street, which is currently offset approximately 
fifteen feet from north of the intersection to just south of the intersection, will be 
realigned and pedestrian safety lighting will also be installed at that location.    
 



Council Agenda Report 
Rejection Of The Safe Routes To School Cleveland Project Bids  
Page 2 
April 8, 2014 
 

 

 
CONTRACT BIDS AND REQUEST TO REJECT ALL BIDS 
 
A total of seven (7) bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. DPM Construction Company  

Camarillo, CA 
$150,565.00* 

2. V. Lopez Jr. & Sons 
Santa Maria, CA  

$196,030.50* 

3. Granite Construction 
Santa Barbara, CA  

$228,015.00 

4. Berry General Engineering 
Ventura, CA 

$258,993.00 

5. Lash Construction Inc.  
Santa Barbara, CA 

$259,862.00 

6. R. Burke Corporation  
San Luis Obispo, CA 

$279,661.00 

7. G. Sosa Construction, Inc. 
Orcutt, CA 

$330,900.00 

 
*corrected bid total 

 

 
 
After review of the bid proposals, staff believes it is in the best interest of the City to 
reject all bids so that the bid specifications pertaining to the qualification of bidders, 
construction phasing and durations, and temporary traffic control requirements may be 
revised to reflect the special needs of the Project.  Staff, therefore, recommends that 
Council exercise its authority under Charter section 519 and reject all bids.  The Project 
will promptly be re-bid and staff anticipates returning to Council in the next 60 to 90 
days for award of the new contract.  
 
SCHEDULE 
 
Construction is anticipated to start in early July 2014 and be complete by September 
2014.  The construction schedule requires some changes to the phasing in order to 
provide a safe route to Cleveland Elementary School once the children return from 
summer break. 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Rejection Of The Safe Routes To School Cleveland Project Bids  
Page 3 
April 8, 2014 
 

 

FUNDING  
 
This Project is funded by the Safe Routes to School Cycle 3 Grant and the Measure A 
Cycle 1 Grant. Staff has confirmed with Caltrans, the grant administrating agency, that 
the rejection of all bids does not affect the eligibility of the construction contract for grant 
reimbursement.  There are sufficient funds in the Streets Fund to cover the cost of this 
Project. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Civil Engineer/LY/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Rebecca J. Bjork, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Community and Media Relations, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Police Department Explorer Program Funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Police Department 
Explorer Program by $5,666. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On February 16, 2014, the Santa Barbara Police Department’s Youth Explorer Program 
held the 2nd Annual Menudo Festival to raise funds for the Explorer Program.  A total of 
$5,666 was earned from the event.  This money will be used to pay for travel and 
expenses associated with participation in multi-agency competitions and attendance in 
an Explorer Academy, as well as uniforms and equipment.   
 
The Explorer Program is a volunteer organization for young adults who have an interest 
in a career in law enforcement. The Santa Barbara Police Department’s Explorer post 
currently has 25 Police Explorers, ages 15-20, preparing for careers in law enforcement. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
These funds will be used to cover costs associated with the Explorer Program. 
 
PREPARED BY: Riley Harwood, Sergeant  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  13 

File Code No.  520.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  April 8, 2014 
 
TO:  Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:  Administration Division, Fire Department 
 
SUBJECT:    Sole Source Purchase Order For Versaterm, Inc., Computer 

Aided Dispatch Paging Module Software 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:     
 
That Council find it in the City’s best interest to waive the formal bid procedure as 
authorized by Municipal Code Section 4.52.070(k), and authorize the General Services 
Manager to issue a purchase order to Versaterm, Inc., for a Versadex CAD 7.3 Paging 
module in an amount not to exceed $35,000. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On July 7, 2012, the Carpinteria-Summerland Fire Protection District (CSFPD) submitted a 
grant application to the U.S. Department of Homeland Security (DHS) on behalf of 
CSFPD, the City of Santa Barbara Fire Department (SBFD) and the Montecito Fire 
Protection District (MFPD) for a grant under the 2012 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
Program. The requested  funds would be used for the procurement of communications 
equipment.  On April 6, 2013, the DHS awarded CSFPD a grant in the amount of 
$592,303, which includes a 20% local match of $118,461. The SBFD’s share of this grant 
is $431,467, which requires the SBFD to provide matching funds of $86,293 (20%).  
 
Through use of this federal grant, the SBFD has already obtained 98 personal-issue 
portable radios, vehicle chargers and speaker microphones at a cost of $396,467.  As 
such, $35,000 of the total grant, including the matching portion, remains unspent.  
 
The City is now ready to complete the final grant purchase with the acquisition of a 
Versadex Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) 7.3 Paging module.   This paging module is an 
add-on software package to the existing Versadex CAD system currently in use (since 
2007) by dispatchers in the 911emergency call center.  This paging module component 
increases the CAD system’s overall functionality and effectiveness by immediately 
notifying emergency personnel about significant events in the City such as large-scale 
disasters or multi-engine company responses. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
  Sole Source Purchase Order For Versaterm, Inc., Computer Aided Dispatch Paging 

Module Software 
 April 8, 2014 

Page 2 
 

 

Due to its proprietary nature, configuration and interface with the existing CAD system, the 
Versadex CAD 7.3 Paging module is the best option available to meet our information and 
communication requirements, and Versaterm Inc. is the only supplier that can provide it. 
Consequently, staff recommends waving formal bid procedures and authorizing the 
General Services Manager to issue a purchase order to Versaterm Inc. for the Versadex 
CAD 7.3 Paging module in an amount not to exceed $35,000. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The estimated total project cost for this paging module is $35,000. Funds have been 
previously appropriated to the Fire Department’s Operation Division for this expenditure.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Ronald Liechti, Administrative Services Manager  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Patrick McElroy, Fire Chief 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  14 

File Code No.  520.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administrative Services, Police Department 
 
SUBJECT: Bulletproof Vest Partnership Award 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Accept $17,731 from the U.S. Department of Justice’s 2013 Bulletproof Vest 

Partnership grant; and 
 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $17,731 in the Police 

Miscellaneous Grants Fund for the purchase of forty-six (46) bulletproof vests. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In May 2013, the Santa Barbara Police Department submitted an application to the U.S. 
Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, for 
their Bulletproof Vest Partnership grant.  This partnership grant provides 50% of the 
funding for the purchase of bulletproof vests for sworn officers responding to calls for 
service.   
 
On October 3, 2013, the Police Department was informed that they were approved to 
receive funding from the Bulletproof Vest Partnership grant through 2015, which will 
help to fund the purchase of approximately 46 bulletproof vests.  In order to receive the 
grant award, the Police Department is required to match fifty percent (50%) of the funds 
given by the Department of Justice. These matching funds were included in the 
Department’s Fiscal Year 2014 budget and will be included in the Fiscal Year 2015 
recommended budget.   
 
The Police Department requires all officers to wear a vest while on duty and issues all of 
its officers and reserve officers bulletproof vests as part of their standard safety 
equipment.  During Fiscal Year 2014, approximately 30 vests will be purchased with the 
remaining 16 vests to be purchased in Fiscal Year 2015.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The grant will reimburse the Police Department $17,731, and the Police Department will 
provide the 50% match as part of the Fiscal Year 2014 and 2015 budgets.   



Council Agenda Report 
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Award  
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

PREPARED BY: Marylinda Arroyo, Sergeant 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Camerino Sanchez, Chief of Police 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  15 

File Code No.  180.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014  
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative 

For Community Arts Workshop At 631 Garden Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
That Council approve a five-year lease agreement with the Santa Barbara Arts 
Collaborative for the development and use of City-owned property at 631 Garden Street as 
a Community Arts Workshop. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
City staff has negotiated with the Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative to prepare a five-
year lease agreement for the development and use of City-owned property at 631 
Garden Street as a Community Arts Workshop. The two buildings on site were most 
recently used as a recycling center and the site is currently vacant. The Community Arts 
Workshop will share site access with the adjacent Ortega Well Treatment Facility.  
The Community Arts Workshop will become the permanent home for Summer Solstice 
activities and a year-round resource for arts organizations to be used for workshops, 
exhibits, rehearsals, classes, and community meetings. For many years, Summer 
Solstice has been challenged with finding space to create costumes and floats and 
prepare for the annual parade, managing to secure temporary space each year without 
a permanent base. Performing arts and visual arts organizations have also lacked an 
affordable space for art creation, set design, rehearsals, and meetings. The Community 
Arts Workshop will provide a flexible space to meet the needs of these arts 
organizations. 
 
Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative 
The Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative was originally organized in 2007 as a 
subcommittee of the City Arts Advisory Committee to address the changing landscape 
of arts funding in Santa Barbara. The Arts Collaborative is now a 501 (c) 3 non-profit 
organization of artists and supporters committed to sustaining and growing all forms of 
the arts in Santa Barbara. The Collaborative is governed by a Board of Directors with 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative For Community Arts 
Workshop At 631 Garden Street 
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

representation from various constituency groups, including artists and arts organizations 
who wish to utilize the Community Arts Workshop. 
 
Lease Highlights 
The lease agreement was developed to facilitate the first phase of construction for the 
Community Arts Workshop. Key lease provisions are summarized below:  
  

• Rate: $1 per year; Arts Collaborative pays all utility expenses. 
 

• Term: 5 years, followed by the preparation of a 25-year lease upon completion of 
the following milestones which may take less than five years to complete: 
(a) Develop and implement a vapor mitigation plan for the north building to 

abate the risk of vapor intrusion in this building and enact the approved 
plan, in coordination with Santa Barbara County Environmental Health 
Services; 

(b) Complete construction documents and obtain required design review 
approvals and building permits to develop the site; 

(c) Clean and paint interior walls in both buildings by December 30, 2015; 
(d) Install signs identifying facility as Community Arts Workshop by December 

30, 2015; 
(e) Install two gates and secure the perimeter; 
(f) Upgrade electric service; and 
(g) Construct public restrooms in the north building and access to them. 

 

• Use Limitations: Soil contamination exists as a result of former leaking 
underground fuel tanks. Soil remediation activities did not remove all of the 
contamination. The County Environmental Health Services Department declared 
a closure of the LUFT (Leaking Underground Fuel Tank) site on January 30, 
2014. A Soils Management Plan was developed for the site and the County Fire 
Department provided potential vapor mitigation measures if the site is developed. 
Such measures could include passive venting or the installation of a vapor 
barrier. The Arts Collaborative must develop and implement the vapor mitigation 
measures, as approved by Santa Barbara County Environmental Health 
Services. 
The building at the south of the premises is structurally challenged and can only 
be used for storage until a structural evaluation is completed and corrections are 
made. Before the building can be used for any purpose, an electrical system 
evaluation must be completed and deficiencies corrected.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Proposed Lease Agreement With Santa Barbara Arts Collaborative For Community Arts 
Workshop At 631 Garden Street 
April 8, 2014 
Page 3 

 

• Permitted Uses: The site can only be used for Summer Solstice activities until 
vapor mitigation measures are implemented. Upon completion of vapor mitigation 
measures, the site can host other arts organizations for uses related to 
community arts. Both buildings must adhere to occupancy restrictions 
determined by the City’s Chief Building Official.  
 

• Sharing Site Access with Ortega Well Facility: The Arts Collaborative will 
share site access and maintain clearance for regular maintenance activities at 
the Ortega Well Treatment Facility. Construction and maintenance activities will 
be coordinated. 
 

• Performance Standards: The Arts Collaborative must allow the site to be 
occupied for Summer Solstice activities for a maximum of 90 days and, upon 
completion of the vapor mitigation measures, permit use of the site by other 
community arts organizations on a temporary basis.  

 
On January 27, 2014, Council voted to provide $300,000 in one-time capital funds for 
the first phase of work at the Community Arts Workshop. The Arts Collaborative intends 
to launch a fundraising campaign to further develop the site and operate the space.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Site Plan 
 
PREPARED BY: Nina Johnson, Assistant to the City Administrator 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



mhegeman
Typewritten Text
Attachment

mhegeman
Typewritten Text

mhegeman
Typewritten Text
 

mhegeman
Typewritten Text

mhegeman
Typewritten Text

mhegeman
Typewritten Text

mhegeman
Typewritten Text



Agenda Item No.  19 

File Code No.  570.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Parks and Recreation Department 
 
SUBJECT: Urban Forest Management Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Adopting the Urban Forest Management Plan. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara has a long history of municipal tree planting and a diverse 
urban forest. Today, Santa Barbara’s urban forest faces a number of challenges related 
to tree age, infrastructure constraints, species diversity, program funds, and community 
participation. The City developed the Urban Forest Management Plan (Plan) to provide a 
long-term guide for the preservation and enhancement of trees in Santa Barbara. Initiated 
in July 2012, the Plan provides the framework for the City’s urban forest, identifies key 
management issues, outlines goals, objectives, and actions, and proposes priorities for 
implementation.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
The City of Santa Barbara has a long history of municipal tree planting and a diverse 
urban forest. Initially spearheaded in the early 1900s through the horticultural and civic 
leadership of prominent City residents, it is estimated that the City's urban forest is 
currently comprised of more than 320,000 trees. City-owned trees along public streets 
and in parks and other public places are estimated to represent 20 percent of the urban 
forest. The remaining 80 percent is found on private and other public property. There 
are more than 450 species of trees on City property. Citywide canopy coverage is 
estimated to be 25.4 percent. 
 
Although the City has a Street Tree Master Plan (1977) and tree preservation policy 
guidance in the Municipal Code, General Plan, and other policy initiatives, Santa 
Barbara’s urban forest faces a number of challenges. In certain areas of the City, the 



Council Agenda Report 
Urban Forest Management Plan  
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

urban forest is aging, mature trees conflict with infrastructure, and species diversity is in 
decline. In addition, resources for the planting and care of trees and community 
participation in tree management are limited. The purpose of an urban forest 
management plan is to identify long-term preservation and enhancement objectives, 
address key management considerations including infrastructure constraints, confirm 
environmental, aesthetic, and community priorities, and effectively allocate public 
resources.   
 
In May 2012, the Parks and Recreation Department (Department) received a grant from 
the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) for the 
development of an Urban Forest Management Plan (Plan).   
 
Plan Development 
 
Plan development began in July 2012. Since then, the Department completed a case 
study of urban forest management plans, prepared a baseline tree canopy assessment 
and policy options analysis, and pursued extensive public discussion through community 
meetings, survey tools, City TV, web resources, and presentations to Boards and 
Commissions and community organizations.  A Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) with 
members from the City’s Parks and Recreation Commission, Street Tree Advisory 
Committee, and Planning Commission, as well as representatives from Southern 
California Edison, Santa Barbara Botanic Garden, and Santa Barbara Beautiful met 
throughout Plan development. The staff team included representatives from the Parks 
and Recreation, Community Development, Public Works, and Fire Departments as well 
as the City Attorney’s office. Over more than 18 months, a total of 32 meetings were held 
with the TAC, City staff, the Parks and Recreation Commission, Planning Commission, 
Architectural Board of Review (ABR), Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC), Single 
Family Design Review Board (SFDB), Street Tree Advisory Committee (STAC), and 
Neighborhood Advisory Committee (NAC). City Council received a status report on the 
progress of Plan development on August 13, 2013.  
 
Plan Organization 
 
Framework 
 
The Plan is organized in eight sections. The first four provide the framework for Santa 
Barbara’s urban forest, including its history, the benefits of trees, diversity and canopy 
coverage, and outline policy and public management considerations.  
 
Key Issues 
 
Section five presents key issues for urban forest management today and in the future. 
Developed through public meetings, a community survey, and extensive discussion with 
staff and City boards and commissions, the identification of tree-related key issues for the 
long-term management of Santa Barbara’s urban forest provides the foundation for the 



Council Agenda Report 
Urban Forest Management Plan  
April 8, 2014 
Page 3 

 

urban forest objectives and implementation actions. Key issues address street tree and 
park tree management, private tree maintenance, program funding, policy guidance, 
City organization functions, public participation and knowledge about trees, and 
environmental considerations.  
 
Vision and Mission 
 
The vision and mission illustrates the vision for Santa Barbara’s future urban forest and 
mission of the City’s Urban Forest Program. 
 

Vision:  Santa Barbara’s urban forest is healthy and diverse, and contributes to the 
community’s economic, environmental, and aesthetic vitality.  It is valued and cared 
for by the City and its citizens, and reflects our horticultural heritage. 

 
Mission:  Preserve, protect and enhance our trees, promote the benefits of trees, 
and foster a healthy and diverse urban forest. 

 
Goals 
 
The Plan includes the following goals:  
 
1. Elevate the importance of the urban forest. 
2. Continue Santa Barbara’s horticultural legacy. 
3. Promote a vibrant and healthy community. 
4. Foster awareness and appreciation of trees. 
 
Plan Objectives and Implementation Actions 
 
Fifteen Objectives and corresponding Implementation Actions of the Plan are organized 
under: 1) Tree Resource Management, 2) City Organization and Policy, and 3) 
Community Involvement.  Each Objective includes a discussion to provide context as 
well as support the need for each objective and the associated actions.  Implementation 
of any action will include policy, program and budget coordination as well as an 
assessment of long-term funding and data gathering needs, development of tools and 
programs, and staffing levels.   
 
Tree Resource Management 
 
Eight objectives and a number of actions focus on planning, planting, and maintenance, 
maximizing the economic, environmental and aesthetic benefits of the urban forest, and 
protecting Santa Barbara historic and specimen trees.   
 

• Objective 1 includes actions to trim trees more frequently citywide, develop multi-
year maintenance plans and address trees located under high voltage utility lines 



Council Agenda Report 
Urban Forest Management Plan  
April 8, 2014 
Page 4 

 

through formalized partnerships with Southern California Edison and other utility 
companies.   

• Objective 2 actions are specific to parkway trees and the surrounding infrastructure.  
Actions include revisions to infrastructure construction specifications, widening of 
parkways where feasible, development of parkway planting guidelines, providing 
strategic plans to address sensitive trees during drought conditions, enhancement 
of soil and use of permeable pavers where feasible.   

• Objectives 3 and 4 seek to increase tree canopy and optimize age and species 
diversity.  Actions include identifying and planting large or larger trees where 
feasible, completing a comprehensive inventory of vacant sites to determine which 
ones are viable for replanting, maintaining and/or increasing species diversity and 
partnering with local nurseries for the propagation of unique and desirable trees not 
commercially available.   

• Objective 5 includes actions that maximize economic, environmental and aesthetic 
benefits, including strategic plantings for shading and energy conservation, and 
developing street tree plans for major commercial corridors such as Milpas, Upper 
State, and De La Vina streets, among others. This objective also contains actions 
that seek to work with private landowners to minimize tree-infrastructure conflicts.   

• Objectives 6 and 7 are specific to park and facility trees. Actions under these 
objectives include development of a park tree replacement program, increased 
canopy cover, control of invasive species, use of native trees where appropriate, 
and riparian restoration in parks with creek habitats.   

• Objective 8 addresses historic and specimen trees.  Actions include revisions to the 
definition and criteria for designating these trees, clarification on guidance for 
maintenance and replacement of designated species, and increased maintenance.   

 
City Organization and Policy   
 
The Plan includes five objectives and 18 supporting actions that enhance the City’s 
investment in urban forest health and management, improve interdepartmental and 
interagency collaboration, elevate urban forest objectives in land development 
considerations, and ensure ordinances support urban forest management. Specific actions 
include:  
 

• Increase annual maintenance funding 
• Establish funding for community outreach and education 
• Establish an inter-departmental urban forest team to address tree management and 

coordinate tree review for land development projects 
• Implement annual staff, board and commission tree training program to review tree 

ordinances and Plan objectives 
• Update the Street Tree Master Plan 
• Develop a Park Tree Master Plan 
• Develop partnerships with organizations, businesses and the public school system 

to encourage tree health and plantings on private property 



Council Agenda Report 
Urban Forest Management Plan  
April 8, 2014 
Page 5 

 

Community Involvement   
 
Community involvement objectives and supporting actions focus on enhancing and 
expanding community participation and investment in the urban forest. Three objectives 
seek to enhance public awareness and expand public participation in urban forest 
preservation through actions such as:  
 

• Comprehensive tree education and technical assistance programs 
• Partnerships with organizations, businesses, and schools 
• Adopt-a-Block or Adopt-a-Tree programs 
• Urban forest stewardship projects 
• Community involvement in street tree designations, planting and maintenance 
• Collaboration with universities and colleges on urban forestry science 

 
Urban Forest Management Plan Implementation 
 
The final section of the Plan addresses some priorities for implementation and illustrates 
how the City already undertakes many of the urban forest management objectives. A 
detailed matrix outlines current actions that will continue and actions that will require 
additional resources in both the short and long term. As a 30+ year Plan, many actions will 
be implemented over an extended period of time. Implementation priorities are likely to 
vary based on City resources and community objectives. 
 
Some key considerations for priority implementation in the next two to five years address 
developing better tools to foster tree health and manage infrastructure, improving City 
management and coordination, and building community understanding of tree policies and 
enhancing public participation. Some examples include: 
 

• Expand resources to maintain existing trees 
• Revise parkway infrastructure specifications to minimize infrastructure conflicts and 

promote tree health 
• Update the Street Tree Master Plan 
• Develop and implement a comprehensive outreach and education program 
• Establish an interdepartmental urban forest team 

 
In addition, a key consideration in the short-term will be developing a drought 
management plan for the City’s public tree resources.  
 
Board and Commission Review and Recommendations 
 
From December 2013 to March 2014, the Department presented the proposed plan and 
received recommendations for Council adoption from the Street Tree Advisory Committee, 
Parks and Recreation Commission, Single Family Design Board, Architectural Board of 
Review, Historic Landmarks Commission, and the Planning Commission. A summary of 



Council Agenda Report 
Urban Forest Management Plan  
April 8, 2014 
Page 6 

 

Board and Commission comments and priorities for implementation is included as 
Attachment 2.  
 
Plan Outreach  
 
Community information tools to promote the Plan include a City TV Inside Santa Barbara 
video, printed materials, signage, website resources and presentations to community 
organizations.  
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Development of the plan was funded through a $71,092 grant from CAL FIRE.  Grant 
funds partially supported the staff time for plan development and project outreach tools. 
In addition to tree management funding allocated through the City’s annual budget 
process, grant resources will be pursued to support Plan implementation.   
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
In addition to quality of life and aesthetic community benefits, the City's urban forest 
provides energy conservation, water quality, air quality, and wildlife habitat benefits. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Urban Forest Management Plan 
 2. Summary of Board and Commission Priorities 
 
PREPARED BY: Jill E. Zachary, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



SANTA BARBARA 

URBAN FOREST 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

PRESERVING AND PROTECTING  

OUR COMMUNITY TREES 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2014 

jzachary
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1

jzachary
Typewritten Text

jzachary
Typewritten Text

jzachary
Typewritten Text

jzachary
Typewritten Text

jzachary
Typewritten Text



  



Acknowledgements 
 
On behalf of the City Parks and Recreation Department, we would like to thank the following 
people for their contributions to the development of the Urban Forest Management Plan. 
 
Parks and Recreation Department Staff 
Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director  
Jill Zachary, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director 
Tim Downey, Urban Forest Superintendent  
Mandy Burgess, Administrative Analyst 
Santos Escobar, Parks Manager 
 
Community Development Department  
Bettie Weiss, City Planner/Acting Community Development Director 
Jaime Limon, Senior Planner II 
Dan Gullet, Project Planner 
 
Public Works Department 
Rebecca Bjork, Public Works Director 
Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer 
Derrick Bailey, Transportation Engineer 
Rick Fulmer, Streets Manager 
Brian D’Amour, Project Engineer 
Browning Allen, Transportation Manager 
 
Fire Department 
Joe Poire, Fire Prevention Division Chief 
Ann Marx, Fire Inspector 
 
City Administration 
Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
Scott Vincent, Assistant City Attorney 
 
City Boards and Commissions 
Parks and Recreation Commission 
Planning Commission 
Historic Landmarks Commission 
Architectural Board of Review 
Street Tree Advisory Committee 
Single Family Design Review Board 
Neighborhood Advisory Committee 
 
City Council 
 
 



 
Technical Advisory Committee Members 
Lesley Wiscomb, Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
Charles Trentacosti, Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
Maury Treman, Street Tree Advisory Committee Member 
Duke McPherson, Street Tree Advisory Committee Member 
Mike Jordan, Planning Commissioner 
Robert N. Muller, Director of Research, Santa Barbara Botanic Garden 
Patrick Gladden, SCE Area Vegetation Manager, Southern California Edison 
Robert Adams, Landscape Architect, Santa Barbara Beautiful 
Beebe Longstreet, Parks and Recreation Commissioner 
 
Members of the Public 
The City wants to thank the engaged citizens and groups who participated in community 
meetings and surveys and provided valuable input.   
 
California Department of Forestry and Fire 
The development of the Urban Forest Management Plan was funded in part from a California 
Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) Urban and Community Forestry Grant. 
 



Santa Barbara Urban Forest Management Plan 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
I. Introduction          1 
 
 
II. Background          3 

 
 

III. Urban Forest Management        15 
 
 

IV. Policy Context for Urban Forest Management     19 
 
 

V. Santa Barbara Urban Forest Key Issues      32 
 
 

VI. Urban Forest Management Plan Vision and Mission    36 
 
 

VII. Urban Forest Plan Goals, Objectives and Implementation Actions  37 
 
 

VIII. Urban Forest Management Plan Implementation    48 
 

 
Glossary 
 
References 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 1 
 

I. Introduction 
 
Santa Barbara was once a largely treeless landscape of grassland and coastal wetlands 
with coast live oaks along canyons and hillsides and sycamores and willows lining the 
creeks.1  Today, an estimated 320,000 trees grow along city streets, in parks and on 
private property creating Santa Barbara’s urban forest.2  The urban forest is one of 
Santa Barbara’s most visible and vibrant natural resources providing aesthetic, 
ecological and economical benefits as well as reflecting horticultural heritage, cultural 
and community well-being.  The urban forest touches the lives of Santa Barbara 
residents and visitors every day and profoundly influences the city’s urban landscape.  
Trees characterize neighborhoods, beautify parks, enhance commercial corridors, 
complement buildings, provide environmental benefits and wildlife habitat, and 
contribute to community health and wellbeing.  A recent assessment of Santa Barbara’s 
street tree population estimates they provide over $2 million in annual benefits.3  If 
extrapolated out to all trees in the urban forest, benefits could reach upwards of $29 
million on an annual basis. 
 
The urban forest is distinguished by its urban setting of paved surfaces, streets, 
buildings, homes, parks and undeveloped open spaces. Similar to many California 
coastal communities, Santa Barbara’s urban forest is the result of tree planting and 
landscaping activities carried out by people rather than native growth.4  Like streets, 
sidewalks and other urban infrastructure, the urban forest needs regular maintenance 
and a long-term plan to ensure its health and longevity.   
 
Benefits of Trees 
 
The City recognizes the important environmental, economic and social benefits trees 
provide, including energy conservation, stormwater reduction, carbon dioxide reduction, 
air quality improvement, social health and aesthetics.  The U.S. Forest Service has 
developed tools to measure these benefits and ecosystem services.  Collectively, Santa 
Barbara’s urban forest has the potential to provide the community with $29 million in 
benefits annually.   The following includes some examples of how trees affect our lives 
and the community around us. 
 
Environment 
 
Trees have many positive environmental effects to our surroundings.  Leaves filter air 
by removing dust, other particulates and gaseous pollutants like carbon dioxide and 

                                                      
1 Hartfeld, Edward A. (2001).  The Santa Barbara City Park Department, Dwight Murphy and John Hartfeld and the Depression 
Miracle. Santa Barbara Historical Society: Noticias 48 (4) 78-105. 
2 City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2012). City of Santa Barbara Tree Canopy Cover Assessment, Santa 
Barbara. 
3 City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2009). City of Santa Barbara i-Tree Assessment. Santa Barbara, CA. 
4 Muller, Robert N. and J. Robert Haller.  (2005). Trees of Santa Barbara.  Santa Barbara, CA: Santa Barbara Botanic Garden. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 2 
 

nitrogen dioxide. 5  They capture rainwater and remove impurities, decrease volume into 
sewer systems and peak stream flows, plus reduce soil erosion.  Urban trees offer 
habitat to birds, insects, reptiles, mammals and the vast system of microorganisms in 
the soil. 6  Trees also provide habitat and shade in the creek corridors for fish and 
amphibian species. Local fruiting trees and orchards reduce the distance food must 
travel to reach city dwellers.  Finally, trees strategically planted along streets reduce 
noise levels to nearby businesses and homes. 
 
Social 
 
Researchers continue to uncover ways in which our environment and landscape 
positively contribute to a community’s social health.  Trees connect people to nature, 
provide a link to a community’s horticultural heritage, improve public health and provide 
a sense of community.  Thompson Ward and others have been finding these links in 
everything from quicker recovery times post surgery to less stress in deprived 
communities.7,8  Cities with more green space and trees have more active communities 
and decreased rates of obesity.  Patients at hospitals with views of trees have quicker 
recovery times post surgery. Trees provide opportunities to watch birds and wildlife and 
offer a place for discovery and exploration, plus naturally create a place of gathering for 
recreation, family and spiritual purposes.  Tree planting activities at schools, along 
streets and on private property creates neighborhood pride and strengthens the sense 
of community. 
 
Economic 
 
Strategically planted trees trim costs by reducing energy consumption, prolonging 
infrastructure, increasing property values and improving work productivity. 9,10,11 
Deciduous trees shade streets, homes and building in the summer and provide sun 
during the winter, thus reducing energy consumption.  Shade from trees has been 
shown to prolong the life of asphalt, while trees in general reduce the need for 
expensive stormwater management systems.  Trees and landscaping have also been 
shown to improve work productivity.  Workers with access to (or views of) trees and 
green space, are generally more productive, less stressed and happier employees.  
 

                                                      
5 Nowak, David J. (2002).  Effects of Urban Trees on Air Quality.  Syracuse, New York: U.S. Forest Service. 
6 Muller, Robert N. and Carol Boernstein (2010).  Maintaining the Diversity of California’s Municipal Forests.  Arboriculture and 
Urban Forestry 36 (1): 18-27 
7 Ward, Thompson, C. (2011). Linking landscape and health: The recurring  theme. Landscape and Urban Planning 99(3-4): 187 

195. 
8 Ward Thompson, C., et al. (2012). More green space is linked to less stress in deprived communities: Evidence from salivary 
cortisol patterns. Landscape and Urban Planning 105(3): 221-229. 
9 Dimoudi, Argiro and Marialena Nikolopoulou (2003). Vegetation in the urban environment: microclimatic analysis and benefits.  
Energy and Buildings 35 (69-76). 
10 Dravigne, A., et al. (2008). The Effect of Live Plants and Window Views of Green Spaces on Employee Perceptions of Job 
Satisfaction.  HortScience 43(1): 183-187. 
11 Lottrup, L., et al. (2013). Workplace greenery and perceived level of stress: Benefits of access to a green outdoor environment at 
the workplace. Landscape and Urban Planning 110(0): 5-11. 
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 3 
 

II. Background 
 
The City embarked on the development of its first Urban Forest Management Plan 
(Plan) recognizing the role of urban trees in providing environmental, economic, social 
and aesthetic benefits, as well as the challenges faced with managing the urban forest.  
In certain areas of the city, the urban forest is aging, mature trees conflict with 
infrastructure, and species diversity is in decline.  In addition, resources for the planting 
and care of trees and community participation in tree management are limited.   
 
The purpose of the Plan is to identify long-term preservation and enhancement 
objectives and address key management considerations including canopy cover, 
infrastructure constraints, and environmental, land use, aesthetic, and community 
considerations.  Although nearly 80 percent of the urban forest lies on privately owned 
land, the Plan’s primary focus is on trees located on City property, over which the City of 
Santa Barbara can exert the most direct influence.  Through implementation of this 
Plan, the City will improve urban tree management, allocate resources, and promote 
stewardship in a coordinated, cooperative approach with City departments, community 
partners and citizens.   
 
Plan Development 
 
Development of the Plan included preparation of a baseline tree canopy assessment and 
policy options analysis; extensive public outreach through community meetings, survey 
tools, City TV information, web resources, and other public information methods.  A 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was formed with members from the City’s Parks and 
Recreation Commission, Street Tree Advisory Committee, and Planning Commission, as 
well as representatives from Southern California Edison, Santa Barbara Botanic Garden 
and Santa Barbara Beautiful to provide technical assistance and input.  Over an 18 month 
period, a total of 32 meetings were held with the TAC, City staff, the Parks and Recreation 
Commission, Planning Commission, Architectural Board of Review (ABR), Historic 
Landmarks Commission (HLC), Single Family Design Review Board (SFDB), Street Tree 
Advisory Committee (STAC), Neighborhood Advisory Committee (NAC), as well as the 
public, to review current urban forest program management, identify key issues, develop a 
vision and mission statement as well as broad goals and develop, review and refine 
objectives and key actions.  Additional public input was received through an online survey 
and distributed comment cards. The project was funded in part by a grant from the 
California Department of Forestry and Fire. 
 
Santa Barbara’s Urban Forest 
 
Unlike cities with naturally occurring forests, Santa Barbara’s historic landscape was 
fairly treeless.12  Early pictures of the area show it nearly devoid of trees, with the 

                                                      
12 Personal contact with former Mayor Sheila Lodge, 2013- 2014. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 4 
 

exception of native stands near creek corridors, in canyons and along hillsides.13  
Native trees included the coast live oak, species of willows and sycamores.  Extensive 
tree planting beginning in the 1800s and continuing well into the new century 
transformed the city into a global arboretum.  
 
History Highlights 
 
The extent and diversity of the City’s current urban forest is primarily the result of efforts 
of early horticulturalists and City management of diverse tree resources for more than a 
century.  Early horticulturalists, including Joseph Sexton, Dr. Francesco Franceschi, Dr. 
Boyd Doremus, Peter Reidel, and E. O. Orpet, brought plants and trees from all over 
the world to Santa Barbara.  Beginning in the early 1900’s, these pioneers transformed 
Santa Barbara’s downtown barren landscape into a diverse canopy, planting trees for 
food, aesthetics and for the love of horticulture.  While some of the earliest recorded 
plantings are from Spanish Franciscan Padres who introduced the olive trees and 
California pepper trees, official plantings began in 1908.14 By 1914, an official street tree 
list and street designation had been compiled and adopted by the Parks Commission.  
Many trees throughout the city, such as the Italian Stone Pines along Anapamu, are 
representatives of this original list. Some important times in Santa Barbara’s 
horticultural history include: 
   
 

• 1793 - Captain George Vancouver observed almonds, apples, apricots, cherries, 
lemons, limes, oranges, peaches, pears, and pomegranates near the Mission 
gardens. 

• Spanish settlers introduced the California pepper, chinaberry, as well as palms 
for the tradition of Palm Sunday. 

• 1867- Joseph Sexton established his first nursery.  Ten years later, this grew to 
become one of the area’s most extraordinary sites containing some of the world’s 
rarest shrubs and plants.  Sexton is also credited with popularizing the cork oak, 
dragon tree, Lombardy poplar as well as the invasive pampas grass. 

• 1870’s - Ellwood Cooper introduced over 50 species of Eucalyptus, a common 
tree seen throughout Santa Barbara today. 

• 1880-1910 - Kinton Stevens, Francesco Franceschi, Dr. Boyd Doremus, and 
Peter Reidel made their individual mark on Santa Barbara, forever changing the 
landscape.  Combined, they introduced several thousand plant and tree species 
and contributed immensely to the city’s horticultural heritage 

• 1920-1956 - E.O. Orpet, a highly respected horticulturist, made his contributions 
to Santa Barbara’s street and park plantings including Olive trees along Olive 
Street, Southern magnolias along San Andres, and unique species in Orpet Park. 

                                                      
13 Graffy, Neal (2012).  Santa Barbara Then and Now. Santa Barbara, CA: El Barbareño Publishing. 
 
14 Muller, Robert N. and J. Robert Haller.  (2005). Trees of Santa Barbara.  Santa Barbara, CA: Santa Barbara Botanic Garden. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 5 
 

• 1956-Present - Many other Santa Barbara residents, horticultural enthusiasts, 
and arborists added to the flora of Santa Barbara, including: Finlay MacKenzie 
(Superintendent of Parks from 1938-1962), Bruce Van Dyke (horticulture teacher 
in Santa Barbara City College’s Adult Education classes for over 40 years), and 
Dan Condon (city arborist from 1980-2002) to name a few.  During this time, the 
City has also enhanced tree preservation policies, established a Street Tree 
Master Plan, and formulated daily operations consistent with industry standards. 

 
The most recent edition of Trees of Santa Barbara, by Robert N. Muller and J. Robert 
Haller, published by the Santa Barbara Botanic Garden in 2005, documents Santa 
Barbara’s long tradition of horticulture and the importance of trees in the region.  The 
book documents over 400 species of trees that can be viewed in public places.  Many of 
these trees are found on City streets, in City parks, and on the grounds of various public 
facilities. 
 
The diverse horticulture found in Santa Barbara would not be possible without the 
winning combination of climate and soils that favor a variety of plant species.  Southern 
California enjoys a Mediterranean climate, generally characterized by temperatures and 
annual precipitation that is moderated by the cool Pacific Ocean.   
 
Today’s Urban Forest 
 
Today’s urban forest is a complex mix of native forests, diverse city parks, and a variety 
of trees planted in landscapes, along streets and on private property. While the urban 
forest is estimated to contain over 320,000 trees, the City manages only a portion of 
that.  The City’s tree inventory database includes over 23,000 street trees, 9,200 park 
and facility trees, and a number of vacant sites along streets and in parks. 15  As a 
capital asset, this is valued at $109 million.  A large number of trees, perhaps as many 
as 30,000,not individually counted also exist in open space parks like Rattlesnake 
Canyon, Parma Park, Skofield Park and along steep hillsides.   
 
The City’s tree inventory also contains 456 different varieties of trees, making it one of 
the most diverse urban forests amongst southern California communities.16  However, 
nearly half of those species occur five or less times, suggesting fragility to Santa 
Barbara’s urban forest diversity.  Maintaining high species diversity can provide 
increased protection against disease, pest, and environmental changes.  Other benefits 
include nearly year-round color, fragrance and texture due to varied growing seasons, 
and educational opportunities in the areas of species preservation, ecology, biodiversity, 
and cultural uses of trees.  Some rare species in the City’s inventory include the 
Kentucky Coffee tree native to North America, and the Cadaga tree and Queensland 
                                                      
15 City maintains a database of its trees.  A query in 2014 identified 23,603 street trees, 9,295 park trees, 3,938 vacant street sites 
and 101 vacant park sites.  Vacant street tree sites may have been replanted and are awaiting database updates.  More information 
on the condition of these sites is needed to determine if replanting is an option. 
16 Muller, Robert N. and Carol Bornstein (2010).  Maintaining the Diversity of California’s Municipal Forests.  Arboriculture and 
Urban Forestry 36 (1): 18-27. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 6 
 

Kauri both native to Queensland, Australia.  Commonly planted species include the 
Coast Live Oak native to California, Jacaranda native to subtropical South America, 
Mexican Fan Palm from western Sonora and northwestern Mexico, Queen Palm of 
South America and King Palm native to Queensland, Australia.  These five species 
make up 30 percent of publicly owned trees.   
 
Tree Canopy Overview 
 
To capture the breadth of the urban forest, the City completed a tree canopy cover 
assessment and from that estimated city-wide tree population.17  Tree canopy is defined 
as the percent of land area covered by the crown of a tree.   Approximately 25 percent 
of Santa Barbara is covered by tree canopy, yet canopy cover distribution varies greatly 
across the city.  
 
Tree canopy was divided into the major land use types of residential, parks and open 
space, commercial/civic, public schools, office areas, and industrial as described in the 
City’s 2011 General Plan.  The table below provides information on canopy cover by 
these land uses, including: number of canopy acres, percent canopy coverage, the 
percent this represents out of the total city-wide canopy coverage, and the estimated 
tree population. Perhaps not surprising, tree canopy is higher in residential areas and 
parks and open spaces, and lower in commercial, office and more industrial areas. 
Residential areas make up approximately 80.6 percent of total canopy cover citywide. 
Within these residential areas, approximately 28 percent of the area has canopy cover. 
Parks and open space represent approximately 11 percent of total canopy cover 
citywide with 23 percent canopy cover throughout the parks and open space areas. The 
remaining 8 percent of total canopy cover citywide is represented by office zones, 
industrial zones, commercial zones, civic zones, and public school zones.  The city-wide 
canopy map on the following page illustrates the distribution of tree canopy cover. 
 

Location  
(2011 General Plan) 

Canopy 
Area 

(Acres) 

Percent 
Canopy by 
Location 

Percent 
Canopy of 
entire city 

Estimated Tree 
Population 

Entire City* 2,787 25.4% 100% 322,290 
Residential Areas 2,094 27.8% 80.6% 259,719 
Parks and Open Spaces** 322 23.3% 11.6% 36,727 
Commercial/Civic 140 20.4% 4.9% 16,077 
Public Schools 55 18.7% 2.0% 6,299 
Office Areas 20 11.4% 0.7% 2,320 
Industrial 10 6.9% 0.4% 1,148 

* The area excludes unincorporated areas, the Santa Barbara Airport, and the area of the 101 Freeway that 
intersects within the City limits. 
 ** Parks and Open Space areas in the 2011 General Plan do not include the Montecito Country Club, Sheffield Open 
Space/Reservoir, Laurel Canyon Reservoir, and the Santa Barbara Municipal Golf Course.  
 

                                                      
17 City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2012). City of Santa Barbara Tree Canopy Cover Assessment, Santa 
Barbara, CA 



Canopy Coverage
Canopy

City of Santa Barbara 2012 Tree Canopy Cover

²
0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8Miles

Prepared by the City of Santa Barbara
Parks and Recreation Department

December 2012



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 8 
 

Neighborhood Canopy Cover 
 
Tree canopy distribution varies from neighborhood to neighborhood and park to park. 
The variation in tree distribution may be attributed to a number of factors. Lot sizes, 
location and historic planting patterns may have emphasized certain neighborhoods 
over others. Highly developed areas containing buildings, schools, and major arterial 
streets negatively influence canopy coverage while the hundreds of trees found in parks 
and open spaces can positively influence neighborhood canopy estimates. The table 
below has divided canopy cover information by neighborhood.  The City’s General Plan 
describes 32 neighborhoods throughout Santa Barbara. Several neighborhoods, like 
Alta Mesa, Riviera and Eucalyptus Hill, have high canopy coverage in the 30 percentile, 
while Downtown, Lower East and Waterfront areas have low coverage in the 10 
percentile and below. The graph and canopy map on the following pages also illustrate 
the distribution of tree canopy cover by neighborhood.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 9 
 

Neighborhood* 
Total 
Area 

(Acres) 

Canopy 
Area 

(Acres) 
% Area of 

Canopy Cover 

Alta Mesa 634 237 37.40% 
Bel Air  480 108 23% 
Campanil 488 119 24.60% 
Cielito 1,294 407 31.40% 
Coast Village 36 6 17.20% 
Downtown 172 18 10.30% 
East Beach 321 46 14.40% 
East Mesa 376 65 17.30% 
East San Roque 284 60 21.10% 
Eastside 429 75 17.40% 
Eucalyptus Hill 672 225 33.70% 
Foothill 573 146 25.60% 
Hidden Valley 336 94 28.00% 
Hitchcock 218 31 14.20% 
Hope/La Cumbre 339 67 19.80% 
Laguna 324 53 16.50% 
Lower East 162 13 7.70% 
Lower Riviera 306 94 30.60% 
Lower State 122 12 9.60% 
Lower West 127 29 23.00% 
Milpas 56 6 10.20% 
North State 273 35 12.70% 
Oak Park 416 91 22.00% 
Riviera 607 229 37.70% 
Samarkand 177 45 25.70% 
San Roque 273 84 30.90% 
Upper East 377 112 30.00% 
Waterfront 88 4 4.30% 
West Beach 183 36 19.60% 
West Downtown 178 32 18.00% 
West Mesa 350 86 24.60% 
Westside 529 124 23.40% 
TOTAL 11,200 2,789 

 
   

  
* Includes all General Plan designated neighborhoods. Tree canopy that fell into the 101 Freeway and 
unincorporated areas were not included in these results.        
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 10 
 

 
 

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40%

Waterfront

Lower East

Lower State

Milpas

Downtown

North State

Hitchcock

East Beach

Laguna

Coast Village

East Mesa

Eastside

West Downtown

West Beach

Hope/La Cumbre

East San Roque

Oak Park

Bel Air

Lower West

Westside

Campanil

West Mesa

Foothill

Samarkand

Hidden Valley

Upper East

Lower Riviera

San Roque

Cielito

Eucalyptus Hill

Alta Mesa

Riviera

Tree Canopy Coverage by Neighborhood



West
Beach

Lower
State

Westside

West
Mesa

West
Downtown

Upper
East

San
Roque

RivieraNorth
State

Oak Park

Lower
West

Lower
Riviera

Lower
East

Laguna

Hope/La
Cumbre

Foothill

Eucalyptus
Hill

Eastside

East San
Roque

East
Mesa

East
Beach

Downtown

Cielito

Campanil Alta
Mesa

Bel Air

Hidden
Valley

Hitchcock

City of Santa Barbara Tree Canopy Cover by Neighborhood - 2012

Foothill

Samarkand

Waterfront

Coast Village

Milpas

0-4%
5-9%
10-14%
15-19%
20-24%
25-29%
30-34%
35-40%

Canopy Cover Range

²
0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1Miles

Prepared by the City of Santa Barbara
Parks and Recreation Department

December 2012



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 12 
 

Park Canopy Cover 
 
Several factors influence tree canopy within parks, most notably how the park is used 
and its geographic location.  As shown in the following tables and figures, parks used as 
sports facilities and those along the beachfront have very little canopy (as low as 1.5%). 
These include Dwight Murphy and Cabrillo Ball Field as well as East Beach, West 
Beach and Leadbetter Beach Parks. Parks with high tree canopy coverage (as high as 
82 percent) are a combination of open space, neighborhood and community parks such 
as Hidden Valley, Stevens, Sunflower, Oak and Skofield.  Both the graph and map on 
the following pages highlight canopy cover distribution amongst city parks and open 
spaces. 
 
 

  
Location 

Total 
Area 

(Acres) 

Canopy 
Area 

(Acres) 
% Area of 

Canopy Cover 

All Parks 1,383 322 23.3% 
Neighborhood Parks 61 31 50.8% 
Community Parks 123 42 34.1% 
Passive Parks 72 18 25.1% 
Public Open Space* 498 110 22.1% 
Open Space Parks 551 114 20.8% 
Sports Facilities 35 5 13.8% 
Beach Parks 43 2 3.9% 

 
*Includes areas designated as Parks and Open Space in the 2011 General Plan  and does not include 
the Montecito Country Club, Santa Barbara Zoo, Sheffield Reservoir, Laurel Canyon Reservoir, and the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Golf Course. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 13 
 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

West Beach
De La Guerra Plaza

East Beach
Elings

Cabrillo Ballfield
Leadbetter Beach

Laurel Canyon
Pershing

Chase Palm
Dwight Murphy

Shoreline
Ortega

Spencer Adams
La Mesa

Andrée Clark Bird Refuge
Parma

Loma Media
Los Robles

Mission Historical
Ambassador

MacKenzie
Parque de los Niños

San Roque
Plaza Vera Cruz

Eastside Neighborhood
Alameda

Douglas Family Preserve
Hilda Ray

Bohnett Park
Plaza del Mar

Alice Keck
Willowglen
Franceschi

Hale
Honda Valley

Moreton Bay Fig Tree
Escondido

Sylvan
Orpet

Skofield
Oak

Sunflower
Stevens

Hidden Valley

Tree Canopy Coverage by Park



HILDA
RAY PARK

ESCONDIDO
PARK

HALE
PARK

CABRILLO
BALL PARK

ANDRE
CLARK BIRD

REFUGE

SUNFLOWER
PARK

EASTSIDE
NEIGHBORHOOD

PARK

SPENCER
ADAMS
PARK

BOHNETT
PARK

HIDDEN
VALLEY

PARK

MISSION
HISTORICAL

PARK

ALICE
KECK PARK

PLAZA
VERA
CRUZ

ORTEGA
PARK

SAN
ROQUE
PARK

SKOFIELD
PARK

LAUREL
CANYON

PARK
LOS

ROBLES
PARK

WILLOWGLEN
PARK

LA MESA
PARK

HONDO
VALLEY

PARK

SHORELINE
PARK

OAK PARK

MACKENZIE
PARK

SYLVAN
PARK

LA CORONILLA
PARK

PARQUE DE
LOS NINOS

DWIGHT
MURPHY

PARK

PARMA
PARK

DOUGLAS
FAMILY

PRESERVE

FRANCESCHI
PARK

ORPET
PARK

STEVENS
PARK

DE LA
GUERRA
PLAZA

ALAMEDA
PARK

PLAZA
DEL MAR

PERSHING
PARK

WEST
BEACH

EAST
BEACH

ELINGS
PARK

CHASE
PALM PARK

LEADBETTER
BEACH

LOMA
MEDIA
PARK

MORETON BAY
FIG TREE

THOUSAND
STEPS

City of Santa Barbara 2012 Park Tree Canopy Cover

²
0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1Miles

Prepared by the City of Santa Barbara
Parks and Recreation Department

December 2012

Canopy Cover Range
0-9%
10-19%
20-29%
30-39%
40-49%
50-59%
60-69%
70-79%
80-89%



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 15 
 

 
III. Urban Forest Management 
 
City management of the urban forest involves a number of City departments including 
Parks and Recreation, Public Works, Community Development and Fire.  Planting and 
maintenance of City trees is primarily the responsibility of the Parks and Recreation 
Department.  Other departments such as Fire, Community Development, and Public 
Works are involved as part of public safety, public capital improvement projects and 
land use planning and development.  Public review and policymaking related to tree 
planting, maintenance, and preservation is provided by the Street Tree Advisory 
Committee, Parks and Recreation Commission, Single Family Design Board, Historic 
Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of Review, Planning Commission, and the 
City Council. 
 
City Departments 
 
Parks and Recreation Department 
 
The mission of the Parks and Recreation Department’s Forestry Program is to plant and 
maintain City public street, park, and facility trees for the benefit of residents, and to 
ensure a safe and healthy community forest.  The Forestry Program currently has eight 
staff directly involved in the care and maintenance of the City’s urban forest, including 
the Urban Forest Superintendent (City Arborist), Street Tree Supervisor, and six field 
staff.  The Urban Forest Superintendent develops, implements, and supervises tree 
planting, pruning, removal, and pest management; enforces City tree ordinances; and, 
coordinates urban forestry related activities with other divisions, departments, and 
outside agencies or groups.  The Street Tree Supervisor oversees field staff, inspects 
trees, and schedules the day-to-day operations including contracted maintenance 
services. Field staff are responsible for City tree maintenance including trimming, 
planting, watering, and respond to emergency tree situations.  The field staff includes a 
Small Tree Care Specialist who is responsible for planting and maintaining young street 
trees.   
 
Street trees are the primary focus of the Forestry Program and its annual tree 
maintenance schedule.  There are over 23,000 street trees and a number of vacancies 
waiting replanting.18  Maintenance of trees and landscaping within the street right-of-
way (ROW) is funded by the Utility Users Tax revenue. The Forestry Program also 
maintains over 9,200 public trees located within 68 parks and landscaped areas of 
public facilities, as well as all trees within open space parks.  In the last five years, the 
City has pruned an average of 5,796 street trees, 1,375 park/facility trees, and planted 
239 new street trees annually.  City staff perform block pruning, provide citizen 
                                                      
18 March, 2014 queries to the Forestry Program database identify 4,039 street and park vacant sites. These sites 
require inspection to confirm their suitability for replanting. In some cases these sites may have been replanted 
and are awaiting database updates to reflect the change. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 16 
 

response based and emergency pruning, as well as care for larger park and street 
trees.  Tree contractors are assigned blocks of street pruning or park specific tree 
pruning. Maintenance of park and public facility trees is funded by the General Fund.   
 
The Forestry Program administers the tree removal permit application and review 
process in accordance with Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 15.20 and Chapter 
15.24.  The review of each tree removal application includes site visits and discussion 
with the Street Tree Advisory Committee, and presentation to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission.   
 
Outreach and education is primarily conducted through public meetings with the Parks 
and Recreation Commission and the tree removal permitting process and tree planting 
projects. Recent outreach efforts include a comprehensive update of the Forestry 
Program web page, publication of a community guide for tree planting, and workshops 
for tree professionals.  The Forestry page on the City’s website provides information to 
the public regarding city-owned and regulated trees and the public benefits of a healthy 
urban forest. These efforts are supported by community street tree planting projects and 
annual Arbor Day celebrations and planting projects.  As of 2014, the City also enjoys 
33 years of designation as a Tree City USA.   
 
Community Development Department 
 
The Community Development Department (CDD) oversees city-wide community 
planning and land development. Urban forest policy is found in the City’s General Plan, 
Climate Action Plan and various City ordinances. Implementation of City tree policies 
occurs through project design review and land development approvals, and falls under 
the purview of the: Historic Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of Review, 
Single Family Design Board, and the Planning Commission. Trees are integrated into 
the land development process through landscape plans. CDD issues permits 
authorizing landscaping alterations, which may include planting and/or removing trees. 
Trees planted as part of approved landscape plans are subject to establishment and 
maintenance requirements. CDD has enforcement authority for unapproved alterations 
to approved landscape plans. In addition, staff can administratively approve limited tree 
removals as allowed in the adopted Design Board Guidelines. Under certain 
circumstances, the Urban Forest Superintendent may review tree removal and planting 
proposals as part of land development. 
 
Fire Department 
 
The Fire Department is responsible for implementation of the City’s Wildland Fire Plan.   
The purpose of the plan is to manage vegetation, including trees, in the City’s high fire 
hazard areas for public safety and wildland fire management.  With policy guidance 
from the Wildland Fire Plan, the Fire Department institutes defensible space 
requirements for property owners, provides roadside vegetation clearance within the 
foothill areas for fire truck access, leads exotic/pest plant removal projects, and provides 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 17 
 

water-wise and fire-wise plant and tree landscaping options. The Fire Department has 
the authority to require tree maintenance and/or removal within high fire hazard areas to 
achieve fire safety objectives.  The Fire and Parks and Recreation Departments work 
together to evaluate and address trees and vegetation on City streets and City parks to 
meet the City’s vegetation management fire safety requirements.   
 
Public Works Department 
 
The Public Works Department Streets Section is responsible for the maintenance of the 
City’s streets and sidewalks, including the street sweeping program.  The Engineering 
Division and Transportation Planning Section oversee street right-of way improvement 
projects. As a result, the Public Works Department’s involvement in urban forest 
management is primarily focused on street trees and the relationship of trees and 
maintenance of public infrastructure. Of particular interest is maintenance of tree 
canopy for intersection, traffic signal and streetlight visibility, as well as sidewalk travel 
and street parking.  Tree type and placement and potential for conflict with maintenance 
of underground infrastructure such as water and sewer lines are also important. Under 
the Streets Section, trees are trimmed to allow for street sweeping vehicle clearance 
and ensure parking sign visibility.  Street and sidewalk improvement projects at times 
impact the root zone of trees.  The Street Section works with the Urban Forest 
Superintendent to assess trees that may be impacted from these activities.  As part of 
Plan implementation, Public Works and the Parks and Recreation Departments will be 
developing parkway construction standards and updates to the Street Tree Master Plan.   
 
Public Review and Policy Decision Making 
 
Street Tree Advisory Committee 
The Street Tree Advisory Committee provides advice to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission and Department staff regarding tree-related issues including, planting and 
removing City trees, removal requests for street trees and trees located in residential 
front setbacks, and changes to the Street Tree Master Plan.  The Committee is 
composed of five voting members who have interest and technical knowledge of trees 
and tree care issues.   
 
Parks and Recreation Commission 
The Parks and Recreation Commission acts on all street tree and most residential 
setback tree removal applications, as well as changes to the Street Tree Master Plan.  
When appropriate, the Commission may seek the advice of the Historic Landmarks 
Commission on Specimen or Historic trees as well as Street Trees within the El Pueblo 
Viejo and Brinkerhoff Landmark Districts. The Parks and Recreation Commission can 
recommend trees to City Council for Specimen or Historic designation. 
 
Historic Landmarks Commission 
The Historic Landmarks Commission provides design review for new development and 
redevelopment projects within El Pueblo Viejo and Brinkerhoff Landmark Districts. HLC 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 18 
 

also reviews alterations to historic or potentially historic properties throughout the city as 
well as other Historic Districts (e.g. Riviera Campus). The HLC’s purview includes 
species selection, placement, and preservation of trees on properties within HLC’s 
jurisdiction. HLC reviews and acts on setback tree removal applications within El Pueblo 
Viejo and Brinkerhoff Landmark Districts and parking lots. The HLC can recommend 
trees to City Council for Historic designation and reviews all historic and specimen trees 
subject to removal. 
 
Architectural Board of Review 
 
The Architectural Board of Review provides design review for new development and 
redevelopment projects that involve multi-family residential, non-residential and mixed-
use development outside of Historic Landmarks Commission jurisdiction. Part of design 
review involves the placement and preservation of trees as part of landscape plans and 
the development of commercial parking lots. ABR reviews and acts on parking lot tree 
removal applications. 
 
Single Family Design Board 
 
The Single Family Design Board provides design review for some development 
proposals in single family residential zones that are not reviewed by Historic Landmarks 
Commission. Part of design review involves the preservation, placement and 
maintenance of trees as part of landscape plans.  
 
Staff Hearing Officer 
 
The Staff Hearing Officer reviews and acts on certain development applications 
including small subdivisions, modifications, performance standard permits, and coastal 
development permits.  The Staff Hearing Officer may consider details related to trees 
and vegetation associated with development proposals. 
 
Planning Commission 
 
The Planning Commission makes recommendations to the City Council on changes to 
the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Coastal Plan, General Plan and other plans that provide 
guidance in the physical development of the City, and reviews and approves land 
subdivisions and land development plans.  The Planning Commission may consider 
details related to trees and vegetation associated with land development proposals. 
 
City Council 
 
The City Council sets City policy through the Municipal Code, general plan policies, and 
by Council resolution.  All tree-related decisions by the Parks and Recreation 
Commission and design review decisions by ABR, HLC, SFDB, and design review 
decisions by the Planning Commission are appealable to City Council.   



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 19 
 

 
IV.  Policy Context for Urban Forest Management 
 
Management of the City’s urban forest is guided by a number of City regulations in the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code, policies in the General Plan, Local Coastal Plan (LCP), 
Wildland Fire Plan, Climate Action Plan, and various design review board guidelines, 
building design guidelines, and other resources.   
 
Street Tree Master Plan 
 
Chapter 15.20, Santa Barbara’s Tree Planting and Maintenance Ordinance, requires a 
comprehensive plan for planting and maintaining trees along streets and in public areas, 
and establishes general elements to be included in the plan. The Street Tree Master 
Plan (STMP) was adopted by City Council in 1977.   
 
The Street Tree Designation section of the plan is used on a regular basis to both 
assess tree planting options and maintain the City’s street tree diversity.  The list 
matches tree species to street blocks, or segments.  Street blocks are generally 
grouped into segments based on tree populations and street characteristics.  Some 
segments span several blocks, while others are only a block long.  To date, the Street 
Tree Designation list has 124 species of trees designated to 969 street segments.  
There are 134 street segments without tree designations. In some cases, a street or a 
section of a street may not have a designated species until the public right-of-way 
receives improvements, such as sidewalks.   
 
Street tree designations are updated for a variety of reasons, including when the 
designated tree species is no longer available commercially, or when specific species 
present pest or health problems, cause infrastructure conflicts, and are no longer 
compatible with size of parkways, among other considerations.  Street tree designation 
changes are reviewed and approved by the Parks and Recreation Commission during a 
publicly noticed meeting. 
 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
 
Chapter 15.20, Tree Planting and Maintenance 
 
First adopted by the City Council in 1963, Chapter 15.20 addresses City-owned trees in 
parks and parkways (street trees) and other developed City parcels.  Key aspects of 
Chapter 15.20 include the application of the American National Standards Institute 
(ANSI) standards for pruning trees, requirements for conformance to the Master Street 
Tree Plan in the placement and types of trees, the Parks and Recreation Director’s 
authority and responsibilities related to trees, permitting requirements, and the process 
for review of requests for significant pruning and removal of City-owned trees.  The 
most recent amendments were adopted by the City Council in December 2009.   
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 20 
 

Chapter 15.24, Preservation of Trees 
 
Adopted by the City Council in 1969, Chapter 15.24 regulates tree removal and the 
degree of pruning allowed for any privately-owned trees located in the regulated front 
setback of a residential or commercial property, regulated parking lots, trees identified 
on an approved landscape plan, and/or Historic and Specimen trees located anywhere 
on a private lot.  Chapter 15.24 establishes considerations and findings for removal, the 
processes for review and appeal, and designates the proper review body for various 
privately-owned, City-regulated trees.  Chapter 15.24 also cross-references all other 
City regulations related to trees and landscaping.  The most recent updates were 
adopted by the City Council in December 2009.  Although the ordinance regulates the 
removal and degree of pruning of trees, it does not regulate the planting of trees in any 
way.   
 
Resolution 09-096 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution 09-096, on December 8, 2009 to establish a 
municipal code violation fine schedule specific to certain violations in Chapters 15.20, 
15.24, including tree pruning and removal without a permit, and Chapter 22.11, 
maintenance to approved landscape plans. It authorizes the City Arborist or Community 
Development Director to issue corrective measures if deemed appropriate.   
 

Action without or 
in violation  
of permit 

Trunk diameter 
from 4” to 12” 

Trunk diameter 
over 12” and  

up to 24” 

Trunk diameter 
over 24” 

Significant 
Alteration 

Up to $500 Up to $1,000 Up to $1,000 

Removal Up to $1,000 Up to $3,000 Up to $5,000 
 
The Resolution 09-096 also clarifies and establishes regulations related to tree size, 
location, and maintenance, applies the ANSI A-300 Standards and Best Management 
Practices to city-owned trees and to record in the city data base when city-owned trees 
are pruned by more than one quarter, defines and updates the roles and responsibilities 
of various boards and commissions in the regulation of public and private trees, 
establishes explicit protections for trees on commercial and multiple-family properties 
with approved plans, and clarifies enforcement mechanisms for the maintenance of 
approved landscape plans. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 21 
 

Historic and Specimen Trees 
 
Chapters 15.20 and 15.24 provide for the designation of historic and specimen trees by 
the City Council. Both Chapters protect the removal of these and define specimen and 
historic trees.19 
 
Chapter 22.22.040 provides the criteria for designating landmarks and structures of 
merit which includes natural features, like trees.  The Historic Landmarks Commission 
can use any or all of the following criteria and considerations in its findings:   
 

A. Its character, interest or value as a significant part of the heritage of the City, the 
State or the Nation; 

B. Its location as a site of a significant historic event;   
C. Its identification with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the 

culture and development of the City, the State or the Nation;   
D. Its exemplification of a particular architectural style or way of life important to the 

City, the State or the Nation;   
E. Its exemplification of the best remaining architectural type in a neighborhood;   
F. Its identification as the creation, design or work of a person or persons whose 

effort has significantly influenced the heritage of the City, the State or the Nation;   
G. Its embodiment of elements demonstrating outstanding attention to architectural 

design, detail, materials or craftsmanship;   
H. Its relationship to any other landmark if its preservation is essential to the 

integrity of that landmark; 
I. Its unique location or singular physical characteristic representing an established 

and familiar visual feature of a neighborhood;   
J. Its potential of yielding significant information of archaeological interest;   
K. Its integrity as a natural environment that strongly contributes to the well-being of 

the people of the City, the State or the Nation.  (Ord. 5333, 2004; Ord. 4848, 
1994; Ord. 3900 §1, 1977.) 

 
  

                                                      
19 Specimen Tree - Any tree which has been found by the Board of Park Commissioners to be of high 
value because of its type and/or age and which has been designated by resolution of the City Council as 
a "specimen tree".  
Historic Tree - A tree which has been found by the Board of Park Commissioners, the Historic Landmarks 
Commission, or the City Council, to be a tree of notable historic interest and designated by resolution of 
the City Council as an "historic tree". 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 22 
 

City designated Specimen Trees 
 
Type Location Year Designated 
American Elm  
Ulmus americana 

1210 Carpinteria St 1989 

Two Australian Fan Palms 
Livistona australis 

131 E. Anapamu St 1989 

Indian Laurel Fig  
Ficus microcarpa var. nitida 

100 E. Constance Ave 1977 

 
City designated Historic Trees 
 

 

Type Location Year Designated 
Moreton Bay Fig Tree  
Ficus macrophylla 

Chapala St. at Montecito St 1970 

Moreton Bay Fig Tree  
Ficus macrophylla 

320 West Pueblo Street   2011 

City Hall Pepper Schinus 
molle 

De La Guerra Plaza entrance 
to City Hall 

2000 

Cota Sycamores 
Platanus racemosa 

near Mission SB-at Los Olivos 
St. & APS 

Pending20 

Doremus Stone Pines  
Pinus pinea 

300-800 Blocks E. Anapamu 
St 

1997 

“Fernald Eucalyptus” 
Eucalyptus citriodora 

400 Blk. Santa Barbara St 1997 

Franceschi Flame Tree 
Brachychiton acerifolium x 
populneum 

11-15 W. 
Gutierrez St. – City Parking 
Lot 12 

2002 

“Tree of Light”  
Araucaria heterophylla 

100 W. Carrillo St 1977 

Five Lemon Scented 
Eucalyptus  
Corymbia citriodora 

40 E Anapamu Street (Main 
Library) 

2012 

 
 
Chapter 22.10 Vegetation Removal 
 
Chapter 22.10 is a general vegetation and tree protective measure that regulates the 
amount of vegetation removed from areas of the city within the Hillside Design District in 
order to prevent damage, reservoir siltation, denuding, flood hazards, soil loss, and 
other dangers created by or increased by improper clearing activities; and to establish 
the administrative procedure for issuance of permits for vegetation removal.  The code 
provides protection to trees on portions of private property that are not subject to the 
regulations of Municipal Code Chapters 15.20 and 15.24.   

                                                      
20 Cota Street Sycamores has been on the list of designated historic trees for many years and exists on 
historic property, however a resolution documenting its designation is under investigation. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 23 
 

 
Exceptions to the permitting process are described in Section 22.10.040 and include: 
harvesting fruit-bearing crops, the removal of vegetation approved by fire prevention 
agencies, utility companies, or by public agencies on publicly owned property or rights-
of-way, when the average slope of the removal site and access to the removal site is 
less than twenty percent (20%), and contains limits to the quantity of removed native 
and non-native vegetation over one year and five year time periods.  
 
Chapter 22.11 Maintenance of Approved Landscape Plan 
 
Chapter 22.11 deems it unlawful for an owner of a lot subject to the provisions of this 
Chapter to not maintain the trees, plants, irrigation system, and other improvements in 
accordance with the approved landscape plan and the provisions of this Chapter. In 
addition, it is unlawful for any person to alter or to authorize or allow the alteration of an 
approved landscape plan for a lot subject to the provisions of this Chapter without the 
permit required pursuant to Section 22.11.050.  Permits are required for any alteration 
to the design, character, and plant coverage at maturity, or other improvements 
specified on an approved landscape plan. 
 
The regulations in this Chapter pertain to any lot developed with a multiple-family 
residential, commercial, or industrial use; or any lot developed solely with a single-family 
residence or a duplex residential unit, where the conditions of approval for the 
development on the lot require the installation and maintenance of trees or landscaping 
in accordance with an approved landscape plan. 
 
Chapter 22.22 Historic Structures 
 
Section 814 of the Santa Barbara City Charter creates and establishes a Historic 
Landmarks Commission for the City to promote the general public welfare of the City 
and to protect and preserve the natural and historical charm and beauty of the City and 
its aesthetic appeal and beauty.  The purpose of Chapter 22.22 is to recognize, 
preserve, enhance, and perpetuate the use of structures, natural features such as trees, 
sites and areas within the City of Santa Barbara having historic, architectural, 
archaeological, cultural or aesthetic significance. As mentioned above, this Chapter also 
includes criteria for considering trees as historic .  Trees identified as historic are subject 
to the regulations per municipal code chapters 15.20 and 15.24, which include 
significant pruning and removal. 
 
Chapter 22.68 Architectural Board of Review 
 
Section 814 of the Santa Barbara City Charter creates and establishes an Architectural 
Board of Review for the City to promote the general public welfare of the City and to 
protect and preserve the natural and historical charm and beauty of the City and its 
aesthetic appeal and beauty.  The board is composed of seven members that review 
project design as it relates architecturally and city-wide.   



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 24 
 

 
Chapter 22.68, as it pertains to the urban forest, provides protection to trees on private 
properties that are not developed with or proposed to be developed with a single family 
residence, located in historic districts, or have historic or cultural value.  The ABR 
considers landscaping as part of project compatibility and reviews any substantial 
alteration or deviation from the design, character, plant coverage at maturity, or other 
improvements specified on an approved landscape plan for any lot within the City of 
Santa Barbara that is developed with a multiple residential unit, a mixed use 
development, or a building that is occupied by a nonresidential use, whether or not the 
alteration or deviation to the landscape plan is proposed in connection with an alteration 
to a building or structure on the lot that is subject to design review by the Architectural 
Board of Review. Whether a proposed alteration or deviation is substantial is 
determined in accordance with the Architectural Board of Review Guidelines. 
 
Chapter 22.69 Single Family Design Board 
 
The goal of the Single Family Design Board is to ensure that single family residential 
unit projects are compatible with the surrounding neighborhood in size and design. The 
Single Family Design Board is also charged with the task of protecting public visual 
resources and promoting the ecological sustainability of the City’s built environment 
through the design review process. This Chapter, as it relates to the urban forest, 
places general protection on trees located on private property by use of landscape 
plans during development or redevelopment (see Findings 22.69.050 (A.2, C.2,  D.2, 
and D.3).   
 
Chapter 22.76 View Dispute Resolution Process 
 
Chapter 22.76 provides a conflict resolution process for homeowners and their 
neighbors to undertake in the event that a privately owned tree is blocking a view or 
access to sunlight.  City-owned trees are not subject to the provisions in the chapter.  
The process includes initial discussion amongst the affected parties, mediation, 
arbitration, restoration and liability.   
 
It is important to note that while the City provides a process for resolution, the City is not 
part of the process, other than to provide residents with lists of mediators, arbitrators 
and certified arborists, or to document that a claim has been made pursuant to this 
chapter.  A Complainant can notify the Community Development Department of any 
request for mediation or arbitration pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter and can 
provide the City with the claim documentation materials including: evidence of prior 
view, evidence regarding unreasonable tree blockage, desired action, evidence of 
attempted resolution, and evidence of ownership.  As noted above, notification and 
documentation is for the purposes of City record-keeping regarding the use of this 
Chapter only and does not obligate the City to assist or advise a property owner or 
participate in the dispute resolution process in any way.   
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 25 
 

Chapter 22.80 Landscape Design Standards for Water Conservation 
 
Although not specifically related to trees, these standards include requirements for new 
development that includes new landscaping or alterations to existing landscaping and is 
subject to the review by the Historic Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of 
Review or Single Family Design Board. The standards require the use of water-wise 
plants, limit the amount of turf and plants not considered water-wise and include 
requirements for mulch and installation of water-efficient irrigation.  
 
Title 28 The Zoning Ordinance 
 
The Zoning Ordinance establishes classifications and districts or zones and regulates 
the use of property within the city, defines terms used in the ordinance, includes a 
zoning map, provides for the adjustment, enforcement, and amendment thereof, and 
prescribes penalties for its violation.  The City of Santa Barbara is divided into zone 
classifications that establish, regulate, restrict and segregate the uses of land, buildings 
and structures; regulate and restrict the height and bulk of buildings; regulate the area 
of setbacks, open yards, courts and other open spaces about buildings; and regulate 
the density of dwelling units.   
 
 

 Zone Classification SBMC Front Setback 

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 

A-1, One Family  28.15 35’ 
A-2, One Family  28.15 30’ 
E-1, One Family   28.15 30’ 
E-2, One Family  28.15 25’ 
E-3, One Family 28.15 20’ 
R-1, One Family 28.15 15’-20’ 
R-2, Two Family 28.18 15’-20’ 
R-3 & R-4, Multi-Family 28.21 10’-15’ 
SD-1, Special District 28.45 25’-40’ 
SD-2, Special District 28.45 10’-20’ 

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L/

 O
FF

IC
E 

R-O, Restricted Office 28.48 10’- 20’ 
C-O, Medical Office 28.51 10’- 20’ 
C-P, Restricted Commercial 28.54 10’ 
C-L, Limited Commercial 28.57 10’ 
C-1, Limited Commercial 28.63 10’ 
C-2, Commercial 28.66 0’- 20’ 
C-M, Commercial Manufacturing 28.69 0’- 20’ 
OC, Ocean-Oriented Commercial 28.71 0’ 
M-1, Light Manufacturing 28.72 0’ 
OM-1 Ocean-Oriented Lt. Manuf. 28.73 0’ 
HRC-1, Hotel and Related 
Commerce 

28.22 10’-20’ 

HRC-2, Hotel and Related 
Commerce 

28.22 10’-20’ 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 26 
 

 
While the Zoning Ordinance defines regulated setback on both private and public 
property, Ch. 15.24 regulates trees planted within the defined setback areas according 
to the specific land use zones.  Front setback distances range in residential zones from 
10 feet to 40 feet.  Areas zoned commercial or office have regulated front setbacks in 
the ranges of 0 feet to 20 feet. 
 
Chapter 28.90 Automobile Parking Requirements 
 
Chapter 28.90 provides the minimum requirements and standards for the provision of 
off-street parking for all buildings, structures and uses in the City of Santa Barbara in an 
effort to encourage the development of more attractive parking lots in commercial, 
industrial, and multiple-family use areas, to provide for attractive and durable screening 
between such parking lots and adjoining areas, and to lessen the effect of commercial 
and industrial uses upon adjoining residential uses.   
 
This chapter enhances the urban forest by requiring landscape plans and standards are 
for all parking areas, parking lots, automobile service stations and automobile service 
stations/mini-markets except for one- or two-family dwellings.  Section 28.90.050 
focuses on requirements for landscaping and lighting.  
 
Chapter 28.11 Protection and Enhancement of Solar Access 
 
Chapter 28.11 was developed to establish height limitations in the residential zones to 
protect solar access particularly during development or redevelopment.  This ordinance, 
as it relates to the urban forest, does not establish height limitations on trees or consider 
tree shading. The intent is to accommodate for natural light. 
 
 
Santa Barbara General Plan 
 
The City’s General Plan provides broad policy direction for the urban forest.  Proposed 
land use, growth management, and biological resources policies and implementation 
actions included in the 2011 General Plan update, Plan Santa Barbara, address 
ongoing protection and enhancement of the City’s urban forest. 
 
Land Use Element 
 
The Land-Use Element of the General Plan contains goals and possible implementation 
actions that seek to enhance community and neighborhood character and are described 
below.  In general, these goals recognize trees as an important visual element and seek 
to preserve them during development or redevelopment, as well as include them during 
long-range neighborhood planning development for reduced carbon footprint. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 27 
 

Open Space, Parks and Recreation Element 
 
The Open Space, Parks and Recreation Element seeks to enhance the character of 
Santa Barbara through conservation and by providing significant open and natural 
landforms throughout the City.  Implementation of goals defined in the original 
document (1972) included preservation of creek channels and hillsides in their natural 
state, reforestation in mountains where possible, protection of mature trees on private 
property and adoption of an effective tree preservation ordinance.   
 
Environmental Resources Element 
 
The Environmental Resources Element includes policies related to: climate change, 
energy conservation, air quality, biological resources, hydrology, water quality and 
flooding, aesthetics and visual resources.   
 
Specific goals that preserve and enhance the urban forest are found under Biological 
Resource Policies include ER11 and ER12.1.  ER 11 addresses the protection of native 
and Mediterranean drought-tolerant species in urban areas and in landscaping for their 
benefits as energy and water savers and providers of habitat and shade.  ER 12.1 
addresses protection, maintenance and expansion of the City’s remaining diverse native 
plant and wildlife habitats, including ocean, wetland, coastal, creek, foothill, and urban-
adapted habitats.  
 
Local Coastal Plan 
 
The Local Coastal Plan is the Land Use Plan and Map for the City’s Coastal Zone.  The 
City’s LCP implements the provisions of the California Coastal Act by indicating the 
type, location, and intensity of land uses; and providing resource protection and 
development policies and implementation actions. Policy 9.11 and 9.12 require 
minimizing vegetation and tree removal along Highway 101.  Policy 9.11 requires 
replacement of removed vegetation where removal is unavoidable. Policy 9.12 provides 
conditions to the Coastal Development Permit as part of the approval process that 
relate to trees and landscaping along Highway 101 and provides its own definition of 
“specimen tree” related to this policy.  The LCP notes, “For the purposes of this 
standard, a specimen tree is defined as any tree with a diameter of at least six inches 
measured four feet above the ground with a minimum height of six feet. For trees such 
as willows which do not have a single trunk, the diameter of all upright woody stems 
should be combined for the measurement of the diameter.”  Conditions include tree 
replacement ratios and tree size, use of drought-tolerant species that provide screen, 
and installation of irrigation. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 28 
 

Climate Action Plan 
 
The Santa Barbara Climate Action Plan addresses climate change issues for the City of 
Santa Barbara community through the year 2030, in accordance with directives of the 
Santa Barbara General Plan and the California Global Warming Solutions Act (AB 32).  
The purpose of the plan is to: (1) reduce the rate of carbon emissions generated within 
the Santa Barbara community; and (2) plan for adaptation of Santa Barbara to climate 
changes.  The Plan includes policies for reducing carbon emissions and adapting to 
climate change the areas of energy efficiency and green building, renewable energy, 
travel and land use, vegetation, waste reduction, and water conservation. Several 
strategies relate to trees and vegetation in the urban forest, including: 
 
Carbon Reduction 
 

39. Tree planting – Increase carbon sequestration through the planting of 
additional trees, with a goal of 1,000 new trees by 2030. 

 
40. Street trees – Issues to be addressed include canopy cover, land uses, 
infrastructure constraints, environmental resources, and aesthetics. 

 
41. Tree & landscaping protection – Protect native & other urban trees and 
landscaped places and promote use of native or Mediterranean, drought-tolerant 
species in landscaping to save energy and water, incorporate habitat, and 
provide shade.  

 
42. Urban heat island effect – Establish standards to decrease impermeable 
surfaces; incentives for green roofs and cool roofs 

 
43. Regional open space preservation – Coordinate with County, school district, 
other cities on regional open space protection. 

 
Adaptation to Climate Change Effects – Bio Resources 
  

97. Wildlife, coastal and native plant habitat protection 
  

98. Open space connectivity and trails 
 

99. Creek setbacks, protection, restoration 
 
Wildland Fire Plan  
 
Santa Barbara’s Wildland Fire Plan was created to protect lives, property, and natural 
resources threatened by wildland fire.  The Plan organizes the City’s existing high fire 
hazard area into four zones and applies appropriate vegetation management distances 
to each zone, known as defensible space requirements.  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 29 
 

  
Defensible space requirements are established for properties in high fire areas and 
include brush clearance, the use of fire resistant landscaping, plant spacing and 
maintenance.  In some cases, this limits the number and type of trees placed on private 
property.  Use of these guidelines is intended to impede the progress of fire, reduce its 
intensity and provide a safe buffer to protect homes and buildings.  The plan includes a 
list of plants and trees that have desirable qualities for fire resistant landscaping as well 
as those that do not. 
 
The Wildland Fire Plan also identifies areas within the high fire hazard area that are 
outside the Fire Department Defensible Space Requirements, but that have existing 
hazards and risks that increase the potential for loss of wildlife habitat, property loss and 
safe fire protection. These units are identified as Vegetation Management Units. 
Vegetation management is proposed within each of these units. The Fire Department 
works with private property owners and neighborhoods to implement vegetation 
management plans and provides a list of fire-wise tree and plants and encourages tree 
pruning. 
 
Design Guidelines 
 
Several design guidelines and plans are listed due to their relevance to trees in the 
urban forest, particularly during re-development or new development.  The City’s design 
review boards including Single Family Design Board Architectural Board of Review and 
Historic Landmarks Commission have design guidelines for development and 
redevelopment. Other guidelines consist of voluntary actions like those in the Passive 
Solar Building Design Guidelines.  
 
Single Family Design Board Guidelines Architectural Board of Review Guidelines and 
Historic Landmarks Commission Guidelines  
 
Guidelines for Single Family Design Board, Historic Landmarks Commission and 
Architectural Board of Review contain many of the same goals and policies for 
protection and enhancement of trees and landscaping on private property.  Many of the 
projects subject to the review by one of these Boards are required to have a landscape 
plan. The guidelines are intended to clarify the goals and policies of the respective 
boards for the public and those who enter apply for a permit.  
 
Solar Energy System Design Guidelines  
 
These voluntary guidelines provide guidance to property owners, architects, contractors 
and others who may be interested in using solar energy in their buildings. The 
guidelines include general principles as well as specific techniques for designing solar 
energy systems that can take advantage of solar energy.  
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 30 
 

As they pertain to trees in the urban forest, the guidelines encourage choosing plant 
and tree types and locations that will not grow to shade areas on the property or on 
neighboring properties where solar energy systems are installed.  While these 
guidelines consider the type and placement of trees, they do not address trees planted 
prior to or after the installation of solar energy systems or trees on adjacent property 
owners that may grow to shade the solar systems. 
 
Passive Solar Building Design Guidelines and Recognition Program 
 
The Passive Solar Building Design Guidelines are voluntary actions that can provide 
energy savings and create a more comfortable environment.  The Guidelines promote 
Passive Cooling Techniques that minimize direct sun exposure and heat absorption.  
For example, trees can be strategically placed to shade homes and provide cooling in 
the summer, sun in the winter and to decrease wind.   
 
Landscape Plan Guidelines 
 
When landscape plans are required for a project subject to the review of the 
Architectural Board of Review, Historic Landmarks Commission  or Single Family 
Design Board , they must be submitted prior to the Project Design Approval hearing.  
When developing these plans, the following considerations should be made: number of 
tree removals, invasive plants being used, right plant-right place, water conservation, 
permeability, sustainability and any specific guidelines particular to the project.  A 
Landscape Design Guidelines Consistency worksheet is available to help the public 
develop their plan with the City’s policies in mind. 
 
Stormwater Management Program 
 
The State’s Minimum Design Standards for storm water management and water quality 
protection are addressed in the City’s Storm Water Management Program (SWMP).  
The SWMP addresses a number of required design standards, one of which is natural 
area conservation grading limitations. The SWMP design standards seek to minimize 
grading and clearing of native vegetation, preserve existing trees and vegetation, 
promote the use of native and drought-tolerant vegetation, incorporate landscaping in 
parking lot design, and preserve riparian areas and wetlands.  
 
Pedestrian Master Plan 
 
Santa Barbara is already a world-renowned city for its livable and walkable Downtown. 
Pedestrian activity translates directly into health, economic, environmental, and cultural 
community benefits. The objective of the Pedestrian Master Plan is to address 
obstacles to increased walking, such as deficient facilities, concerns about safety, 
attractiveness and appeal, and a lack of connectivity. The Pedestrian Master Plan sets 
forth specific strategies for improvements  The Plan identifies the desirability and 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 31 
 

psychological comforts of trees, accommodates for street trees, and provides design 
guidance for minimum clearances below street trees. 
 
Urban Design Guidelines 
 
Several sections of this document incorporate the use of vegetation and canopy trees to 
enhance landscaping near and around pedestrian facilities and amenities, courtyards, 
plazas, and placitas.  Use of trees is generally required to provide shade, weather 
protection and greenery in the urban environment.  
 
Upper State Street Design Guidelines 
 
These guidelines require trees to be used in streetscape plantings and to frame views 
rather than block them.  They recommend protecting skyline and canopy trees 
bordering State Street, as well as integrate parking lot lighting with trees. 
 
Harbor Master Plan Design Guidelines 
 
The Harbor Master Plan suggests the use of large canopy trees in parking areas and 
shade trees for pedestrian areas.   
 
Other Guidelines 
 
Other areas of the city with designated guidelines for development, including trees, 
include the Haley Milpas Design Guidelines, Highway 101 Coastal Parkway Design 
Guidelines, State Street Landscaping Design Guidelines, Waterfront Aesthetic Criteria 
for New Development, Lower Riviera Special Design District Guidelines, and El Pueblo 
Viejo (EPV) Design Guidelines. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 32 
 

V.  Santa Barbara Urban Forest Key Issues 
 
The identification of key issues for the long-term management of Santa Barbara’s urban 
forest provides the foundation for the urban forest objectives and implementation 
actions. The key issues presented below were developed with input from community 
members, City design/development review boards and commissions, the Street Tree 
Advisory Committee and Parks and Recreation Commission, the Urban Forest 
Technical Advisory Committee, and City staff in the Parks and Recreation, Community 
Development, Public Works and Fire departments.  The issues are organized under 
three main topics: tree resource management, City policy and organization, and 
community involvement.  
 
Tree Resource Management 
 
As the City has developed with paved streets, sidewalks, and other public infrastructure, 
street parkway planting spaces have decreased and tree root systems are increasingly 
impacted by compaction and construction disturbance. There are management 
challenges when trees grow into high voltage power lines, root systems disrupt paved 
surfaces, and grow too close to underground infrastructure. Tree planting spaces can 
also be inappropriate for the size of the tree.  Public resources to plant and maintain 
trees have not kept pace with tree maintenance needs to ensure a healthy urban forest.  
The public’s opinion of trees is diverse and can create conflict due to tree size, leaf 
drop, views, shade and/or solar access.  The Wildland Fire Plan and high voltage line 
street clearance requirements can result in radical pruning with aesthetic and tree value 
impacts.  In addition, traffic visibility considerations can affect the potential to plant and 
maintain trees in areas with higher traffic volumes.  
 
Existing resources allocated for tree planting and maintenance are unlikely to be 
sufficient to adequately care for existing trees and/or expand urban forest resources 
over the long-term. Currently, annual street tree pruning operations are primarily 
focused on grid pruning. Fewer resources are available for specialized pruning, and 
systematic removal and replacement of poorly performing trees, or trees at the end of 
their life.  The loss of tree resources and the lack of planning for new trees also affects 
the health and longevity of City park tree population.   
 
Specific Tree Resource Management Issues identified during Plan development 
include: 
 

1. Low diversity/overuse of similar species in existing population 
2. Need to develop a proactive approach to systematic removal and timely 

replacement of poorly performing or placed trees and trees at the end of their life 
3. Need for organized interdepartmental plan to manage tree and infrastructure 

maintenance, improve parkways, address tree canopy clearances and assess 
roadway visibility and other public safety issues 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 33 
 

4. Tree planting and landscaping challenges arise when buildings are constructed 
at property line and/or building heights limit tree sizes and/or ability to plant trees 

o Redevelopment/Urban infill changes streetscapes and tree options 
5. A large number of vacant tree sites exists in parks and along streets that are 

potentially suitable for planting 
6. Maintenance focuses on grid pruning and citizen response pruning  

o Need for proactive pruning/maintenance  
7. Conflict between trees/solar access/views likely to increase 
8. Need for proactive verse reactive pest management 
9. Unknown consequences of climate change on tree population health, longevity 

and maintenance requirements 
10. Value of trees not frequently considered, trees not treated as a capital resource 
11. Park tree maintenance focused on safety 

o A significant number of unique park tree species occur only once with no 
plan to offset this loss  

o Need to take advantage of and seek opportunities to restore/enhance 
riparian canopy, eliminate invasive species and increase native habitat in 
open space parks and parks with creeks 

12. Trees as bird and wildlife habitat not always considered during species selection 
and tree replacement and planting 

13. Limited maintenance and inappropriate planting and pruning of private trees 
o Loss of tree resources through removals 
o Lack of knowledge of landowner responsibility for maintenance of private 

infrastructure and regulated trees 
14. Public and private infrastructure damage from both publicly and privately owned 

trees 
15. Fire prevention and safety 

o High Fire Hazard Area Defensible Space requirements limit tree planting 
opportunities and require certain tree maintenance 

 
City Organization and Policy 
 
Santa Barbara’s organizational challenges relate to interdepartmental coordination, staff 
training, and financial resources.  In addition to Parks and Recreation, the Public Works, 
Fire and Community Development Departments are involved in the management of tree 
resources. Consistent interdepartmental coordination and communication is critical for 
effective tree resource management.  At times poor coordination and lack of staff 
knowledge of tree protection policies and practices has resulted in delayed project 
decision-making, loss of trees, lost opportunities for planting new trees, and other 
issues.  
 
From a policy and planning perspective, the City has a strong foundation for tree 
protection and enhancement. While some documents, such as the Street Tree Master 
Plan need to be updated, recent updates to the municipal code and landscape plan 
guidelines reaffirm Santa Barbara’s commitment to preservation of urban forest 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 34 
 

resources.  In addition, guidance in the General Plan, Local Coastal Plan, and Climate 
Action Plan, as well as City Council support for urban forest management issues and 
well-established advisory boards, provide a solid framework to address urban forest 
issues.  At the same time, as Santa Barbara continues to develop and the public urban 
forest matures, land development, infrastructure improvements, and community safety 
considerations, such as including solar design, pedestrian access, views, and fire 
protection, among others, may require new policy guidance.   
 
Specific City Policy Issues include: 
 

1. Street Tree Master Plan outdated, provides limited guidance 
2. No overall Park Tree Master Plan 

o Fire prevention and species selection in parks and open spaces 
o Defensible space considerations 

3. Landscape design guidelines require the planting and maintenance of some 
trees on private property, yet enforcement of those plans is limited 

4. Tree preservation ordinances do not address native trees, native habitat areas, 
or wildlife corridors 

5. Pedestrian Master Plan does not adequately address need for space to plant 
trees 

6. Design review boards require landscaping within parkways without regard to 
maintenance needs 

7. Risk reduction plans need to reduce wind/falling limb hazards and identify 
potential high hazard trees or areas 

8. Purpose and function of Historic and Specimen designations not well defined 
o Review definition and designation process with consideration of 

replacement species and location 
 
Specific City Organization Issues include: 
 

1. Limited funding resources to maintain existing street trees 
2. Limited funding resources to plant, establish and maintain new street trees 
3. Lack of funding and mechanisms for community education/outreach and tree 

planting programs 
4. Limited funds for park and facility tree maintenance and new park tree planting 

o Loss of park species diversity 
5. Budget implications for identification and resolution of infrastructure conflicts 
6. No comprehensive enforcement program that is proactive, education based 
7. Competing priorities among different departments can create conflict and 

adversely affect trees 
8. Inconsistent interdepartmental communication and coordination can result in 

missed opportunities to plant/maintain and protect trees 
9. Lack of staff knowledge on tree preservation and maintenance requirements 

results in missed opportunities, delayed project decision-making, loss of trees, 
lost opportunities for planting new trees and other issues. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 35 
 

 
Community Involvement 
 
Community involvement in the urban forest is primarily focused on street tree 
maintenance.  Residential homeowners often have an expectation that the City will 
provide prompt response based pruning.  This practice, which is increasingly difficult 
with reduced staff, also reduces tree maintenance efficiency.  In addition, many 
landowners are not familiar with City tree preservation rules and maintenance 
requirements which can lead to illegal removals and improper pruning practices.  This is 
compounded by limited staff resources that have a greater focus on enforcement rather 
than proactive community education.  Recent updates to community information 
materials, including City web page information, preparation of a Community Tree Guide, 
and workshops for tree care professionals, provide some of the tools to increase 
community knowledge and involvement, yet more is needed.   
 
Specific Community Involvement Issues include:  
 

1. Limited community involvement in street tree selection, planting and 
maintenance 

2. Limited public knowledge of tree preservation policies 
3. Public perception of street trees is diverse 
4. Lack of knowledge of City preservation rules and landowner responsibility for 

maintenance of private infrastructure and regulated trees 
5. Limited resident participation in street tree maintenance 
6. Community involvement primarily focused on street tree maintenance through 

tree permitting.  
7. Need for incentive programs to promote tree planting on private property  
8. Residential homeowners often have an expectation that the City will provide 

prompt response based pruning 
 
 
 

  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 36 
 

VI. Urban Forest Management Plan Vision and Mission 
 
 
Urban Forest Plan Vision 
 
Santa Barbara’s urban forest is healthy and diverse, and contributes to the community’s 
economic, environmental, and aesthetic vitality. It is valued and cared for by the City 
and its citizens, and reflects our horticultural heritage. 
 
 
 
Urban Forest Plan Mission 
 
Preserve, protect and enhance our trees, promote the benefits of trees, and foster a 
healthy and diverse urban forest. 
 
 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 37 
 

VII. Urban Forest Plan Goals, Objectives, Implementation Actions 
 
Goals 
 

1. Elevate the importance of the urban forest. 
2. Continue Santa Barbara’s horticultural legacy. 
3. Promote a vibrant and healthy community. 
4. Foster awareness and appreciation of trees. 

 
Objectives 
 
The fifteen Objectives and corresponding implementation actions of the Urban Forest 
Plan are organized under: 1) Tree Resource Management, 2) City Organization and 
Policy, and 3) Community Involvement.  Each objective includes a discussion to provide 
context and support the associated actions.  Implementation of any action will include 
policy, program and budget coordination as well as an assessment of long-term funding 
and data needs, development of tools and programs, and staffing levels.  Where 
necessary, additional considerations are included specific to each objective and/or 
associated actions. 
 
Tree Resource Management 
 
Objective 1: Maintain City trees to promote safety, health and longevity. 
 
Healthy trees contribute to Santa Barbara’s environmental health and quality of life. 
Trees maintained on a regular, frequent cycle are healthier, live longer, reduce conflicts 
with urban infrastructure, and increase safety.  The City’s current trimming cycle limits 
the City’s ability to adequately maintain all of its street trees.  Maintenance plans are 
year-to-year, and funding levels constrain proactive and systematic removal and 
replacement of trees that are performing poorly or reaching the end of their life. Further, 
the City does not have a plan to address trees located under high voltage power lines 
that are pruned for safety reasons by Southern California Edison that often results in a 
dramatic loss of tree canopy, reduced aesthetics and tree benefits.  Addressing these 
issues will prolong the life of trees, provide clear direction for tree replacement and 
increase the aesthetic quality of trees located under or near utilities.  In addition, 
ongoing comprehensive analysis of the urban forest is essential for implementation of 
resource management tools and cost/benefit analyses.  
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Trim/maintain street trees more frequently to promote public safety, neighborhood 

aesthetics, and tree health. 
2. Develop a multi-year plan to address tree maintenance, planting and removal 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 38 
 

citywide. 
3. Develop a young tree training program to reduce the potential for mature trees to 

conflict with high voltage lines and other utilities and infrastructure. 
4. Broaden and formalize partnerships with Southern California Edison (SCE), Caltrans 

and other utility companies through Memorandum Of Understanding’s or other 
means to implement tree trimming plans and where possible utility undergrounding to 
minimize conflict/maximize safety while promoting tree canopy, health and longevity. 

5. Conduct periodic tree assessments to monitor tree performance. 
6. Continue to maintain the City tree inventory database to achieve urban forest 

objectives and tree management.  
7. Continue to work with the Fire Department to develop and implement proactive 

maintenance plans for street trees located in high fire zones. 
 
Objective 2: Enhance street parkway growing conditions where feasible. 
 
Many tree problems in urban areas can be traced to physical changes, such as 
introduced hardscapes, poor soils, small planting spaces and street and sidewalk 
construction that result in reduced supply of nutrient rich soil, water and oxygen. 
Consequences can include hardscape/root conflict, poor canopy growth and degraded 
tree health.  The implementation actions seek to enhance the health, longevity and 
aesthetics of street trees by providing better growing conditions. Baseline data on 
parkway conditions will provide information on enhancement opportunities. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Revise City infrastructure construction specifications to maximize tree health and 

longevity and minimize infrastructure damage. 
2. Identify existing parkways that can be enlarged to accommodate greater canopy 

and/or larger canopy trees. 
3. Promote streetscape redevelopment to maximize parkway planting area. 
4. Develop formal parkway and tree planting guidelines and specifications to maximize 

tree health and minimize conflict with public infrastructure.  
5. Provide extra protection for newly planted trees such as curb adjustments and 

protective barriers where necessary and feasible. 
6. Where feasible, include irrigation during parkway and sidewalk redevelopment. 
7. Work with adjacent land owners and neighborhoods to provide supplemental water 

and weed management. 
8. Develop strategies to manage sensitive parkway trees during drought conditions. 
9. Develop parkway construction specifications to improve parkway soil conditions that 

promote young tree root development and minimize infrastructure damage. 
10. Where feasible, utilize the latest construction technology such as permeable pavers, 

to increase storm water infiltration and provide water to tree roots. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 39 
 

Objective 3: Optimize tree canopy. 
 
As canopy increases, the benefits that trees provide increases, such as shade and 
energy conservation, wildlife habitat, neighborhood character and beauty, cleaner air 
and reduced storm water runoff, among others. Optimizing tree canopy includes 
identifying appropriate planting spaces for large trees, planting groups of trees to 
achieve contiguous canopy, planting larger trees where possible, and planting new 
trees and replacing lost trees in areas with lower canopy coverage. Key considerations 
include staffing costs for tree planting and maintenance, and implementation of 
outreach programs to involve residents and property owners. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Identify planting locations along City streets, in City parks and on other public 

property that can support greater canopy and/or large canopy tree species. 
2. Complete a comprehensive inventory of vacant planting sites to determine which 

ones can support new trees. 
3. Identify opportunities to increase available planting space along City streets, in City 

parks and on other public property. 
4. Increase the use of large-canopy trees where practical. 
5. Expand the young tree care program to increase plantings and associated care and 

maintenance. 
6. Expand street tree planting and replacement program with priority on neighborhoods 

with the fewest trees and in areas where residents are willing to provide 
supplemental early tree care. 

 
 
Objective 4: Optimize age and enhance species diversity. 
 
Age and species structure are important elements of urban forest health.  While species 
diversity reduces the likelihood of tree loss from disease or pests, varied tree age 
reduces the possibility that all the trees in the forest will begin to die at the same time.  A 
healthy mixture of young, medium, and older trees also provides a more complex habitat 
for wildlife and can support a greater number of species.  Long known for its horticultural 
heritage, Santa Barbara’s tree diversity is at risk.  Although the current City tree 
inventory contains approximately 456 different varieties of trees, half of those occur at a 
frequency of five or fewer times; ninety-six (96) species occur only once, many of which 
are no longer available commercially.  Determining an appropriate mix of tree age and 
species diversity that accounts for tree availability, planting locations, maintenance 
requirements, and other issues is a key consideration. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Maintain existing species diversity and investigate methods for increasing desirable 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 40 
 

species that are rare. 
2. Assess and develop age and species criteria for City parks and other City property.  
3. As part of the Street Tree Master Plan update, define appropriate age and species 

diversity distribution and locate areas where new or replacement trees should be 
planted. 
• Determine  potential  life  spans and growth sizes  in  Santa  Barbara  for  

designated  trees  and potential designated trees 
• Increase planting species that have longer average life spans Formalize the 

criteria and methodology for change to street tree designations. 
4. To the extent feasible, work with local and regional nurseries and other public agencies 

to grow/propagate unique and desirable tree species not commercially available. 
 
 
Objective 5: Maximize the economic, environmental, and aesthetic benefits of 
the urban forest. 
 
Trees provide ecological benefits such as reduced energy consumption, improved air 
quality, increased carbon sequestration, wildlife habitat, reduced storm water runoff and 
enhanced views.  Developing resources to measure and communicate these benefits is 
critical for City board and commission members during land development review, for 
home and business owners during re-landscaping and solar panel installation, and for 
effective decision-making by City managers.   
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Select new tree plantings that will maximize energy conservation, increase carbon 

sequestration, and provide shade. 
2. Encourage the use of parking lot and streetscape designs that provide greater 

amounts of pavement shading. 
3. Develop an economic/environmental tree resource calculator/performance checklist 

to evaluate  the  tree  resource  as  it  relates  to  other  capital  resources  during  
land development. 

4. Develop long-term street tree plans for major commercial corridors and public areas 
such as Upper State Street, De La Vina Street, Carrillo Street, Milpas Street, Chapala 
Street and Cliff Drive.   Integrate plans in land development projects and public 
infrastructure improvements. 

5. Require  street  tree  plantings and maintenance as  part  of  permitting  for  all  land 
development  and/or redevelopment, when new trees are planted. 

6. Develop tree resource management guidelines that balance tree resource value with 
solar access and solar energy system design. 

7. Work with private landowners to minimize the potential for private trees to conflict 
with public infrastructure.  

8. Develop guidance for tree selection and planting along Highway 101 that would 
improve air quality for nearby sensitive land uses.  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 41 
 

 
Objective 6:  Provide urban forest benefits that enhance visitor experiences in 
City parks and facilities. 
 
Santa Barbara’s parks provide relief to an urban landscape for both people and the 
environment.  City parks offer a diverse experience that includes: sports, bird and 
wildlife viewing, botanical discoveries, children’s play, picnicking, walking and other 
exercise, place of gathering, and more. Maintaining these areas for safety and their 
respective designed use is important.  The City’s Urban Forestry Program maintains 
over 9,200 trees located within 68 parks and landscaped areas of public facilities, and 
as many as 30,000 trees in open space parks.  Overall, park trees are on an eight to 
ten-year pruning cycle and lost trees are rarely replaced.  More frequent pruning, 
beyond safety pruning, is needed to prolong park tree life and health.  Planned 
replacements are needed to maintain aesthetic value and heritage as well as enhance 
native habitats.    
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Increase park tree maintenance for prolonged health and longevity. 
2. Develop a tree replacement program that enhances aesthetics and promotes 

recreation. 
3. Continue to work with the Fire Department to develop and implement proactive 

maintenance plans for parks located in high fire zones. 
4. Maintain stands of large trees in open spaces and community and developed parks. 
5. Increase canopy cover to enhance habitat for wildlife and for public benefit, where 

appropriate. 
 
 
Objective 7: Enhance and preserve trees within native habitats including 
riparian areas, oak woodlands and protected open spaces. 
 
Native habitats host drought-tolerant trees and vegetation that provide shelter, food and 
movement for native wildlife. City open space parks and riparian areas provide optimal 
locations to promote and enhance native trees. Actions within this Objective are 
consistent with General Plan goals found in Sections 11 and 12 of the Environmental 
Resources Element which recognize the importance of native trees and habitats found 
in native oak stands and riparian woodlands.  
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 42 
 

Implementation Actions 
 
1. Minimize compaction of soil under drip lines of trees by routing trails and pathways 

around trees. 
2. As part of the Park Tree Master Plan, address riparian and oak woodland 

management to  preserve  and  protect  mature  trees,  native  tree  saplings  and  
native  understory vegetation. 

3. Use large native trees in riparian zones and areas that connect to native 
landscaping and open spaces, where feasible. 

4. To the extent feasible, control invasive, non-native vegetation that threatens trees in 
riparian areas and open space parks. 

5. Develop a riparian canopy restoration program in parks with creek habitats. 
 
 
Objective 8: Maintain and protect historic and culturally significant trees city-
wide. 
 
Historic and specimen trees provide a link to Santa Barbara’s culture and history and 
have been designated for a variety of reasons, including their location amongst other 
historic/landmark structures, association with a particular person or time, value to an 
area as a prominent and established visual feature, or unique location, among other 
considerations.  Specimen trees are designated as such by virtue of their age, size, 
rarity, and condition of species.  Refining the definition of these trees and criteria for 
designation will better guide the designation process, as well as the maintenance and 
replacement of designated trees.   
 

1. Review and revise, as needed, the definition of and criteria for designation of 
historic and specimen trees. 

2. Clarify guidance for maintenance, longevity and replacement of designated 
specimen and historic trees. 

3. Maintain the history, design, cultural integrity, and functional use of developed 
parks, as feasible. 

4. Protect and enhance trees in historically significant parks such as Alameda Park, 
Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden, Orpet Park and Franceschi Park through 
increased tree maintenance and tree planting programs. 
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 43 
 

City Organization and Policy 
 
Objective 9: Enhance City investment in the health and management of the urban 
forest. 
 
Public resources to plant and maintain trees have not kept pace with tree maintenance 
needs to ensure a healthy urban forest and cannot support expanding programs.  
Increased funding will be an important first step as the City seeks to increase its level of 
tree service. Further, dedicated funding is not allocated for community outreach and 
public education, yet nearly 80 percent of the urban forest lies on private property. 
Long-term urban forest health will require programs that integrate the community. 
Establishing funding for programs and resources will drive the development of urban 
forest education.The City will continue to seek funds from grants and other sources to 
further Plan Objectives. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Increase annual maintenance funding for the management and care of City trees. 
2. Establish an annual capital improvement program to plant and maintain new trees. 
3. Establish funding for community outreach programs and public education 

resources. 
4. Develop public-private partnerships to address tree resource needs. 
5. Identify and obtain external sources of funding to support the goals and strategies 

of the Management Plan. 
6. Evaluate the feasibility of a Street Tree/Parkway Management Assessment District 

to fund street tree maintenance. 
 
Objective 10: Improve interdepartmental communication and coordination 
related to tree preservation and enhancement. 
 
Consistent interdepartmental coordination and communication is critical for effective 
tree resource management.  Several City departments are involved in tree care, 
including the Parks and Recreation, Public Works, Fire, and Community Development.  
At times, poor coordination and lack of staff knowledge of tree protection policies and 
practices has resulted in delayed project decision-making, loss of trees, lost 
opportunities for planting new trees, and other issues.  Part of long-term planning will be 
the ability to synchronize projects with other departments. For example, parkway 
enhancements can be coordinated with street or sidewalk related projects. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Establish formal urban forest team comprised of staff from Parks and Recreation, 

Public Works, and Community Development and Fire to address tree management 
and coordinate tree review for land development projects. 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 44 
 

2. Implement an annual staff and board/commission tree training program to review 
Tree Preservation and Tree Maintenance Policies, plus objectives and actions 
outlined in the Urban Forest Management Plan. 

3. Collaborate with the Public Works Department to develop criteria to evaluate tree 
performance, age and species diversity as well as options to remove/replace trees 
and enhance street tree grow space during construction projects that involve 
sidewalks, curbs, gutters and other infrastructure. 

 
Objective 11: Elevate urban forest objectives in City policies and land 
development considerations.  
 
The City’s street tree program is guided by the Street Tree Master Plan, adopted in 
1977.  Since that time, trees that were once small and in a spacious planting space, are 
now large and confined with a variety of infrastructure constraints.  An updated Street 
Tree Master Plan will address current urban forest key issues including: revisions to 
street tree designations, tree diversity objectives, canopy enhancement, infrastructure 
considerations and tree health and maintenance, among others.  In addition, the City 
does not currently have a plan that addresses long-term management of park trees.  As 
the community develops and the public urban forest continues to mature, trees need to 
be incorporated into the discussion during beginning stages of review for land 
development, infrastructure improvements, and for community safety considerations.  
Updating relevant documents in combination with the development of resource tools will 
increase urban forest health and optimize canopy, plus decrease missed opportunities. 

 
Implementation Actions 

 
1. Update the Street Tree Master Plan to address long range tree management 

objectives. 
2. Develop a Park Tree Master Plan that includes maintenance objectives, and 

planting and replacement strategies. 
3. Continue to implement and update, as needed, urban forest objectives in the City’s 

General Plan, Climate Action Plan, Local Coastal Plan, Pedestrian Master Plan, 
and Wildland Fire Plan. 

4. Integrate tree resource management objectives in the future update to the Open 
Space, Parks and Recreation Element of the General Plan. 

 
Objective 12: Ensure that tree preservation and land development ordinances 
support urban forest management goals. 
 
City policy documents affirm the City’s commitment and provide guidance for tree 
preservation.  Additional guidance/clarification for long-term planning specific to historic 
species is becoming an issue as these trees near the end of their life and are lost due to 
disease, extreme weather, and other conditions. 
 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 45 
 

Implementation Actions 
 
1. Review and update, if necessary, the City ordinances pertaining to trees and 

landscapes to ensure that they are consistent with urban forest management plan 
objectives.  

2. Develop Parkway Vegetation Planting and Care Guidelines/Checklist to better 
articulate and document plantings during land development review. 

3. Establish a tree mitigation bank program when impacts to trees cannot be avoided. 
 
Objective 13: Improve interagency coordination and partnerships. 
 
Developing strong partnerships with local agencies, businesses and private property 
owners will increase the success of urban forest objectives and generate additional 
resources. While the City currently works with several agencies on tree-related issues, 
these communications have primarily been on a case-by-case basis. The actions below 
seek to strengthen existing partnerships and develop new partnerships.  
 
Actions 
 
1. Establish and formalize partnerships with Southern California Edison, Caltrans and 

other utility companies through Memorandum Of Understanding’s or other means to 
implement tree trimming and planting plans that minimize conflict/maximize safety 
while promoting tree canopy, health and longevity. 

2. Develop partnerships with organizations, businesses and the public school system to 
encourage tree health and plantings on private property. 

 
 
Community Involvement 
 
Objective  14:  Enhance  public  awareness  and  appreciation  of  the  urban  
forest  as  a community resource. 
 
In order for residents to become actively engaged in enhancing and caring for the urban 
forest, they must first be made aware of the value and benefits it provides.  With an 
estimated 80 percent of the urban forest on private property, the urban forest’s overall 
health is dependent on community support.  Until now, outreach and education has 
been aligned with specific City projects including tree removals and policy changes, or 
as part of tree removal permitting processes.  It is anticipated that expanding urban 
forest education at a programmatic level will increase awareness of tree preservation 
policies and improve tree care practices city-wide. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Develop a comprehensive tree education program to provide city residents with 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 46 
 

information about tree preservation policies, the benefits trees provide, and the 
importance of tree canopy. 

2. Strengthen city-wide approaches for communicating through web, print and media 
and social media. Continue to provide resources about urban forestry to the public 
through newsletters, permitting, websites, and other resources. 

3. Hold an annual public workshop to educate public on policies, maintenance and care 
of trees. 

4. Develop partnerships with organizations, businesses, private and public schools to 
encourage tree health and plantings on non-City property. 

5. Institute a program to acknowledge and publicize contributions to urban forestry by 
residents, businesses, institutions, and neighborhood group organizations. 

6. Develop a tree education program to foster appreciation and awareness of the 
contribution of city-owned street trees and park trees to the City's history and cultural 
heritage. 

 
Objective 15: Expand public participation in urban forest preservation and 
enhancement. 
 
Santa Barbara’s tree planting history is strongly tied to citizen stewardship. Today’s tree 
policies aim to protect trees from unauthorized plantings and removals but can also limit 
the amount of public involvement. Currently, community involvement is often associated 
with street tree maintenance issues.  City programs are needed to balance the desires 
of individual residents with the City’s responsibility for overall tree care and 
management.  To increase urban forest enhancement on private property, the City will 
provide tree planting and maintenance technical assistance and work with public 
schools and other institutions to develop forest stewardship projects. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Develop Adopt-a-Block or Adopt-a-Tree programs to encourage healthy long-lived 

street trees.  
2. Develop a technical assistance program to support the planting and care of trees on 

private property. 
3. Develop community service opportunities with schools and other institutions for 

urban forest stewardship projects. 
4. Increase community involvement in street tree designations, maintenance, plantings 

and care. 
5. Engage the community to identify opportunities and barriers for tree planting and 

preservation on public property. 
6. Develop volunteer maintenance programs to increase public participation 

opportunities. 
 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 47 
 

Objective 16: Expand public/private partnerships. 
 
Partnerships will bring newfound resources and broader support for urban forest 
objectives.  Strengthening partnerships with civic groups, educational institutions  and 
businesses will expand the message of urban forest health and associated community 
benefits. 
 
Implementation Actions 
 
1. Develop partnerships with non-profit organizations, businesses, neighborhood 

associations, private schools and the public school system to encourage tree health 
and plantings. 

2. Seek opportunities to collaborate with universities and colleges and the public school 
system on urban forestry science and current research. 

3. Encourage private landowners to apply a tree resource calculator when selecting 
trees to increase economic, environmental and aesthetic benefits and enhance 
property values. 

 
  



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 48 
 

VIII.  Urban Forest Management Plan Implementation 
 
Implementation of this 30 year plan will require policy, program and budget 
coordination, data gathering, development of tools and programs, and establishment of 
long-term funding mechanisms.  Because not all actions can be implemented 
immediately, a work plan will outline priority actions, identify roles and responsibilities, 
analyze resource implications and funding needs, and establish realistic timelines for 
execution and completion.  Priority actions identified by the public, boards and 
commissions and staff address a variety of community needs and desires including tree 
maintenance, tree planting and community outreach, as well as organizational 
improvements including project coordination and staff training.  Work plans will remain 
flexible to account for new opportunities and respond to available funding through City 
Council annual budget approval.   
 
As shown in the following matrix, some implementation actions are already underway 
and represent key aspects of the City’s Urban Forest Management Program, while 
others expand upon current practices or are altogether new. The matrix also illustrates 
actions that do not require additional resources, as well as those that have short-term 
funding needs and others that require long-term program enhancements.   
 
Tree Resource Management 
 
Tree resource management implementation actions will increase tree planting and 
maintenance, formalize partnerships with utility companies to address tree/infrastructure 
conflicts, and optimize tree species and age to promote safety, aesthetics and tree 
health.  Additional actions include the development of and/or revisions to tree resource 
documents to help evaluate and provide guidance for urban forestry decisions for staff, 
boards and commissions, as well as the public.  Key actions include: 
 

• Shorten tree trimming cycles city-wide  
• Development of multi-year maintenance plans 
• Increase tree planting city-wide by identifying planting locations and areas where 

larger canopy trees can be planted 
• Develop a tree training program for trees located under utility lines 
• Formalize partnerships with Southern California Edison, Caltrans and other utility 

companies to address tree/infrastructure and utility conflicts 
• Revise City infrastructure construction specifications and development of 

formalized parkway tree planting guidelines 
• Develop tree resource guidelines that balance tree resource value with solar 

access and solar energy system design 
• Partner with neighborhoods for supplemental street tree maintenance 
• Assess parkway irrigation needs and adjustment options during times of drought 
• Work with local and regional nurseries and other public agencies to 

grow/propagate unique and desirable tree species not commercially available 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 49 
 

• Develop planting palettes for parking lots and areas along Highway 101 
• Protect trees in historically significant parks through increased planting and 

maintenance 
• Revise the definition of and criteria for selection of Historic and Specimen trees 
• Promote native canopy in parks where native woodlands and vegetation currently 

exist or where restoration is needed   

City Organization and Policy  
 
To address funding needs the Plan provides the following primary actions: 
 

• Increase annual maintenance funding for the management and care of City trees 
• Establish an annual capital improvement program to include planting and 

maintenance of new trees planted as part of a development/redevelopment 
projects 

• Establish funding for community outreach programs and public education 
resources 

 
To better coordinate with City boards, commissions and staff, the following actions are 
prioritized: 
 

• Establish an urban forestry team comprised of several departments to evaluate 
and address tree management and coordinate land development projects 

• Implement staff, board and commission trainings to review Tree Preservation 
and Tree Maintenance policies as well as UFMP work plan actions  

 
Actions that address policy objectives include: 
 

• Update the Street Tree Master Plan  
• Develop a Park Tree Master Plan 
• Develop parkway vegetation planting and care guidelines/checklist to better 

articulate and document plantings during land development review 
• Update City ordinances and Plans to provide consistency and reflect the UFMP 

objectives     
 
Community Involvement 
 
The implementation plan would expand community outreach and education through a 
variety of internal resources (such as web, printed materials, media, and permitting 
processes) as well as develop new programs.  New programs and partnerships would 
increase community involvement in tree care and foster appreciation of the urban forest.  
Key tasks include: 
 

• Development of a comprehensive outreach and education program 



 
   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  Page 50 
 

• Implementation of an Adopt-a-block program to supplement street tree care 
through neighborhood involvement 

• Schedule public workshops to provide technical assistance on care and 
maintenance plus educate public on City tree policies 

• Strengthen partnerships with non-profit organizations, businesses, neighborhood 
associations, local schools to encourage tree health and planting on private 
property 

• Establish recognition program for urban forestry contributions made by the public  
 

Partnerships may take a variety of forms depending on the type and/or role of an 
organization.  For example, the City may look to partner with the Association of Realtors 
as a venue to disseminate tree preservation and parkway tree care information to 
homebuyers while school district partnerships provide opportunities to educate the 
youth on the benefits of trees and provide tree planting on private property.  Other 
programs can provide volunteer planting and tree care opportunities and engage the 
community in street tree designations.   
 
Plan Monitoring and Reporting  
 
The Urban Forest Management Plan is intended to be a living document with the ability 
to be updated and revised periodically to:  
 

• Reflect changes in the urban forest resource structure and function  
• Incorporate changes in industry standards 
• Consider community response  
• Amend and/or develop new recommended actions   

 
Ongoing monitoring, analysis, and reporting will help keep staff and urban forest 
partners involved and focused on accomplishing Plan objectives.  To monitor progress 
of the Plans’ recommended actions, a progress report would be prepared periodically.  
Annual performance measure (P3) reporting would continue to reflect progress in 
planting and maintenance, permitting, ordinance violations, and contractor trainings. 
Analysis may include an updated street tree inventory, i-Tree benefits analyses, or 
urban tree canopy assessment.   
 
 

 
  



UFMP Implementation Matrix
`

Resource Needs:
Yellow- Part of program practice and/or no additional funding needed
Green- Short-term project, short-term increase in funding needed
Blue- Longer-term project or program, requires additional funding 1

Objectives and Actions New Existing Expanding

Trim/maintain street trees more frequently to promote public safety, neighborhood aesthetics, and tree health.    
Develop a multi-year plan to address tree maintenance, planting and removal citywide.    
Develop a young tree training program to reduce the potential for mature trees to conflict with high voltage lines and other utilities and 
infrastructure.    

Broaden and formalize partnerships with Southern California Edison (SCE), Caltrans and other utility companies through Memorandum 
Of Understanding’s or other means to implement tree trimming plans that minimize conflict/maximize safety while promoting tree canopy, 
health and longevity.

   

Conduct periodic tree assessments to monitor tree performance.      
Continue to maintain the city tree inventory database to achieve urban forest objectives and monitor tree management.    
Continue to work with the Fire Department to develop and implement proactive maintenance plans for street trees located in high fire 
zones    

Revise City infrastructure construction specifications to maximize tree health and longevity and minimize infrastructure damage.    
Identify existing parkways that can be enlarged to accommodate greater canopy and/or larger canopy trees.    
Promote streetscape redevelopment to maximize parkway planting area.    
Develop formal parkway and tree planting guidelines and specifications to maximize tree health and minimize conflict with public 
infrastructure.    

Provide extra protection for newly planted trees such as curb adjustments and protective barriers where necessary.    
Where feasible, include irrigation during parkway and sidewalk redevelopment.    
Work with adjacent land owners and neighborhoods to provide supplemental water and weed management.    
Develop strategies to manage sesnsitive parkway trees during drought conditions.    
Develop parkway construction specifications to improve parkway soil conditions that promote young tree root development and minimize 
infrastructure damage.    

Where feasible, use the latest construction technology such as permeable pavers, to increase storm water infiltration and provide water to     

Identify planting locations along City streets, in City parks and on other public property that can support greater canopy and/or large 
canopy tree species.    

Complete a comprehensive inventory of vacant planting sites to determine which ones can support new trees.
Identify opportunities to increase available planting space along City streets, in City parks and on other public property.    
Increase the use of large canopy trees where practical.    
Expand young tree care program to increase plantings and associated care and maintenance.    
Expand street tree planting and replacement program placing priority on neighborhoods with the fewest trees and in neighborhoods 
willing to provide supplemental early tree care.    

Maintain existing species diversity and investigate methods for increasing desirable species that are rare.    
Assess and develop age and species criteria for City parks and other City property.    
As part of the Street Tree Master Plan update, define appropriate age and species diversity distribution and locate areas where new or 
replacement trees should be planted.    

To the extent feasible, work with local and regional nurseries and other public agencies to grow/propagate unique and desirable tree 
species not commercially available.    

Tree Resource Management
Obj. 1: Maintain City trees to promote safety, health and logevity

Obj. 2: Enhance street parkway growing conditions where feasible

Obj. 3: Optimize tree canopy 

Obj. 4: Optimize age and enhance species diversity



UFMP Implementation Matrix
`

Resource Needs:
Yellow- Part of program practice and/or no additional funding needed
Green- Short-term project, short-term increase in funding needed
Blue- Longer-term project or program, requires additional funding 2

Objectives and Actions New Existing Expanding

Select new tree plantings that will miximize energy conservation, increase carbon sequestration and provide shade.    
Encourage the use of parking lot and streetscape designs that provide greater amounts of pavement shading.    
Develop an economic/environmental tree resource calculator/performance checklist to evaluate the tree resource as it relates to other 
capital resources during land development.    

Require street tree plantings and maintenance as part of permitting for land development  and/or redevelopment, when new trees are 
planted.    

Develop long-term street tree plans for major commercial corridors and public areas such as Upper State St, De La Vina Street, Carrillo 
Street, Milpas Street, Chapala Street and Cliff Drive.   Integrate plans in land development projects and public infrastructure 
improvements.

   

Develop tree resource management guidelines that balance tree resource value with solar access and solar energy system design.
   

Work with private landowners to minimize the potential for private trees to conflict with public infrastructure.    
Develop guidance for tree selection and planting along Highway 101 that would improve air quality for nearby sensitive land uses.    

Increase park tree maintenance for prolonged health and longevity.    
Develop a tree replacement program that enhances aesthetics and promotes recreation.    
Continue to work with the Fire Department to develop and implement proactive maintenance plans for parks located in high fire zones

   

Maintain stands of large trees in open spaces and community and developed parks.    
Increase canopy cover to enhance habitat for wildlife and for public benefit, where appropriate.    

Minimize compaction of soil under drip lines of trees by routing trails and pathways around trees.    
As part of the Park Tree Master Plan, address riparian and oak woodland management to preserve and protect mature  trees, native tree 
saplings and native understory vegetation.    

Use large native trees in riparian zones and areas that connect to native landscaping and open spaces, where feasible.    
To the extent feasible, control invasive, non-native vegetation that threatens trees in riparian areas and open space parks.    
Develop riparian canopy restoration program in parks with creek habitats.    

Review and revise, as needed, the definition of and criteria for designation of historic and speciment trees.    
Clarify guidance for maintenance, longevity and replacement of designated specimen and historic trees.    
Maintain the history, design, cultural integrity and functional use of developed parks, as feasible.    
Protect and enhance trees in historically significant parks such as Alameda Park, Alice Keck Park Memorial Garden, Orpet Park and 
Franceschi Park through increased tree maintenance and tree planting programs.    

Obj. 7: Enhance and preserve trees within native habitats including riparian area, oak woodlands and protected open spaces.

Obj. 5: Maximize the economic, environmental and aesthetic benefits of the urban forest.

Obj. 6: Provide urban forest benefits that enhance visitor experiences in City parks and facilities.

Obj. 8 Maintain and protect historic and culturally significant trees city-wide.



UFMP Implementation Matrix
`

Resource Needs:
Yellow- Part of program practice and/or no additional funding needed
Green- Short-term project, short-term increase in funding needed
Blue- Longer-term project or program, requires additional funding 3

Objectives and Actions New Existing Expanding

Increase annual maintenance funding for the management and care of City trees.    
Establish an annual capital improvement program to plant and maintain new trees.    
Establish funding for community outreach programs and public education resources.    
Develop public-private partnerships to address tree resource needs.    
Identify and obtain external sources of funding to support the goals and strategies of the Management Plan.    
Evaluate the feasibility of the Street Tree/Parkway Management Assessment District to fund street tree maintenance.    

Establish formal urban forest team comprised of staff from Parks and Recreation, Public Works, Community Development and Fire to 
address tree management and coordinate tree review for land development projects.    

Implement an annual staff and board/commission tree training program to review Tree Preservation and Tree Maintenance Policies, plus 
objectives and actions outlined in the Urban Forest Management Plan.    

Collaborate with the Public Works Department to develop criteria to evaluate tree performance, age and species diversity, as well as 
                  

   

Update the Street Tree Master Plan to address long range tree management objectives.    
Develop a Park Tree Master Plan that includes maintenance objectives, and planting and replacement strategies.    
Continue to implement and update, as needed, urban forest objectives in the City’s General Plan, Climate Action Plan, Local Coastal 
Plan, Pedestrian Master Plan, and Wildland Fire Plan.    

Integrate tree resource management objectives in the future update to the Parks, Recreation and Open Space Element of the General    

Review and update, if necessary, the City ordinances pertaining to trees and landscapes to ensure they are consistent with urban forest 
management plan objectives.    

Develop Parkway Vegetation Planting and Care Guidelines/Checklist to better articulate and document plantings during land 
development review.    

Establish a tree mitigation bank program when impacts to trees cannot be avoided    

Establish and formalize partnerships with Southern California Edison, Caltrans and other utility companies through Memorandum Of 
Understanding’s or other means to implement tree trimming and planting plans that minimize conflict/maximize safety while promoting 
tree canopy, health and longevity.

   

Develop partnerships with organizations, businesses and the public school system to encourage tree health and plantings on private    

City Organization and Policy

Obj. 13: Improve interagency coordination and partnerships

Obj. 11: Elevate urban forest objectives in City policies and land development considerations.

Obj. 12: Ensure tree preservation and land development ordinances support urban forest management goals.

Obj. 10: Improve interdepartmental communication and coordination related to tree preservation and enhancement.

Obj. 9: Enhance City investment in the health and management of the urban forest.



UFMP Implementation Matrix
`

Resource Needs:
Yellow- Part of program practice and/or no additional funding needed
Green- Short-term project, short-term increase in funding needed
Blue- Longer-term project or program, requires additional funding 4

Objectives and Actions New Existing Expanding
Community Involvement

Develop a comprehensive tree education program to provide city residents with information about tree preservation policies, the benefits 
trees provide, and the importance of tree canopy.    

Strengthen city-wide approaches for communicating about trees through web, print and social media.  Continue to provide resources 
about urban forestry to the public through newsletters, permitting, websites, and other resources.    

Hold an annual public workshop to educate public on policies, maintenance and care of trees.    
Develop partnerships with organizations, businesses, private and public schools to encourage tree health and plantings on private 
property.    

Institute a program to acknowledge and publicize contributions to urban forestry by residents, businesses, institutions, and neighborhood 
group organizations.    

Develop a tree education program to foster appreciation and awareness of the contribution of city owned street trees and park trees to 
the City's history and cultural heritage.    

Develop Adopt-a-block or Adopt-a-Tree program to encourage healthy long-lived street trees.    
Develop a technical assistance program to support the planting and care of trees on private property.    
Develop community service opportunities with schools and other institutions for urban forest stewardship projects.    
Increase community involvement in street tree designations, maintenance, plantings and care.    
Engage the community to identify opportunities and barriers for tree planting and preservation on public property.    
Develop volunteer maintenance programs to increase public participation opportunities.    

Develop partnerships with non-profit organizations, businesses, neighborhood associations, private schools and the public school system 
to encourage tree health and plantings.    

Seek opportunities to collaborate with universities and colleges and the public school system on urban forestry science and current 
research.    

Encourage private landowners to apply a tree resource calculator when selecting trees to increase economic, environmental and 
aesthetic benefits and enhance property values.    

Obj. 16: Expand public/private partnerships.

Obj. 15: Expand public participation in urban forest preservation and enhancement.

Obj. 14: Enhance public awareness and appreciation of the urban forest as a community resource.



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  
  

Glossary 

CANOPY 

The branches and foliage of a tree above ground or water.  

CANOPY COVER   

The percent of the city that is covered by trees.   

CARBON SEQUESTRATION 

Removal of carbon from the air by living trees and plants to be stored in their cells 
through the process of photosynthesis.  

COMPACTION 

The compression of soil, causing a reduction of pore space and an increase in the 
density of the soil. Tree roots cannot grow in compacted soil.  

DIAMETER AT BREAST HEIGHT (DBH) 

Measurement of trunk diameter taken at a four and a half feet (4-1⁄2’) above ground. 

DECLINING TREE 

Declining trees are defined as having a permanent and progressive reduction in health, 
vigor and/or structural stability that can eventually lead to its death or structural failure. 
Declining trees may typically be over mature, suffering from old wounds or other 
impacts that have interrupted the living system resulting in impeded growth and followed 
by the depletion of energy reserves that are normally stored in the root mass resulting in 
the reduction of health, condition and stability.  

FEASIBLE 

Capable of being accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of 
time, taking into account economic, environmental, legal, social, public safety and 
technological factors.  

FRONT SETBACK  
 
An area between the front lot line and a line parallel to the front lot line bounded by the 
interior lot lines of the lot that are roughly perpendicular to the front lot line, the depth of 
such area being the distance required by the zoning ordinance. (SBMC 28.04.620) 

  



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  
  

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) 

A Geographic Information System is a system designed to capture, store, manipulate, 
analyze, manage and present all types of geographically referenced data. A 
computerized system organizing data sets through the geographical referencing of all 
data included in its infrastructure.  

GOAL 

The result or achievement toward which effort is directed. Goals can be short term, long 
term and adaptable.  

GROWSPACE 

The ground level space that a tree is allotted to grow.  

HABITAT 

A place where a plant, animal or other organism naturally or normally lives or grows.  

HISTORIC TREE  

A tree which has been found by the Board of Park Commissioners, the Historic 
Landmarks Commission, or the City Council to be a tree of notable historic interest and 
has been designated by resolution of the City Council as an “historic tree”. (SBMC 
15.24.010) 

INFRASTRUCTURE 

The basic physical organization of a city’s capital assets (e.g. sewer, utility, street, 
sidewalk, transportation systems) needed for operational function within a city.  

MAINTENANCE  

Pruning, spraying, bracing, root pruning, staking, fertilizing, watering, treating for 
disease or injury, and other work performed to promote the health, beauty, or 
adaptability of trees and shrubs, but shall not include the watering of such trees in 
residential zones. (SBMC 15.20) 

NATIVE PLANT 

A plant that lives or grows naturally in a particular region without direct or indirect 
human intervention. Plants indigenous to a region, naturally occurring and not 
introduced by humans.  

 



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  
  

PARKWAY 

Either (i) the area between the curb and sidewalk within a fully improved street right-of-
way, or (ii) that area extending six feet from the curb towards the nearest right-of-way 
line in an area with no sidewalk, or (iii) any area within a street right-of-way in which an 
official or parkway tree is located. (SBMC 15.20) 

PARKWAY TREE 

A tree planted or caused to be planted by the City within a street right-of-way. (SBMC 
15.20) 

PRUNING 

Selective removal of branches (or occasionally roots) from a tree or other plant , using 
approved practices, for the purposes of cleaning, thinning, raising or reducing the crown 
or to improve structure of the tree or for crown restoration. 

RIPARIAN 

Areas adjacent to rivers, streams and watersheds with a differing density, diversity and 
productivity of plant and animal species relative to nearby uplands. 

SPECIMEN TREE 

A tree which has been found by the Board of Park Commissioners to be of high value 
because of its type and/or age and which has been so designated by resolution of the 
City Council as a “specimen tree”. (SBMC 15.24) 

STREET 

A public or private way constructed for the primary purpose of vehicular travel.  An alley 
or a driveway is not a street.  The term "street" describes the entire legal right-of-way or 
easement (public or private), including, but not limited to, the traffic lanes, bike lanes, 
curbs, gutters, sidewalk whether paved or unpaved, parkways, and any other grounds 
found within the legal street right-of-way.  The name given to the right-of-way (avenue, 
court, road, etc.) is not determinative of whether the right-of-way is a street. (SBMC 
28.04.650) 

STREETSCAPE 

A term used to describe the natural and built appearance of the street that usually 
includes street trees, ornamentals, landscape and site amenities.  

 



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  
  

STREET TREES 

See Parkway Tree 

TREE 

A usually tall, woody plant, distinguished from a shrub by having comparatively greater 
height and, characteristically, a single trunk rather than several stems. (SBMC 
15.20.020) 

TOPPING 

The indiscriminate cutting of tree branches to stubs or lateral branches that are not 
large enough to assume the terminal role. 

TRIMMING 

The same as pruning. 

TRIMMING CYCLE 

Frequency by which trees are maintained and depends on the size, location and type of 
tree.   

UNDERSTORY 

The underlying layer of vegetation including trees, plants and shrubs between the forest 
canopy and ground cover.  

URBAN FORESTRY 

The management, establishment and protection of trees and forests within cities, 
suburbs and towns.  

VISION 

Statement that provides a purpose beyond the moment and thinks and plans for the 
future.  

WILDLIFE CORRIDOR 

A pathway or habitat linkage that connects discreet areas of natural open space 
otherwise separated or fragmented by urbanization. Such a corridor allows animals to 
move between remaining habitats and provides escape routes from fire, predators and 
human disturbances. 



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  

References 

Publications 

Dimoudi, Argiro and Marialena Nikolopoulou (2003). Vegetation in the urban 
environment: microclimatic analysis and benefits.  Energy and Buildings 35 (69-
76). 

Dravigne, A., et al. (2008). The Effect of Live Plants and Window Views of Green 
Spaces on Employee Perceptions of Job Satisfaction.  HortScience 43(1): 183-
187. 

Gaffy, Neal (2012).  Santa Barbara Then and Now. Santa Barbara, CA: El Barbareño 
Publishing. 

 
Gilman, Edward F. and Sharon J. Lilly.  (2008) ANSI A300 Part 1: Best Management  

Practices, Tree Pruning Companion Guide.  International Society of 
Arboriculture. 

Hartfeld, Edward A. (2001).  The Santa Barbara City Park Department, Dwight Murphy  
and John Hartfeld and the Depression Miracle. Santa Barbara Historical 
Society:Noticias 48 (4) 78-105.  

Lottrup, L., et al. (2013). Workplace greenery and perceived level of stress: Benefits of 
access to a green outdoor environment at the workplace. Landscape and Urban 
Planning 110(0): 5-11. 

Muller, Robert N. and Carol Boernstein (2010).  Maintaining the Diversity of California’s  
 Municipal Forests.  Arboriculture and Urban Forestry 36 (1): 18-27. 
 
Muller, Robert N. and J. Robert Haller.  (2005) Trees of Santa Barbara.  Santa Barbara,  
 CA: Santa Barbara Botanic Garden,. 

Nowak, David J. (2002).  Effects of Urban Trees on Air Quality.  Syracuse, New York: 
U.S. Forest Service. 

Ward Thompson, C. (2011). Linking landscape and health: The recurring  theme. 
Landscape and Urban Planning 99(3-4): 187-195. 

Ward Thompson, C., et al. (2012). "More green space is linked to less stress in 
deprived communities: Evidence from salivary cortisol patterns." Landscape and 
Urban Planning 105(3): 221-229. 

Watson, Gary and E.B. Himelick.  (2005). ANSI A300 Part 6: Best Management  
Practices, Tree Planting Companion Guide.  International Society of 
Arboriculture. 

 
 
 



   
 
2014 Urban Forest Management Plan  

 

 

Online Resources 

Boyles, Salynn. (2009). Parks and Greenspaces Protect Your Health. WebMD Medical  
News. http://www.webmd.com/mental-health/news/20091014/parks-green-
spaces-protect-your-health. 

International Society of Arboriculture. http://www.isa-arbor.com/ 

Merriam-Webster online dictionary.  http://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary 

 

City Resources 

City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2009) City of Santa Barbara 
i-Tree Assessment. Santa Barbara, CA. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2011). Santa Barbara’s 
Community Guide to Tree Planting, Santa Barbara, CA. 
 
City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation Department. (2012). City of Santa Barbara 
Tree Canopy Cover Assessment, Santa Barbara, CA. 
 
Local Coastal Plan (1981, Amended 2004) 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=16925Santa  
 
Wildland Fire Plan (2004): 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/fire/ 
 
Storm Water Management Program (2009) 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/parksrec/creeks/quality/storm.aspBarbara  
 
Santa Barbara General Plan (2011) 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/services/planning/plan.asp 

Climate Action Plan (2012) 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=17709 
 
Design Guidelines (Residential and Specific Areas) 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/services/planning/design/default.asp 
 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code: 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/cityhall/municode.asp 
 

ttp://www.webmd.com/mental-health/news/20091014/parks-green-s
ttp://www.webmd.com/mental-health/news/20091014/parks-green-s
http://www.isa-arbor.com/
http://www.merriam-webster.com/dictionary
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=16925
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/depts/parksrec/creeks/quality/storm.aspBarbara
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/services/planning/plan.asp
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=17709
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/services/planning/design/default.asp
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/gov/cityhall/municode.asp


ATTACHMENT 2 

1 
 

Urban Forest Management Plan Summary of Comments and Actions 
 
Single Family Design Board, December 16, 2013 
 
The Single Family Design Board (SFDB) approved recommending the Plan to Council 
for adoption. The SFDB also recommended that plan implementation be coordinated 
with other ordinance updates, such as the hedge ordinance, and that street tree species 
selection consider neighborhood character and compatibility, canopy and the 
surrounding architecture.  SFDB members identified the following areas of interest for 
implementation: 
  

• Landscaping along 101, in parkways and medians that reflects the 
area/neighborhood  

• Efforts to increase homeowner knowledge of parkway and street tree standards 
• Provide reference to parkway maintenance standards in Zoning Ordinance 
• Consider the character of the developed area around trees in historic designation 

criteria 
• Coordinate with the County and School District  
• Use of mulch in parkway maintenance standards to reduce water needs 
• Neighborhood outreach through the recruitment of Block Captains 
• Public workshops 

 
Historic Landmarks Commission, December 18, 2013 and March 26, 2014 
 
The Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC) reviewed the Plan on December 18, 2013 
and provided the following comments related to the proposed Plan: 
 

• Provide an objective dedicated to addressing historic/specimen tree actions 
• Make the plan more concise 
• Add definition for tree drip line 

 
HLC members identified the following areas for implementation: 

• Revisions to Historic/Specimen definition 
• Enforcement related to illegal pruning/removal, construction techniques 
• Solar system design that balances tree canopy objectives.  

o Provide clear direction for boards and commissions 
o Address clear skies/line of sight  issues 

• Porous pavement in parkways 
• Tree maintenance needs, including adequate water 
• Coordination with the Pedestrian Master Plan and hedge ordinance updates 

o Address whether tree clusters are a hedge 
• Education of the public is a high priority 
• Education of board members and staff 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 

2 
 

After reviewing the revised final Plan, the Commission approved recommending the 
Plan to Council for adoption on March 26, 2014. 

Architectural Board of Review, January 6, 2014 
 
The Architectural Board of Review (ABR) recommended that the plan be forwarded to 
Council for adoption.   
 
ABR members identified the following areas of interest for implementation: 

• Tools for design/development review, including: 
o Replacement ratios for trees that are approved for removal 
o Tree protection plans 
o Bird protection measures, with a focus on bird nesting season 

• Recommended tree species for parking lots 
• Appropriate public locations for edible fruit trees 
• Maintain the balance of tree diversity with both native and non-native species 
• Balance street objectives with tree objectives 
• Tools to address tree needs during drought 
• Preferred tree species list 

 
Street Tree Advisory Committee, January 9, 2014 
 
The Street Tree Advisory Committee (STAC) recommended the Parks and Recreation 
Commission forward the Plan to Council for adoption.   
 
Committee priorities include: 

• Public education and outreach 
• Revisions to Street Tree Master Plan 
• Working with local growers and agencies to propagate desirable species not 

commercially available 
• Revisions to Historic/Specimen tree designation criteria and definition 
• Increased funding for urban forest management 
• Developing parkway vegetation planting and care guidelines 

 
Planning Commission, January 16, 2014 
 
The Planning Commission recommended that City Council adopt the Plan and 
requested the Plan include discussion of the benefits of trees, revisions to the glossary, 
revision to Objective 5, Action 1, and additional references to open space park trees. 
 
Other comments and priorities included: 

• Tools and resources to assess trees versus solar and other considerations 
• Partnerships with neighborhood associations 
• Develop a resource for the public, similar to the Storm Water Management 

Program land development guide 
• Make program a policy level process, rather than ancillary level process 



ATTACHMENT 2 

3 
 

 
Parks and Recreation Commission, January 22, 2014 
 
The Parks and Recreation Commission recommended that the Plan be forwarded to 
Council for adoption, and had the following comments and priorities for implementation. 

• Integrate climate change adaptations/options during severe droughts 
• Assess the feasibility of creating a climate action team to address the protection 

of tree /natural resources 
• Outreach and education 

o Make nursery propagation plantings available to the public 
o Work with youth 
o Continue to discuss tree benefits 

• Value and attention to park trees 
• Develop an adequate budget for urban forestry and Plan implementation 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA ADOPTING THE URBAN FOREST 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara has a long history of municipal tree planting and 
a diverse urban forest; 

 
WHEREAS, it is estimated that the City's urban forest is currently comprised of more 
than 320,000 trees;  

 
WHEREAS, Santa Barbara’s urban forest faces a number of challenges related to tree 
age, infrastructure constraints, species diversity, program funding limits, and community 
participation;  

 
WHEREAS, the City received a grant in 2012 from the California Department of 
Forestry and Fire to prepare an Urban Forest Management Plan;  

 
WHEREAS, development of the Urban Forest Management Plan included extensive 
community outreach and public discussion with City Boards and Commissions;  

 
WHEREAS, the Urban Forest Management Plan identifies key management issues, 
outlines goals, objectives, and actions, and proposes priorities for implementation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Urban Forest Management Plan provides a long-term guide for the 
preservation and enhancement of trees in Santa Barbara. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT the Council adopts the Urban Forest Management Plan attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 



Agenda Item No.  20 
 

File Code No.  630.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development 

Near Highway 101 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That Council: 

A. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council 
of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
by Adding Chapter 22.65 Establishing Air Quality Design Standards for New 
Development Near Highway 101 to Implement Policy ER7 of the 2011 General Plan; 
and 

B. Repeal City Council Resolution No. 12-013 upon the effective date of the Ordinance 
Adopting Chapter 22.65 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Extensive exposure to higher air pollution levels next to freeways is correlated with increased 
health risks. State air pollution control agencies recommend that cities limit development of 
sensitive land uses such as residences and schools next to freeways. 

Policy ER7 adopted by Council with the 2011 General Plan limits development of sensitive 
land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101 until air quality improves, or unless individual 
projects address the issue with development design. Implementation Action ER7.1 directs 
that development project review criteria be established for the near-highway corridors. 

The draft Ordinance proposed for inclusion in the Municipal Code would provide more 
detailed criteria for implementing Policy ER7, providing definitions of terms, applicable and 
exempt types of development, and project design measures for new sensitive land uses, 
including for site layout, barriers, vegetation, building features, and interior air filtration. 

The Ordinance Committee forwarded a draft Ordinance for Planning Commission review. 
The Commission held a public hearing to consider the draft Ordinance. Public input on this 
issue continues to be divided. The Commission recommends Council adoption of a revised 
draft Ordinance, and recommends that an air quality study be conducted within 2-3 years to 
inform reassessment of the need for the policy and ordinance. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 2 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
Air Pollution Health Risks 

Scientific and epidemiological studies have correlated extensive exposure to higher air 
pollution levels next to highways with increased health risks, including for cancer, asthma, 
and emphysema. The most sensitive populations are children, the elderly, and those with 
chronic medical conditions. 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) and Santa Barbara County Air Pollution 
Control District (APCD) recommend that local agencies restrict development of sensitive 
land uses within 500 feet next to highways (e.g., residences, schools) to limit exposure to 
higher pollution levels and health risks. 

A 2009 study of air pollution along Highway 101 within Santa Barbara was conducted for 
the City by the firm Illingworth & Rodkin. The analysis identified that air pollution 
concentrations generally dissipated to below the level of the excess cancer risk health 
standard at a distance of approximately 250 feet from Highway 101. 
 
General Plan Environmental Resources Policy ER7 

As part of the 2011 General Plan Update, the Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
evaluated air quality effects of additional incremental development to the year 2030.  

The EIR concluded that the air quality impact from future development near Highway 101 
would be mitigated with an interim policy restricting new development of sensitive land 
uses within 250 feet of Highway 101 until pollution and health risk levels were reduced 
through planned State regulations or other means, or unless individual projects incorporate 
design measures to address the issue.  

Policy ER7 establishing the 250-foot corridor distance was adopted by City Council as part 
of the 2011 General Plan Update (Attachment 1 – Policy ER7). The policy was carefully 
considered by the Planning Commission and City Council with input from agencies, 
property owners, interest groups, and the public. There was a split in public opinion, 
ranging from those that favored a 500-foot corridor distance consistent with 
recommendations of the air resources agencies, to others that favored 0 distance - no 
policy or corridor limitations. 

Implementation Action ER7.1 directs that the City establish project review criteria for new 
development to implement the policy. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 3 

 

ER7 Implementation Actions to Date 

In 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution 12-013 initially establishing applicable types 
of new development for implementing Policy ER7 (Attachment 2 – Council Resolution). 
Staff recommends rescinding this Resolution upon adoption of the Ordinance because the 
Ordinance would supersede the Resolution. 

The City Attorney’s Office prepared a draft implementing Ordinance, which was considered 
by the City Council Ordinance Committee on November 12, 2013. The Committee directed 
that it be forwarded for Planning Commission review and subsequent Council adoption 
(Attachment 3 – Ordinance Committee Minutes). 

Public notice for the January 16th Planning Commission public hearing included a 
newspaper display advertisement, and mailed notice to all property owners within 250 feet 
of Highway 101, as well as to community interest groups, agencies, and interested parties.  

The Planning Commission considered public comments and made revisions to the draft 
Ordinance. At the continued hearing on February 13, 2014, the Commission forwarded 
recommendations that Council adopt the Ordinance, and also undertake another air quality 
study of the highway corridor within 2-3 years to inform reconsideration of Policy ER7 and 
the Ordinance for repeal or amendment (Attachment 4 – Planning Commission Resolution 
and Hearing Minutes). 
 
Additional Background Information 

Attachment 5 provides further background information pertaining to land use within 250 
feet of Highway 101; effectiveness of project design measures; tracking of air quality and 
regulations; and policies in neighboring jurisdictions. 
 
Summary of Ordinance Components 
 
Purpose 

The intent of the proposed Ordinance is to implement Policy ER7 to protect the public 
health, safety, and welfare by reducing the highway pollution exposure levels and 
associated health risks for the occupants of new sensitive development close to Highway 
101 through project design standards. 
 
Definitions 

Sensitive Individuals are identified as persons most susceptible to adverse effects of poor 
air quality, including children, the elderly, and those with chronic medical conditions. 
Extensive Occupancy or Exposure refers to daily occupancy or frequent lengthy visits 
occurring repeatedly over many years. Sensitive Land Uses means land uses that involve 
extensive occupancy by sensitive individuals, including residences, retirement and nursing 
homes, schools, and large family day care facilities. Uses such as medical facilities and 
parks were not included because of shorter exposure periods. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 4 

 

Applicability 

The Ordinance provisions would apply to specified types of new development of sensitive 
land uses on properties located in whole or part within 250 feet of Highway 101. The 
distance would be measured from the outer edge of the nearest travel lane (excluding 
highway on- and off-ramps). The Ordinance would not apply to, nor require retrofitting of, 
existing development which is not proposing new development. 

Applicable new development would include: (1) One or more new residential units; (2) 
Substantial addition to an existing residential unit (greater than 50% of floor area); (3) New 
building for sensitive land use; (4) Demolition and replacement with structure for sensitive 
land use; (5) Change of use of an existing main building from a non-sensitive to a sensitive 
land use, or from one sensitive use to another sensitive use. 
 
Exemptions 

Projects exempt from the Ordinance would include: (1) Site locations with Caltrans sound 
walls (which help to block pollutants); (2) Still-valid applications submitted or approved 
prior to December 2011; (3) Projects on sites in part within 250 feet of the highway that 
propose new sensitive development more than 250 feet from the highway; and (4) Projects 
that submit an individual health risk assessment demonstrating no elevated health risk due 
to site-specific climatic or topographic conditions. 
 
Development Design Standards 

Site Layout and Building Design. Specified new development of main buildings for 
sensitive land uses would be prohibited within 250 feet of Highway 101 unless the 
Community Development Director or designee determines that the combination of project 
design features reduces air quality risks, with consideration of the following listed features. 
It is recognized that not all measures would be feasible on all sites. 

(1) Distance from Highway 101. Locate main structures as far as feasible from 
highway. 

(2) Building Orientation and Outdoor Living Areas. Orient with doors and outdoor living 
areas on side of building away from highway, which provides some physical 
screening by the building. 

(3) Vegetative Screening and Physical Barriers. Incorporate dense tiers of trees and 
other vegetation between the highway and project. Include walls or fences between 
the highway and project. 

(4) Air Infiltration. Use double-paned windows throughout and locate air intake vents on 
the side of building away from highway. 

Interior Ventilation and Filtration. High efficiency interior air ventilation/filtration system 
would be required for all main buildings for sensitive land uses. This is identified as one of 
the most effective measures. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 5 

 

Ordinance Implementation 
 
Staff and decision-makers would apply ordinance provisions as part of regular application 
review and approval processes.  

Public information about ordinance provisions would be provided on the City web site, and 
summary handouts provided at the Planning Counter. 
 
Planning Commission Issues and Draft Ordinance Changes 
 
The Planning Commission made adjustments and additions to the earlier draft of the 
Ordinance that was considered by the Council Ordinance Committee, as follows: 
 
Ordinance Application to One Unit on a Vacant Lot 

The earlier draft ordinance had provided an exemption for one residential unit on a vacant 
lot. This was derived from ER7 language intended to ensure that a vacant property would 
retain the right to develop an economic use, and a taking would not occur. Commissioners 
questioned the fairness of this exemption given that other new residential development 
would be subject to the ordinance.  

The current draft Ordinance forwarded by the Commission deleted this exemption for one 
unit on a vacant lot. 
 
Ordinance Exemption for Development outside the 250-Foot Corridor 

The Ordinance would apply to parcels “in whole or part” within 250 feet of Highway 101 
(See Attachment 6 – Map of 250-Foot Corridors, Parcels, and Sound Walls). Initial 
application of the ordinance by property boundary is a practical way to ensure proper and 
consistent implementation by staff, including at the building permit stage. 

The Commission added an exemption from the Ordinance for situations where a parcel is 
partly within 250 feet of Highway 101 but the proposed project for new sensitive land use is 
entirely outside of the 250-foot corridor. 
 
Ordinance Clarifications 

The Planning Commission incorporated clarifications to the draft Ordinance:  (1) to clarify 
Purpose text; (2) to clarify application of design measures to main buildings and not 
accessory structures; and (3) to include risk assessment criterion to be used in the general 
exemption. 
 
Air Quality Study and Reassessment of Policy ER7 and Implementing Ordinance 

Policy ER7 is identified as an interim policy until air quality improves through State 
regulation or the City otherwise determines that risks have been satisfactorily reduced. The 
Commission debated inclusion of a “sunset clause” in the Ordinance to specify the criterion 
for repeal or an automatic time frame for expiration of the ordinance.  



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 6 

 

Staff advised not to include a sunset provision in the ordinance for the following reasons: 

• It is not necessary because there is an ongoing option for Council to consider policy 
and ordinance amendments or repeal. 

• There is a benefit to retaining flexibility as to exactly what air quality information and 
criteria the City may use as a basis for policy and ordinance repeal. 

• A specific time frame for expiration does not reflect the need for evidence of 
changed air quality conditions as a basis, and could undermine Council’s 
environmental findings supporting the General Plan approval. 

The Planning Commission did not add a sunset provision, but provided a separate 
recommendation to Council to fund another air quality study within 2-3 years (and 
thereafter as needed) to inform reassessment of the need for the Policy and Ordinance. 
 
Public Comment 

Attachment 7 provides letters and communications received from the public during the 
Planning Commission hearing process, and a summary of staff responses. 

• Reduced Property Rights. Several property owners expressed concerns that the 
Ordinance could reduce property rights and their ability to improve their property. 

• Underlying Policy and Air Quality Study. Several property owners and residents 
disagreed with adopted Policy ER7 that underlies the Ordinance. Some suggested 
that the policy be repealed, and others that the policy be strengthened and the 250-
foot distance increased to 500 feet or more. Comments in disagreement with the 
2009 City air quality study were made in support of suggested ER7 policy changes. 

• Support for Ordinance. One resident commented in support of the Ordinance, and 
noted that Caltrans tree planting had improved air quality in her area. 

 
Policy and Environmental Analysis 
 
Policy Consistency 

City Charter. Charter Section 1507 includes the City policy that land development shall not 
exceed public services and physical and natural resources, including air quality. The 
proposed Ordinance provides development design standards to address air quality near 
Highway 101, consistent with the intent of this Charter section. 

General Plan. The proposed Ordinance would be consistent with and implement the 
General Plan Policy ER7 limitation for sensitive development within 250 feet of Highway 
101, and Implementation Action ER7.1 for establishing project review criteria for 
development within the corridor. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Ordinance To Establish Air Quality Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
April 8, 2014 
Page 7 

 

Environmental Review 

Adoption of the proposed Ordinance to implement Policy ER7 is within the scope of the 
2011 General Plan Update and its Program EIR analysis. The Ordinance would implement 
ER7 and would not result in additional environmental impacts beyond those identified in 
the Program EIR. The staff analyst determined that, in accordance with CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15168 and 15162, no further environmental review process under California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provisions is required for Ordinance adoption. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
Implementation of the Ordinance through regular permit review and approval processes is 
not expected to substantially affect workload and staffing, or associated costs. 

Staff will continue to monitor State air quality regulations and reports in coordination with 
the County Air Pollution Control District, and will include a status update as part of the 
General Plan Adaptive Management Plan. When air quality information indicates a 
substantial change, staff will recommend whether a local study is advisable to support 
possible rescission or amendment of this Ordinance. The consultant cost for the 2009 City 
air quality study was $12,450. Staff could likely request a sole source quote to update the 
study, and the funding of the study would be requested as part of the City’s budget cycle. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The proposed Ordinance would have a positive sustainability effect by reducing pollution 
exposures and health risks for sensitive populations. Design measures such as planting of 
trees and inclusion of barriers could have added sustainability benefits pertaining to 
biological resources, climate change, noise mitigation, visual resources, and livability. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 1. General Plan Policy ER7 
 2. City Council Resolution 12-013 
 3. Ordinance Committee Meeting Minutes of November 12, 2013 
 4. Planning Commission Resolution, and Meeting Minutes of 

February 13 and January 16, 2014 
 5.  Additional Background Information 
 6. Map of 250-foot Corridors, Parcels, and Sound Walls 
 7. Public Comments Received during Planning Commission 

Process 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Barbara Shelton, Project Planner/ Environmental Analyst 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Bettie Weiss, Acting Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



  ATTACHMENT 1  

 

 

    City of Santa Barbara 2011 General Plan, Environmental Resources Element 

          AIR QUALITY POLICY ER 7   

 

ER7. Highway 101 Setback. New development of residential or other sensitive receptors 
(excluding minor additions or remodels of existing homes or one unit on vacant 
property) on lots of record within 250 feet of U.S. Hwy 101 will be prohibited in the 
interim period until California Air Resources Board (CARB) phased diesel emissions 
regulations are implemented and/or until the City determines that diesel emission 
risks can be satisfactorily reduced or that a project’s particulate exposure level is 
sufficiently reduced. The City will monitor the progress of CARB efforts and 
progress on other potential efforts or measures to address diesel emissions risks.   

Possible Implementation Actions to be Considered 

ER7.1 Review Criteria. Prepare project review criteria for the set-back area. 

ER7.2 Barriers and Sound Walls. Pursue funding and installation of sound walls, 
trees and shrubs along unprotected areas of U.S. Hwy 101 to create a barrier 
to reduce particulate transmissions. Barriers and sound walls to be 
consistent with the Highway Santa Barbara Coastal Parkway Design 
Guidelines.   

 



ATTACHMENT 2









CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

FINISHED ACTIONS 
 

 
DATE: November 12, 2013 X Grant House, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. X Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers X Randy Rowse 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant To City Administrator                        City Attorney 
 
X Kate Whan X Scott Vincent 
Administrative Analyst Assistant City Attorney 
                                                

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Interim Design Standards For Development Near Highway 101 
 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee: 

A. Consider a draft ordinance establishing interim air quality design standards for 
development near Highway 101, to implement Policy ER7 of the 2011 General 
Plan; and  

B. Forward the draft ordinance for Planning Commission review and subsequent City 
Council adoption. 

 
The Committee heard a staff presentation on the proposed interim design standards for 
development near Highway 101. There was no public comment on this issue. The 
Committee directed staff to forward the draft ordinance for Planning Commission review 
and subsequent City Council adoption. 

ATTACHMENT 3







































 
 

Additional Background Information 
Air Quality Design Standards for Development near Highway 101 

April 8, 2014 City Council Agenda 
 

 

Land Use Information within 250-Foot Corridors along Highway 101 

Most parcels along each side of Highway 101 have some existing development, 
variously within commercial areas and residential areas. There are 991 parcels either 
wholly or partially within the 250-foot distance of Highway 101. 
     No. of Parcels 

• Parcels with some existing development  984  
• Vacant parcels             7 
• Parcels behind Caltrans highway sound walls  246 
• Parcels without Caltrans highway sound walls  745 
• Residentially zoned parcels    634 

(A-2, E-1, E-3, PUD, R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4) 
• Other zones       357 

(C-1, C-2, C-M, C-O, C-P, HRC-2, M-1, O-C, OM-1, or P-R) 

The existing residential development includes some multiple-unit complexes for families 
and the elderly which are partially located within the 250-foot distance. Examples 
include the Pilgrim Terrace senior housing in the Mission/Modoc area south of the 
freeway, and several City Housing Authority projects (at 600 block of Eucalyptus; 1200 
block of Castillo Street & 400 block of Anapamu Street; 500 block of W. Victoria Street; 
300 block of S. Voluntario Street; and 1900 block of San Pascual Street). 

Potential additional build out of residential units on these parcels under the General 
Plan and zoning designations is estimated at 458 units. During the upcoming period to 
the year 2030, up to approximately 91 additional residential units could likely be 
proposed on parcels wholly or partly within the 250-foot distance. This estimate uses 
the 2011 General Plan build-out scenario to the year 2030, which is based on historic 
growth rates and growth management policies. A portion of these would be on parcels 
not behind Caltrans sound walls and the ordinance provisions would apply.  

A complete land use inventory of other existing sensitive land uses within 250 feet of 
Highway 101 has not been conducted, but the area includes a few retirement homes 
and day care facilities. None of the District elementary, junior high, or high schools in 
the City are located within 250 feet of Highway 101.  

 

ATTACHMENT 5



 
 

 2  

Effectiveness of Project Design Measures 

It is recognized that the level of air quality mitigation from various design measures will 
vary across different site and meteorological circumstances and with changing factors 
such as wind direction and speed. A publication from the California Air Resources 
Board summarizes recent research on the effectiveness of air quality mitigation 
methods along highways (CARB, Status of Research on Potential Mitigation Concepts 
to Reduce Exposure to Nearby Traffic Pollution, 2012).  

• As expected, distance from the highway pollution source is the most effective 
measure.  

• Highway sound walls are effective at blocking roadway pollutants and providing 
higher dispersal of pollutants, resulting in substantial mitigation on the other side 
of the wall; generally about a 50% reduction in the concentration of pollutants. 
This is the basis for the proposed ordinance exemption for project sites located 
behind Caltrans sound walls. Caltrans sound walls are constructed of solid 
material (e.g., masonry or wood) and vary in dimension but are typically 10-14 
feet in height and eight inches thick. 

• Interior central ventilation/ air filtration is also identified as a very effective 
measure, although the effectiveness may be compromised by individual user 
practices regarding open windows and system maintenance. 

• Vegetative and Structural Barriers. Trees and dense vegetation are shown to be 
effective at trapping particulates. Both vegetative and structural barriers between 
the highway and project reduce the concentration of air pollution. 

Vegetation for air pollution mitigation is most effectively provided by rows of trees 
with either needles, such as firs and cedars, or dense leafy foliage, and planted 
in rows. City landscape design guidelines include a number of firs, cedars, and 
leafy trees.  

Other issues also need to be considered in selecting appropriate trees and 
vegetation for an individual site, including space limitations, fire hazard, soil 
type/climatic conditions, drought tolerant and native/Mediterranean plants, 
potential effects of root system on paved areas, blocking solar access on 
adjacent parcels, and maintenance issues. 

 The proposed City Urban Forest Master Plan includes the following action item, 
which would provide additional guidance for vegetation selection: 

Action:  Develop guidance for tree selection and planting along Highway 101 that 
would improve air quality for nearby sensitive land uses.  



 
 

 3  

Tracking State Regulations and Air Quality Changes 

Policy ER7 is identified as an interim policy until such time as highway pollution levels 
and health hazards are reduced through further planned State regulations or other 
means. The policy provides that the City will track regulatory efforts of the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) and progress on air quality improvements. 

Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District staff is assisting City staff in 
monitoring State regulatory activities and data on air quality changes. Scientific studies 
have estimated that diesel particulate levels statewide were substantially reduced in the 
years 1990-2010 due to in-place State regulations (UCSD, Black Carbon and the 
Regional Climate of California, 2013). The next phase of diesel particulate regulations 
(heavy truck retrofits), which had been put on hold following the State’s economic 
downturn, is now underway.  

With adoption of ER7, it was anticipated that the City will periodically conduct updated 
modeling of air quality conditions along Highway 101 within Santa Barbara as part of the 
City’s General Plan Adaptive Management Program (AMP). Following such studies, the 
City would reassess Policy ER7 and the Ordinance provisions for amendment or repeal. 
It is also possible that the CARB may in the future be able to provide data about 
improved air quality that would support policy repeal without the City study. 

Other Jurisdictions 

The City of Goleta adopted a General Plan policy requiring projects within 500 feet of 
Highway 101 to prepare project-specific health risk assessments.  

The County of Santa Barbara’s Los Alamos Community Plan includes development 
standards providing that a high efficiency ventilation system should be installed for all 
residential projects within 500 feet of Highway 101; residents provided with filter 
maintenance information; and potential buyers provided with an air quality disclosure 
statement.  

The County is in process of preparing an updated East Goleta Valley Community Plan 
for the unincorporated portion of the valley, which is also expected to include a policy 
addressing this near-highway air quality issue. 

The Santa Barbara Association of Governments (SBCAG) recently adopted an updated 
Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS). The 
Final Program Environmental Impact Report for this plan identifies a list of potential 
mitigation measures for siting sensitive land uses within 500 feet of Highway 101, which 
may include site design and screening, health risk assessments, interior filtration, and 
disclosure statements, as determined by the lead agency for individual projects. 

A number of jurisdictions in northern and southern California also have similar policies 
in place or pending. 



Bodega Ln

Mi
ss

ion
Mi

ss
ion

Ca
ny

on
Ca

ny
on

Ho
pe

 R
an

ch
Ho

pe
 R

an
ch

La
s P

os
ita

s
La

s P
os

ita
s

   V
all

ey
   V

all
ey

No
rth

sid
e A

rea
No

rth
sid

e A
rea

Mo
nte

cit
o

Mo
nte

cit
o

Stat
e S

t

Stat
e S

t

! (15
4

£ ¤10
1

Cota
 St

Gard
en

 S
t

Milp
as

 S
t

Hope Ave

Bath
 S

t

Cota 
St

Gar
de

n S
t

Mod
oc

 R
d

Mou
nta

in D
r

Cha
pa

la 
St

Haley S
t

Ca
br

illo
 B

lv
d

De L
a V

ina
 S

t

Ana
ca

pa
 S

t

Carr
illo

 St

Oliv
e S

t

Cas
till

o S
t

Sola
 St

La
gu

na
 S

t

Cl
iff

 D
r

Hope Ave

Alamar Ave

Alis
os

 S
t

A
ls

to
n 

R
d

Las Palmas Dr

Chin
o S

t

San
ta 

Bar
ba

ra
 S

t

Mich
elt

ore
na

 St

Orte
ga

 St

Vict
oria

 St

San Ysidro Rd

Isl
ay

 St

Sh
or

el
in

e 
Dr

M
ar

in
a 

D
r

San Roque Rd

Hot Springs Rd

Ana
pam

u S
t

Meigs Rd

Arre
lla

ga S
t

Tunnel Rd

La Cumbre Rd

Gille
sp

ie 
St

Figu
ero

a S
t

S
ta

te
 S

t

Sali
na

s S
t

S
um

m
it 

R
d

Va
lerio

 S
t

Ped
rego

sa
 St

Miss
ion

 St

San
 A

nd
res

 S
t

Cano
n P

erdi
do S

t

Al
am

ed
a 

Pa
dr

e 
Se

rra

Picacho Ln

As
hl

ey
 R

d

Grove Ln

Mas
on

 St

Hi
ll 

R
d

Sole
da

d S
t

Pad
re St

M
is

si
on

 R
id

ge
 R

d

To
rin

o 
D

r

De La
 G

ue
rra

 St

M
ira

m
on

te
 D

r

Mou
nta

in 
Ave

Coyote Rd

Via Hierba

La
s C

an
oa

s R
d

Ya
no

na
li S

t

Po
rte

su
el

lo
 A

ve

O
ld

 C
oa

st
 H

w
y

Rob
bin

s S
t

La Vista Rd

Lo
s O

livo
s S

t

Qua
ran

tin
a S

t

Cold Springs Rd

Ll
an

o 
Av

e

Mon
te 

Dr

Las Positas Rd

P
al

er
m

o 
D

r

Mission Canyon Rd

Middle Rd

Vi
a 

La
gu

na

G
ra

nd
 A

ve

Co
ne

jo 
Rd

Br
ae

m
ar

 D
r

M
an

ito
u 

R
d

Cr
es

ta
 A

ve

Olive Mill Rd

Mon
tec

ito
 St

La
s 

Al
tu

ra
s 

Rd

Ca
lle

 N
og

ue
ra

Lo
ma A

lta
 D

r

Alan Rd

Nop
al 

St

Cantera Ave

Oliver Rd

Ba
rk

er
 P

as
s 

R
d

El Sueno Rd

Pue
blo St

P
ue

st
a 

D
el

 S
ol

Can
ad

a S
t

B
el

 A
ir 

D
r

El C
ielito

 Rd

Ch
an

ne
l D

r

Flora Vista Dr

La
go

 D
r

Milp
as

 S
t

La
s 

Tu
na

s 
R

d

Northridge Rd

Ca
lle

 R
os

al
es

Mesa Ln

Via Tranquilla

Lo
m

a 
St

Butterfly Ln

Cieneguitas Rd

Palomino Rd

La
 C

ol
in

a 
R

d

Cons
tan

ce
 Ave

Sa
n 

M
ig

ue
l A

ve

La
 M

ar
ina

 D
r

Vo
lun

tar
io 

St

Carpi
nte

ria
 S

t

B
or

to
n 

D
r

Via Chaparral

G
le

nv
ie

w
 R

d

C
am

in
o 

Vi
ej

o 
R

d

Ro
bl

e 
Ln

Quini
en

tos
 St

Fellowship Rd

Calle De Los Amigos

Hitchcock Way

Mohawk Rd

Fo
ot

hi
ll 

Ln

Veronica Springs Rd

Ni
no

s 
D

r

Dolores Dr

M
ar

ip
os

a 
D

r

Eu
ca

lyp
tu

s 
Hi

ll R
d

Sycamore Canyon Rd

Ju
nip

ero
 St

G
ar

ci
a 

R
d

B
on

ny
m

ed
e 

D
r

Cooper Rd

Riven Rock Rd

P
rim

av
er

a 
R

d

Debra
 D

r

San
 P

as
cu

al 
St

Canon View Rd

Es
tre

lla
 D

r

Palisades Dr

Sea Ranch Dr

Cheltenham Rd

Ta
lla

nt 
Rd

Vi
a 

Pr
es

ad
a

C
ed

ar
 L

n

Serena Rd

Barger Canyon Rd

Cr
ec

ie
nt

e 
D

r

Hodges Ln

Foxen Dr

Spri
ng

 S
t

Vi
a 

D
ie

go

Morada Ln

Calle Laureles

Ca
lle

 F
re

sn
o

Vi
a 

Es
pe

ra
nz

a

Co
wles

 R
d

Cr
es

tlin
e 

Dr

Canon Dr

S
ch

oo
l H

ou
se

 R
d

Jesusita Ln

Miradero Dr

Quint
o S

t

S
ta

nl
ey

 D
r

Nicholas Ln

Ho
lly

 R
d

Oak Rd

Sa
n 

Re
m

o 
D

r

Willowglen Rd

La
 E

nt
ra

da

Onta
re

 R
d

Verano Dr

W
ya

nt
 R

d

Parra Grande Ln

C
en

te
r A

ve

Del M
ar A

ve

Clea
rvi

ew
 R

d

La
s 

C
an

oa
s 

Ln

S
ce

ni
c 

D
r

Pa
te

rn
a 

R
d

Call
e C

es
ar 

Cha
ve

z

Clinton Ter

Jim
en

o R
d

La
s O

nd
as

H
ig

h 
R

d

O
liv

e 
A

ve

Hi
llc

re
st

 R
d

Rametto Rd

Ja
m

es
on

 L
n

Treasure Dr

M
cC

aw
 A

ve

Westmont Rd

M
ad

ro
na

 D
r

La
su

en
 R

d

San
 Rafae

l A
ve

Ex
et

er
 P

l

Toyon Dr

El
is

e 
W

ay

Sa
m

ar
ka

nd
 D

r

San Nicolas

Je
rr

y 
H

ar
w

in
 P

ky

Ca
lle

 G
al

ici
a

S
un

se
t R

d

M
ur

re
ll 

R
d

Rosario Dr

Pimiento Ln

Juanita Ave

Vi
a 

Lu
ce

ro

Cocopah Dr

G
le

nd
es

sa
ry

 L
n

Hills
ide

 R
d

Oak
 P

ar
k L

n

Ke
nm

or
e 

Pl

Mou
nt 

Calv
ary

 R
d

Ca
m

pa
ni

l D
r

Vernon Rd

G
ol

f R
d

Ind
io 

Mue
rto

 St

Vil
la 

Ave

Pito
s S

t

Banana Rd

Li
nc

ol
n 

R
d

P
iro

 L
n

Ar
ca

dy
 R

d

M
ira

 V
is

ta
 A

ve

Bar
ra

nc
a A

ve

P
ue

bl
o 

A
ve

Tr
em

on
to

 R
d

Via 
Chap

arra
ll

M
es

a 
S

ch
oo

l L
n

S
ky

vi
ew

 D
r

O
rio

le
 R

d

Lu
ci

nd
a 

Ln

Cota Ln

A
rb

ol
ad

o 
R

d

Co
as

t V
illa

ge
 C

ir

St
er

re
tt 

Av
e

Litchfield Ln

Loyola Dr

Clift
on

 S
t

M
ed

io
 R

d

Co
as

t V
illa

ge
 R

d

Romaine Dr

Kow
als

ki 
Ave

Gra
y A

ve

Se
ac

lif
f

La
 P

al
om

a 
Av

e

Ca
lle

 M
ar

ip
os

a

P
ro

sp
ec

t A
ve

Ve
rd

e 
Vi

st
a 

Dr

Weldon
 R

d

San Clemente

B
ol

er
o 

D
r

Br
en

ne
r D

r

Laurel Canyon Rd

Via Gaitero

Do
ve

r R
d

M
ar

ic
op

a 
D

r

Bon
d Ave

Alta
 V

ist
a R

d

Oce
an

o A
ve

Vi
a 

G
lo

rie
ta

Va
le

nc
ia 

Dr

Cook
 Ave

Si
er

ra
 V

ist
a 

Rd

Clev
ela

nd
 Ave

Emer
so

n A
ve

Re
d 

R
os

e 
W

ay

S
el

ro
se

 L
n

Salida Del Sol

Caciq
ue

 St

Lane

W
yo

la
 R

d

Ro
ck

w
oo

d 
D

r

M
on

tro
se

 P
l

Sals
ipu

ed
es

 S
t

Linda Rd

Wen
tw

or
th 

Ave

Stevens Rd

C
ie

lit
o 

Ln

Camino Medio

Sunrise Hill Ln

O
ra

m
as

 R
d

Tornoe Rd

Pa
lo

m
a 

Dr

Su
ns

et
 D

r

Ca
la

br
ia

 D
r

En
co

re
 D

r

Ve
nt

ur
a 

D
r

Brosian Way

Apple Grove Ln

Pam
pa

s A
ve

Via Rosita

La
 C

or
on

illa
 D

r

Ore
lla

 S
t

Circl
e Dr

Peach Grove Ln

Sa
nt

a 
Te

re
sit

a 
Dr

Es
tre

lla
 A

ve

Mon
ter

ey
 S

t

Senda Verde

Ar
de

n 
Rd

Ch
as

e 
D

r

Th
e 

Fa
irw

ay

Redd
ick

 St

Woodland Dr

Mari
an

a W
ay

Pun
ta 

Gord
a S

t
Lomita Rd

M
ed

cl
iff

 R
d

Vi
a 

Z
or

ro

La Vista
 Grande

W
oo

dl
ey

 R
d

Sun
se

t A
ve

La
s 

C
an

oa
s 

P
l

Barcelona Dr

Da
ni

el
so

n 
R

d

C
ar

ril
lo

 R
d

Coron
el 

Pl

Lou Dillon Ln

Euc
lid

 Ave

Cone
jo 

Ln

El
 C

ie
lit

o

Che
lha

m W
y

Gutie
rre

z S
t

Fe
rre

lo
 R

d

C
al

le
ci

ta

Ri
dg

e 
Ln

Ranchito Vista
 Rd

Be
n 

Lo
m

on
d 

D
r

Westwood Dr

Ora
ng

e A
ve

Pesetas Ln

St
 A

nn

Eucalyptus A
ve

California St

Po
r L

a 
M

ar
 D

r

Ca
lle

 M
on

til
la

Alph
on

se
 S

t

Natom
a A

ve

Do
ve

r L
n

Kentia Ave

Ayala Ln

Vin
e A

ve

M
ar

ily
n 

W
ay

Orill
a D

el 
Mar

 D
r

Del O
ro

Cordova Dr

Old Mill Rd

Rockridge Rd

N
op

al
ito

s 
W

ay

Calle Poniente

Fr
an

ce
sc

hi
 R

d

W
ill

ia
m

s 
W

y

Cima Linda Ln

Ce
nt

in
el

a 
Ln

W
hi

te
 A

ve

Camino Alto Rd

El
 A

rc
o 

Dr

La
de

ra
 S

t

Orizaba Ln

El Monte Dr

Lorraine Ave

Ca
lle

 A
nd

al
uc

ia

La
 C

im
a 

Rd

Ken
wood

 R
d

Cu
er

vo
 A

ve

C
al

le
 C

ita

Dulzura Dr

Vi
a A

lic
ia

Lo
s A

lam
os

 Ave

C
un

a 
D

r

Kn
ap

p 
Dr

Eucalyptus Ln

St James Dr

Pa
so

 R
ob

le
s 

D
r

Glen Albyn Dr

Mountain

Ca
lle

 C
re

sp
is

Via
 S

inu
os

a

C
am

el
lia

 L
n

Chiq
uit

a R
d

Vista Vallejo

Baja
da

 Ln

Cr
es

ce
nt

 D
r

Calle Alamo

P
em

m
 P

l

Calle Palo Colorado

Pa
ye

ra
s 

St

Sali
na

s P
l

Island View Dr

Santa Elena Ln

M
ira

m
ar

 A
ve

More
no

 Rd

Humphrey Rd

Ed
ge

cli
ff L

n

Bajada

Cor
on

a D
el 

Mar 
Dr

Surf V
iew Dr

Plaza Rubio

San
ta

 C
at

ali
na

Da
w

lis
h 

Pl

Ru
bi

o 
R

d

Fig
 A

ve

Pe
pp

er
 L

n

Casia
no

 Dr

Dr
ex

el
 D

r

Blan
ch

ard
 St

Vi
sta

 D
el

 C
am

po

Marg
o S

t

Merc
ed

es
 Ln

Santa Cruz Blvd

Santa Isabel Ln

Cuesta Rd

Park Pl

La
s 

E
nc

in
as

 R
d

P
or

to
fin

o 
W

ay

La Paz Rd

Vernal Ave

La
s P

osita
s P

l

R
ic

ar
do

 A
ve

Ca
lle

 S
or

ia

Coron
el 

St

Ca
lle

 C
ar

id
a

Hermosilla Dr

Vi
st

a 
Ar

ro
yo

P
es

ca
de

ro
 D

r

Aurora Ave

Iaiqua Ln

Lower Hyde

Salv
ar 

Rd

Calle Cerro

S
an

 J
os

e 
Ln

Ea
st

 L
as

 T
un

as
 R

d

Overlook Ln

Ca
lle

 L
ina

re
s

Vi
a 

D
ic

ho
sa

El Prado Rd

Miss
ion

 C
an

yo
n

Br
oo

k 
Ln

Oak A
ve

Indian Ln

C
ol

in
a 

Ln

Mission Park Dr

Calle Cortita

Hele
na

 A
ve

Rockbridge Rd

Hot S
prin

gs
 Ln

Calle Malaga

O
to

no
 D

r

Ri
al

to
 L

n

Br
oo

ktr
ee

 R
d

Lighthouse Rd

Naranjo Dr

Via Rosa

Bi
th

yn
ia

 R
d

Union S
t

Ca
lle

 M
ad

er
a

Arch
er'

s A
ly

Lo
s 

Pa
to

s 
W

ay

M
ar

qu
ar

d 
Te

r

P
oz

zo
 C

ir

Crestview Ln

Betty Dr

Santo Tomas Ln

San
ta 

Yne
z S

t

Harbor View Dr

Consuelo Rd

Inv
ier

no
 D

r
W

in
ds

or
 W

y

S
an

ta
 M

ar
ia

 L
n

Ca
lle

 P
in

on

Vi
st

a 
D

el
 M

ar
 D

r

St F
ra

nc
is 

W
ay

Santa Fe

 Depaul Dr

Alisa Ln

Ros
e A

ve

Las Manos Ln

Calle Granada

Ni
rv

an
a 

R
d

Se
a 

Le
dg

e 
Ln

P
as

eo
 F

er
re

lo

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 L

n

Ca
pr

i D
r

Calle 
Cerr

ito

P
as

eo
 T

ra
nq

ui
llo

Hi
gh

 R
idg

e 
Ln

A
rr

ib
a 

W
ay

Pico
 Ave

Ga
rd

en
 L

n

Llo
yd

 Ave

Hacienda Dr

Reef Ct

Vista Madera

Monte Vista Ln

Veronica Pl

Dian
a L

n

C
on

ni
e 

W
ay

Skyline Cir

C
ar

ol
 A

ve

Alston Pl

Mission Oak Ln

M
im

os
a 

Ln

Braemar Ranch Ln

Ca
lle

 C
ed

ro

Al
ee

da
 L

n

Isle
ta Ave

La
 L

ad
er

a 
D

r

El Rancho Rd

Ar
ro

yo
 A

ve

Luneta Plz

Stonecreek RdLa Senda Dr

Ca
lle

 A
lm

on
te

Winther Way

San Julian Ave

Lo
m

a 
M

ed
ia

 R
d

De La
 Vist

a A
ve

Wye Rd

A
rd

ill
a 

D
r

Sa
n 

G
ab

rie
l L

n

Sha
sta

 Ln

Alcala Ln

Richland Dr

Pa
se

o 
De

l R
ef

ug
io

Broadmoor Plz

Lo
s A

gua
jes

 Ave

Cur
ley

 Av
e

Donz
e A

ve

La
 C

ad
en

a

Di
xo

n 
St

Vi
sc

ai
no

 R
d

M
on

te
 C

ris
to

 L
n

Dutt
on

 Ave

Vi
a 

D
el

 C
ie

lo

El
 C

am
in

o 
D

e 
La

 L
uz

Sycamore Vista Rd

Via Sevilla

La
 R

ad
a

Olive Mill Ln

Mari
lla

 Ave

To
do

s 
S

an
to

s 
Ln

Cas
ita

s R
d

Camphor Pl

Noga
les

 Ave

Calle Bello

Greenworth Pl

H
ar

ro
ld

 A
ve

Plaz
a D

el M
on

te

Ca
ny

on
 A

cr
es

 D
r

Vist
a D

e L
a P

lay
a

La Lita Ln

Laguna Blanca Dr

Niel
pa

rk 
St

Edis
on

 Ave

La
 P

az
 Ave

Calle Alella

Orange Grove Ave

Pan
ch

ita
 P

l

Live Oak Ln

Rose Ln

The
ate

r L
n

Palm
 Ave

Terrace Rd

Co
ro

na
da

 C
ir

Edg
ew

ate
r W

ay

M
ira

 M
es

a 
Dr

Es
se

x 
St

Li
nc

ol
nw

oo
d 

D
r

Dian
a R

d

De
l P

ar
qu

e 
D

r

Leslie Dr

Po
r L

a 
M

ar
 C

ir

Carrizo Dr

Eliz
ab

eth
 S

t

Tye Rd

Free
mon

t P
l

Phil
ind

a A
ve

La
ng

lo
 T

er

Santa Angela Ln

Pa
rk

s R
d

Ruth 
Ave

Crestw
ood Dr

Mell
ifo

nt 
Ave

W
ils

on
 S

t

Waldr
on A

ve

Pi
ed

m
on

t R
d

Seaview Rd

Je
sm

ary
 Ln

Halc
yo

n L
n

Arlin
gto

n A
ve

De
er

pa
th

 R
d

£ ¤10
1

! (19
2

! (19
2

! (19
2

S
an

 P
ed

ro
 L

n

Andante Rd

Kim
be

rly
 Av

e

Mulb
erry

 Ave

La
 C

om
ba

du
ra

 R
d

Th
om

as
 Ave

Palm Tree Ln

Ens
ena

da
 S

t

Di
ns

m
or

e 
Ln

Brad
bu

ry 
Ave

Ti
er

ra
 C

ie
lo

 L
n

Mission Canyon Ln

El C
as

eri
o

C
er

rit
o 

Ln

Gille
sp

ie 
Way

Lowena Dr

La
wrenc

e A
ve

Li
gh

th
ou

se
 P

l

San
tia

go R
d

Calle Elegante

Depot Rd

Sole
da

d A
ve

El V
ed

ad
o L

n

Oak Spring Ln

Vi
sta

 C
la

ra
 R

d

Pe
riw

in
kl

e 
Ln

Ro
se

m
ar

y 
Ln

La Cumbre Ln

H
os

m
er

 L
n

Selwyn Cir

Celine Dr

Mira Monte Ave

Vi
rg

in
ia

 R
d

Calle Las Caleras

Well
ing

ton
 Ave

La
 V

er
ed

a 
Ln

Fe
llo

w
sh

ip
 L

n

La Milpita Rd

R
an

ch
o 

A
so

le
ad

o 
D

r

Lo
ma V

ist
a Ave

Equ
estr

ian
 Ave

G
re

en
 M

ea
do

w
s 

R
d

Ri
nc

on
 V

ist
a 

R
d

Ro
ck

cr
ee

k 
R

d

Al
is

al
 R

d

Rich
ard

so
n Ave

Ealand Pl

O
nt

ar
e 

H
ills

 L
n

Mon
tgo

mer
y S

t

Ri
ch

el
le

 L
n

M
on

te
 V

is
ta

 R
d

Ju
an

a M
ar

ia 
Ave

El
ev

en
 O

ak
s L

n

Mea
do

w 
W

oo
d 

Ln

So
nr

ien
te 

Rd

Myrt
le Ave

La
s 

Al
tu

ra
s 

Ci
r

De
 L

a 
G

ue
rra

 T
er

Sycamore Creek Ln

Vi
a A

nd
or

ra

Ri
nc

on
ad

a 
Rd

Camino Calma

Dibb
lee

 Ave

Je
nnin

gs
 Ave

M
ilp

as

Mer
u 

Ln

Lo
rin

da
 P

l

Greenwell Ln

La
 C

resta
 C

ir

S
um

m
it 

Ln

Park
er 

Way

Plaza Ave

Co
le

m
an

 A
ve

Citru
s A

ve

Via Rojo

Fo
rtu

na
to

 W
ay

Cove Mound Dr

Cr
es

ce
nt

 A
ve

Hi
gh

lan
d D

r

Lib
rar

y A
ve

Sa
n 

Di
eg

o R
d

Vi
a 

La
s 

Br
is

as

Calle Corte

Rey
 R

d

Tin
ke

r W
ay

Tra
ns

fer
 Ave

Ho
lm

cr
es

t R
d

Bon
ita

 W
ay

Gre
en

rid
ge

 L
n

Hi
dd

en
 H

ol
lo

w

Fr
ia

r L
n

Fr
an

cis
co

 D
r

Ameri
ca

n A
ve

Morr
iso

n A
ve

M
od

oc
 R

d

Mou
nta

in 
Dr

M
ar

ip
os

a 
D

r

Lo
m

a 
M

ed
ia

 R
d

Ca
lle

 R
ea

l

De La
 G

ue
rra

 St

Vi
a 

Lu
ce

ro

San
 P

as
cu

al 
St

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
D

r

Shoreline Dr

Sola
 St

Cha
pa

la 
St

Ke
nw

oo
d 

Rd

Los Olivos St

Bath
 S

t

G
ra

nd
 A

ve

Milp
as

 S
t

Orte
ga

 St

Eucalyptus Hill R
d

Cas
till

o S
t

Va
lerio

 S
t

Ped
rego

sa
 St

Estrella Dr

M
es

a 
R

d

El
 R

an
ch

o 
R

d

Sycamore Canyon Rd

Pad
re St

C
ha

nn
el

 D
r

Ve
rd

e 
V

is
ta

 D
r

Ontare Rd

Lo
s O

livo
s S

t

Re
d 

R
os

e 
W

ay

Butterfly Ln

Olive Mill Rd

Alam
ed

a P
ad

re
 S

er
ra

Cu
er

vo
 A

ve

Yanonali St

Pedregosa St

Pue
blo St

Quint
o S

t

C
al

le
 R

ea
l

Vict
oria

 St

Ed
ge

w
at

er
 W

ay

St
at

e 
S

t

Palm
 Ave

Cano
n D

r

Gibraltar Rd

Barker Pass Rd

Mas
on

 St

San
ta 

Bar
ba

ra
 S

t

M
on

tro
se

 P
l

Bath
 S

t

Arre
lla

ga S
t

Caciq
ue

 St

Ya
no

na
li S

t

Padre St

Cota 
St

La
 C

or
on

illa
 D

r

Nop
al 

St

Sals
ipu

ed
es

 S
t

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
D

r

Eucalyptus Hill Rd

San
 P

as
cu

al 
St

Miss
ion

 St

La
su

en
 R

d

Gutie
rre

z S
t

Cuervo Ave

C
al

le
 C

ita

Calle
 Alam

o

Isl
ay

 St

Calle Laureles

Mon
tec

ito
 St

Mountain Dr

Can
ad

a S
t

Va
lerio

 S
t

Miramar Ave

Ju
nipero

 S
t

Mas
on

 St

Cuervo Ave

Ho
llis

te
r A

ve

Ju
nipero

 S
t

Sa
m

ar
ka

nd
 D

r

Vo
lun

tar
io 

St

Westm
ont R

d

Ana
ca

pa
 S

t

Figu
ero

a S
t

Pe
pp

er
 L

n

Ya
no

na
li S

t

Hi
llc

re
st 

Rd

Cas
till

o S
t

Loma Alta Dr

Co
as

t V
illa

ge
 R

d

De La
 G

ue
rra

 St

C
on

ej
o 

R
d

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
D

r

Figu
ero

a S
t

Pa
ci

fi
c 

O
ce

an

Pa
ci

fi
c 

O
ce

an

JA
N 

20
14

±
0

0.
5

1
0.

25
M

ile

1:
30

,0
00

Hi
gh

wa
y 1

01
 25

0 F
oo

t A
rea

an
d S

ou
nd

wa
ll L

oc
ati

on
s

M
ap

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 B
ar

ba
ra

, P
la

nn
in

g 
D

iv
is

io
n

Le
ge

nd Ex
is

tin
g 

So
un

dw
al

l L
oc

at
io

ns

25
0 

fo
ot

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
fro

m
 e

dg
e 

of
 n

ea
re

st
 tr

av
el

 la
ne

Pa
rc

el
s 

th
at

 In
te

rs
ec

t 2
50

 fo
ot

 d
is

ta
nc

e

No
te:

 Ex
ist

ing
 so

un
dw

all
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 ar

e p
rov

ide
d b

y C
alt

ran
s a

t 
htt

p:/
/sv

cte
nv

im
s.d

ot.
ca

.go
v/s

ou
nd

wa
ll_

gis
/

25
0 f

oo
t s

etb
ac

k l
ine

 w
as

 di
git

ize
d b

y t
he

 C
ity

 Pl
an

nin
g D

ivis
ion

 
us

ing
 20

12
 ae

ria
ls 

to 
fin

d t
he

 ed
ge

 of
 ne

are
st 

tra
ve

l la
ne

.  T
he

 
ne

are
st 

tra
ve

l la
ne

 do
es

 no
t in

clu
de

 on
-ra

mp
s o

r o
ff-r

am
ps

.

D
oc

um
en

t P
at

h:
 H

:\G
ro

up
 F

ol
de

rs
\G

IS
\W

O
R

K
\a

n\
ar

cm
ap

\P
la

nS
B

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n\
H

ig
hw

ay
 1

01
 S

et
ba

ck
\H

ig
hw

ay
 1

01
 2

50
 ft

 s
et

ba
ck

 a
nd

 s
ou

nd
w

al
ls

 1
1x

17
.m

xd

ATTACHMENT 6















































































































COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 4/8/14 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING TITLE 22 OF 
THE SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
ADDING CHAPTER 22.65 ESTABLISHING AIR 
QUALITY DESIGN STANDARDS FOR NEW 
DEVELOPMENT NEAR HIGHWAY 101 TO 
IMPLEMENT POLICY ER7 OF THE 2011 GENERAL 
PLAN. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Council adopts the ordinance codified in Chapter 22.65 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code based on the following findings: 

A. The California Air Resources Board and the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District 
have recommended reducing potential health hazards associated with vehicle exhaust, including 
diesel particulates, by limiting development of new residences and other sensitive land uses in close 
proximity to highways. 

B. A Program Environmental Impact Report (EIR) certified for the City of Santa Barbara 2011 General 
Plan update evaluated air quality effects associated with new development in close proximity to 
Highway 101 during the General Plan time horizon. The EIR identified an interim policy for limiting 
new development of sensitive land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101. The EIR analysis concluded 
that the interim policy would mitigate the potential air quality impact associated with future 
development within the City near Highway 101 to a less than significant level until such time as 
statewide diesel particulate levels and associated health hazards are reduced by planned State 
regulations or other means. 

C. Interim policy ER7 adopted as part of the City of Santa Barbara 2011 General Plan directs that the 
development of new sensitive land uses within 250 feet of Highway 101 be limited unless the City 
determines that diesel emission risks or exposures are satisfactorily addressed. Implementation 
Measure ER7.1 directs that the City establish development standards for new development to 
implement the policy, and track State regulations and progress on reducing highway diesel 
particulates pollution to determine when the interim policy is to be retired. 

D. This ordinance is consistent with City policy, including Charter Section 1507 directing that 
development shall not exceed physical and natural resources including air quality; General Plan 
policy ER7 establishing limitation on specified new development within 250 feet of Highway 101; 
and General Plan Implementation Measure ER7.1 directing development of standards for new 
development next to Highway 101. The adoption of this implementing ordinance is in compliance 
with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) provisions for environmental review under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15168 and 15162, based on the staff analyst determination that the 
ordinance is within the scope of the 2011 General Plan update and its certified Program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), would not result in additional environmental impacts beyond 
those identified in the Program EIR, implements Program EIR Mitigation Measure AQ-1, and 
requires no further environmental review process. 

 



COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 4/8/14 

2 
 

SECTION TWO:  Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended by adding Chapter 22.65 
titled “Design Standards for Development Near Highway 101” to read as follows: 

22.65.010 Purpose and Intent. 

It is the purpose of this section to limit and regulate development within close proximity to Highway 101 
in a manner that promotes the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City of Santa Barbara. 

Pursuant to 2011 General Plan Policy ER7, the design standards in this Chapter are intended to limit the 
number of people, including Sensitive Individuals, who receive Extensive Exposure to potential air 
pollution hazards from highway vehicle exhaust including diesel particulates by limiting the development 
of new sensitive land uses within close proximity of Highway 101 or by modifying the design of new 
sensitive land uses to reduce the amount of air pollution exposure received, until such time as statewide 
diesel particulate levels are reduced by planned State regulations or other means. 
 

22.65.020  Definitions. 

For the purpose of this Chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings: 

A. Accessory Building.  As defined in Section 28.04.010 of this Code. 

B. Extensive Occupancy or Exposure. Substantial time periods involving daily occupancy or frequent 
lengthy visits of many hours occurring repeatedly over many years as experienced with residential 
land uses and schools. 

C. Main Building.  As defined in Section 28.04.145 of this Code. 

D. Required Outdoor Living Space.  Outdoor living space or open yard area required in accordance 
with City residential zoning standards as specified in Title 28 of this Code. 

E. Sensitive Individuals. Persons most susceptible to adverse affects of poor air quality (including from 
diesel particulates) including children, the elderly, and people who are ill or have serious chronic 
respiratory, heart, or other medical conditions that are exacerbated by air pollution. 

F. Sensitive Land Uses. Land uses that involve Extensive Occupancy or Exposure by Sensitive 
Individuals including residences; nursing homes, retirement homes, and other community care 
facilities; schools; and large family day care facilities. Land uses not considered sensitive land uses 
include retail, commercial services, and offices. 

G. State Highway Roadside Sound Wall.  A roadside sound wall constructed by the California 
Department of Transportation. 

22.65.030  Applicability and Exemptions. 

A. Applicability. 

 1. Location. Any property that is located in whole or part within 250 feet of Highway 101 as 
measured from the outer edge of the nearest highway travel lane (excluding highway on- and off-
ramps) is subject to the requirements of this Chapter, unless identified as exempt in Subsection B 
of this Section 22.65.030.  



COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 4/8/14 

3 
 

 2. Types of Development. The following types of development are subject to the requirements of 
this Chapter, unless identified as exempt in Subsection B of this Section 22.65.030: 

a. The development of one or more new residential units on a lot. 

b. An addition to an existing residential unit that increases the net floor area of  the residential 
unit by more than 50% of the net floor area that existed within the residential unit as of 
December 1, 2011. If multiple additions are made to a residential unit during the time this 
Chapter is in effect, the amount of the additional floor area shall be measured in the 
aggregate.  

c.   The development of a new main building that will be occupied by a Sensitive Land Use. 

d. The demolition of an existing building and its replacement with a main building that will be 
occupied by a Sensitive Land Use. 

e. A change of use of an existing main building from a use not defined as a Sensitive Land Use 
to a Sensitive Land Use. 

f. A change of use of an existing Main Building from a Sensitive Land Use that existed on the 
effective date of the ordinance adopting this Chapter to a different Sensitive Land Use.  

B. Exemptions. The following projects are exempt from this Chapter: 
 

 1. Sound Walls.  Projects on sites where a State Highway Roadside Sound Wall is located between 
the highway and project site. 

 2. Prior Applications.  Projects with applications submitted to the City before December 1, 2011 
for development permits including a Master Application, building permit plan check, or for other 
development approval, where the application has not expired. 

 3. Approved Projects.  Projects that received a final approval from the City prior to December 1, 
2011 where the approval remains valid. 

 4. New Buildings More than 250 Feet from Highway.  Projects where the property owner submits 
a site plan that demonstrates that no new Main Building or required outdoor living area that is to 
be occupied by a Sensitive Land Use will be located within 250 feet of Highway 101, as 
measured from the outer edge of the nearest highway travel lane. 

 5. Site-specific Demonstration.  Projects where the property owner can demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or the Director’s designee that site-specific 
climatic or topographic conditions avoid or address the air quality risks from Highway 101 on the 
site such that the site specific conditions present a health risk of less than 10 excess cancer cases 
per one million persons.  

Nothing in this Subsection B prevents an applicant from incorporating the design standards specified in 
Section 22.65.040 to exempt projects on a voluntary basis. 



COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 4/8/14 

4 
 

22.65.040  Design Standards for Air Quality. 

The following design standards apply to development and occupancy of main buildings to which this 
Chapter applies.  The location, design, and filtration standards specified in this Section are not required 
for accessory buildings or areas on the lot where Sensitive Individuals would not be subject to Extensive 
Occupancy or Exposure (e.g., parking).  

A.  Proximity to Highway 101 and Project Design Features. Main buildings that will be occupied by 
Sensitive Land Uses are prohibited from locating within 250 feet of Highway 101 unless the City 
Community Development Director or designee determines that project design features satisfactorily 
address air quality risks.  When determining whether the project design features satisfactorily address 
air quality risks, the Director shall consider the following factors: 

 1. Distance from Highway 101. Main buildings and outdoor living areas that will be extensively 
occupied by Sensitive Land Uses should be located as far from Highway 101 as feasible. For  
projects that have a mixture of Sensitive Land Uses and non-sensitive land uses, Main Buildings 
and areas expected to have Extensive Occupancy or Exposure by Sensitive Individuals should be 
located furthest from the highway, while facilities for non-sensitive populations and/or involving 
short-term use (such as parking facilities) should be placed closer to the highway. 

 2. Building Orientation and Outdoor Living Areas. Main Buildings for occupancy by Sensitive 
Land Uses should be oriented with doors and outdoor living areas on the side of the building 
away from the highway in order to provide physical screening by the building.  

 3. Vegetative Screening and Physical Barriers. Project sites to be occupied by Sensitive Land 
Uses should incorporate dense, tiered vegetative plantings between the highway and the Main 
buildings and outdoor living areas that are to be occupied by Sensitive Land Uses, which helps to 
remove air pollutants and reduce diesel particulate concentrations. Vegetation should largely 
entail trees with complex foliage (leafy vegetation or with needles) that allow substantial in-
canopy airflow; preferably in multiple rows, using tree plantings of tall and uniform height that 
retain foliage year-round and have a long life span. Inclusion of physical barriers such as walls 
and solid fences between the highway and the project also help to reduce air pollutant exposure 
levels. 

 4. Air Infiltration. In addition to a filtration system as required in Section 22.65.040 B, Main 
Buildings occupied by Sensitive Land Uses should be designed to locate air intake vents on the 
side of building away from the highway and use double-paned windows throughout. 

 5. Other Measures. An applicant proposing a Sensitive Land Use that will be located within 250 
feet of Highway 101 may propose other measures that have a demonstrated ability to reduce 
highway air pollution exposure.  

B. Interior Air Filtration System. Main Buildings intended for occupation by a Sensitive Land Use 
that are located within 250 feet of Highway 101 and are not exempt pursuant to Section 22.65.030.B 
shall incorporate a central ventilation system with air filtration rated at Minimum Efficiency 
Reporting Value of “MERV13” or better for enhanced particulate removal efficiency. The owner of 
any development subject to this requirement shall attach a copy of the operator’s manual for the 
central ventilation and filtration system as an exhibit to every lease of the building or any portion of 
the building. 

 



COUNCIL INTRODUCTION DRAFT 4/8/14 

5 
 

22.65.050  Maintenance of Design Features. 

Design features incorporated into an approved project design pursuant to Section 22.65.040 shall be 
maintained as long as this Chapter remains in effect. 



Agenda Item No.  21 

File Code No.  640.09 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Appointment of Council Members To The New Zoning Ordinance 

(NZO) Joint Council And Planning Commission Committee  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council consider the appointment of two members to the New Zoning Ordinance 
Joint Council and Planning Commission Committee. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Planning Division requests the appointment of two Council members to serve on 
the New Zoning Ordinance Joint Committee, which will consist of two Council members 
and three Planning Commissioners.   
 
Staff recommends that the appointment include the liaison to the Planning Commission 
and one member of the Ordinance Committee. 
 
The Joint Committee will work closely with staff on the comprehensive update of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance, including vetting the zoning standards to be amended.  
Members of the Joint Committee would participate in working meetings and attend 
public forums for the NZO over the next two years.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Beatriz Gularte, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Bettie Weiss, City Planner/Acting Community Development 
 Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  22 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Risk Management Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Legal Counsel –  Pending Litigation  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(a) of section 54956.9(d)(1) of the Government Code and take appropriate action as 
needed. Pending litigation considered is a workers’ compensation claim: Guy Robles v. 
City of Santa Barbara, WCAB case number ADJ7188245. 
 
Scheduling:   Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark W. Howard, Risk Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  23 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Risk Management Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider potential litigation pursuant to section 
54956.9 (d)(2) and (e)(2) of the Government Code arising out of a contract dispute with 
Continental Casualty, and take appropriate action as needed.   
 
Scheduling:   Duration, 10 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark W. Howard, Risk Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  24 
 

File Code No.  330.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Real Property Negotiators 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 to 
consider a possible long-term lease to the Montecito Water District of a portion of the 
Charles Meyer Desalination Plant owned by the City of Santa Barbara and located on 
real property owned by the City of Santa Barbara. 
 
Real Property:  A portion of the Charles Meyer Desalination Plant located at 525 East 
Yanonali Street (Assessor’s Parcel No.: 017-540-007) in the City of Santa Barbara. 
 
City Negotiators: James Armstrong, City Administrator; Joshua Haggmark, Acting 
Water Resources Manager; Ariel Calonne, City Attorney; Sarah Knecht, Assistant City 
Attorney. 
 
Negotiating Parties: Montecito Water District, Darlene Bierig, Board President. 
 
Under Negotiation:  Instructions to negotiators concerning the price and terms of 
payment of a possible ground lease of a portion of the Charles Meyer Desalination Plant 
by the Montecito Water District. 
 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime  
 
REPORT:  None anticipated    
 
 
PREPARED BY: Joshua Haggmark, Acting Water Resources Manager 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Ariel Calonne, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  25 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 8, 2014 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director, 
regarding negotiations with the Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, Hourly 
Bargaining Unit, Police Management Association, and Firefighters Association, and 
regarding salaries and fringe benefits for certain unrepresented management and 
confidential employees. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Kristine Schmidt, Acting Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.PDF
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.PDF
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.PDF
	18.DOC
	19.PDF
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.PDF
	26.DOC
	27.PDF
	28.PDF
	29.DOC
	30.DOC
	31.PDF
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.PDF
	35.PDF
	36.PDF
	37.PDF
	38.DOC
	39.DOC
	40.DOC
	41.DOC
	42.DOC
	43.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	APRIL 8, 2014
	AGENDA



